





KEY FIGURES

SHARE PRICE PERFORMANCE
30/04/2013 - 31/12/2014*

AT Group shares nave besn kied i e Prme Stanoamo
ol e Frarsfun Siock Excrangs since 30 Aonl 2013

REVENUE 2010-2014 (€ mdion}
144 5,808
k] 5,824
12 " 5998
1 5,765
10 T ssa

Restated for IFRS 11

NET PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO

RTL GROUP SHAREHOLDERS 2010-2014 (€ malvon}

re ] a53
13 870
12 597
11 696
10 611

MARKET CAPITALISATION* 20102014 (€ billion)

pre ] 122
13 144
12 - "z
] ) 119
T ) 119
As of 31 Dacember

CASH CONVERSION RATE* 2010-2014 (%)
14 a5
13 Mii— 108
P ] 101
ik | ) 104
10 — 110

Caicula o a5 operating pre- ax cash flow as a percentage ol EBITA

DIGITAL REVENUE* 2012 - 20t4 {€enbon)
14 295
el | ) 233
1 — 188

Exchucung 8-COMmarcs home BNOADNG 370 Clat‘onm roworwa for digtad TV
Aigures "ot audtea

INDEX = 100

+42.6%
(2014 —15 7%)
RTL GROUP

+15.4%
(2014 +4 79%)
GJ STOXX 600

EBITA 2010- 2014 (€ melfion)
14 1,145
13 a 1,148
] ) 1,078
11 __ 1134
10 3 1,132
Restated for IFRS 11 )
EQUITY 2010-2014 (€ mbon)
14 I 3,276
13 ) 3 593
12 " 4888
11— " 5003
o] : 5,597
TOTAL DIVIDEND /
DIVIDEND YIELD PER SHARE 20102014 (€) 1%)
14 IS 550" 68
13 7 00 100
12 10 50 139
11 S 510 686
10 500 65

Inchucing an extraordingry e dradond of €2 00 per share prd In September 2014
Includng an sxraordnany manm devdend of €2 50 per share pec n Septemoer 2013

PLATFORM REVENUE" 2011 -2014 {€ mibon)

13 — 185
12 T

Rgvarug goneratad acrodd all gainbution plationny icable. saelite (PTV
nohcing subscrplon and re-transmssion lees figurea na a.citad

ONLINE VIDEO VIEWS 20102014 (belon)
14 N —— 36 4
13 R ) 68
12 — 59
11 == i 19
10 m ) 14




‘/—

THE

2014

RTL GROUP
ANNUAL REPORT

COME T0 LIFE ON YOUR

Simply download
the Junaio app from the
App store or
Google Play onto your

SMARTPHONE

OR TABLET!

FOLLOW THESE STEPS FOR AN

INTERACTIVE EXPERIENCE

Open the app and scan
th1s 1con to activate
the RTL Group channel

10S or Android device

the page and the video

Whenever you see the
phone icon, scan

will start playing

ENJOY! -




Follow

*I Heart Alice’
and other top
German fashion
bloggers on
Blogwalk de

RTLGroup.com relaunched
tn February 2015.
With a complete
makeover, the new site
&i1ms to showcase
everything that
distinguishes the Group
and 1ts companies
as leaders in
broadcast, content
and digital

The RTL Group Annual Report 2014

featuring videos,

RTLGroup com/annual-reports

18 also available online -

interviews,

and the interactive quiz
with guestions about

the world of RTL Group
—> Check 1t out at

MEDIEN
GRUPPE
RIL

m\m
prictmpinianui B
Smm

ity 2
ooy v e,
"-'l--—-lrl.h..,._
g . ey g

0 g 1y

e e e e

ATL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2014




-

SCAN THE PAGE NOW
70 WATCH THE
2012 RIL 6ROUP
YEAR IN REVIEW VIDEO!

c()NTENTS

Corporate information

Chief Executives’ report
Corporate strategy
— The Quiz! - featuring the highlights of 2014
Corporate responsibility
Chairman’s statement

8 ERR o

The Board/Executive Committee

Financial information

66 ——— Directors’ report
74 Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland
78 Groupe M6
80 FremantleMedia
83 RTL Nederland
86 RTL Belgium
88 RTL Radio (France)
90 Other segments

105 —— Management responsibility statement
106 — Consolidated financial statements

111 —— Notes

188 —— Auditors’ report

190 —— Credits

191 —— Five-year summary

ATL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2014 -]




CHIEF EXECUTIVES REPORT

More co-operation
across the Group.

More risk-taking.

More thinking outside
the box.

“Collaborative leadership rules” con 8 Apnl 2014, at a reception in Cannes dunng the 51st Mip TV, Vanety honoured ATL Group's
Co-CEOs, Anke Schaferkordt and Guiilaume de Posch, with their inaugural ‘Achieverment in International Telewision Award'
Vargty's Associate Publisher, Donna Pennestn, said “This Award s given to individuals who exhibit leadership, creativity ang
Innovation 1n the giobal television marketplace As Co-CEQOs Anke Schaferkordt and Guillaume de Posch have been the
driving force behind RTL Group's incredible performance aver the past couple of years and its recent expansion in online video
Their passion for content, combined with a long-term strategic approach, has boldly led RTL Group to tremendous success ”

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2014




CHIEF EXECUTIVES' REPORT

“We won'tsitback and relax We want to do more,” said RTL Group’s Co-CEOs about their future
ambition, when they presented the record results for 2013

In 2014, RTL Group succeeded in achieving three major financial goalsin parallel cperating profitabihity
remained at record levels, dividend payments were again among the most attractive in Europe,
and the Group invested more than €240 million in raptdly growing digital businesses and content

We talked to Anke Schéaferkordt and Guillaume de Posch about RTL Group’s performance
and investmentsin 2014~ and, above alil, about their plans to continue to transform RTL Group into
an even stronger global force in broadcast, content and digital

Let's start with a classic question: how did

RTL Group perform in 20147

ANKE SCHAFERKORDT Despite challengng environments
In France and Hungary, RTL Group once again delivered a very
strong set of financial results With another record year from
our biggest profit contributor, Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland,
our EBITA remained at the previous year's record level, and the
EBITA margin was agan close to 20 per cent And despite
more challenging market conditions than Germany, our TV
broadcasters in the Netherands, France, Belgium and Croatia
also delivered hugher or stable profits

GUILLAUME DE POSCH In additon, we made significant
progress In 1mplementing our strategy across broadcast,
content and digital We successfully launched three new linear
TV channels and invested more than €240 million to acguire
rapidly growing digital businesses and the US production
company 495 Productions This is the highest investment (evel
for acquisitions since 2005 So overall, 2014 was ancther very
successful year for RTL Group, thanks to our highly dedicated
staff and management teams

Why was net profit down, despite a stable EBITA?
GUILLAUME DE POSCH This was pnncipally due to
large movements n impairment charges In 2014, RTL Group
recorded a goodwil impairment cn RTL Mungary amounting
to €77 milion, tnggered by a punitive advertising tax of up to
50 per cent which came into effect in Hungary in the second
half of the year Conversely, RTL Group's net profit for 2013
ncluded a signficant positive one-off effect of €72 million,
rasulting from the reversal of an imparment on our holding in
the Spanish broadcasting company Atresmedia So the swing
was € 149 milion

The mentioned advertising tax also strongly reduced the EBITA
of RTL Hungary It caused significant financial damage for
RTL Group in 2014 Nevertheless, we have always made it very
clear that RTL 1s, and wall remain, deeply rooted in Hungary,
and we filed a complaint against the tax with the European
Commuission Against this background, the Hunganan Govern-
ment recently announced plans to amend the advertising tax
law Although we shall end up paying more taxes than
previously we would of course welcome an amendment not
only for us, but also as an important and positive signal for all
internatronal investors in Hungary

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2014




CHIEF EXECUTIVES REPORT

ANKE SCHAFERKORDT

“All dividends for the fiscal year 2014
- totalling € 5.50 per share -
represent a dividend yield of

6.8 per cent. This is clearly among
the most attractive in Europe.”

Dwidend payments are a key element of RTL Group’s
equity story What will be the proposed dividend

for 20147

GUILLAUME DE POSCH [n September 2014, we paid an
extraordinary intenm dwvidend of €2 00 per share as an
advance for the fiscal year 2014 In addtion, RTL Group's
Board of Directors has proposed a final dwdend of €3 50 per
share for the hscal year 2014 This proposal is a reflection of
the Group's strong cash flows, future investment plans and
target leverage factor

ANKE SCHAFERKORDT Based on our average share pnce
on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange in 2014, all dividends for
the fiscal year 2014 - totaling €5 50 per sharg - represent
a dvidend yield of 6 B per cent This 15 clearly among the
moest attractive in Europe In total, we will pay €851 mitlion in
diwidends for the financial year 2014

Do you plan to make further acquisitions

n 2015 and beyond?

ANKE SCHAFERKORDT As demonstrated in 2014, our
strong cash flows allow us to combine atiractive dwidend
payments with significant investments Our first pnonty has
always been to further develop our Group, to make the nght
investments and achieve profitable growth Clearly, we won't
change cur strict invesiment cntena But with profit margins
at high tevels for most of our families of channels, and with
mature TV and radio advertising markets in Europe, It's imper-
ative to find the next growth drivers for our Group A full-year
EBITOA of €1 3 bilkon gives us a comfortable headroom for
investments And this does not include our recurang Invest-
ments i programming, which 1s — and will remain - the heart
of our business

GUILLAUME DE POSCH Growing the Group through
acquisions may affect our short-term profitabiity From
nvestments 1IN growing companies or start-ups we simply can-
not expect the profit margins of 20 to 30 per cent we currently
generate with our strong and established famiies of channels
However, we are ready to accept these longer payback
phases for new investments —especially with investments that
further strengthen our digital businesses, as they will be key
m making our Group future-proof

Let’s have a look at the future of RTL Group's three
main pillars — broadcast, content and digital

To start with, what are the main challenges in the
broadcasting business?

ANKE SCHAFERKORDT Above all, fragmentation of aud-
ences and devices in the digital world makes our business
more complex It's getting more challenging to generate
manstream hits — meaning blockbuster formats that reach
mass audiences This 1s why broadeasters and producers
around the giobe are relentlessly searching for ‘the next txg
hit* What format has the potential to become the new idols or
Big Brother? Instead of new, real stand-out hits, what we've
seen n recent years 15 a senes of smaller hits — formats such
as Take Me Out, Shopping Cueen and Berilin - Tag und Nacht

ATL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2014




CHIEF EXECUTIVES HAEPORT

In a more complex digital world, our broadcasters have
successfully tapped into new revenue streams Yes, they still
earn most of therr money by seling 30-second commercials
TV advertising will remain indispensable for advertisers to build
brands and to connect emotionally with their customers But
we have moved from one revenue stream to many in some of
our countnes we now operate digital basic pay channels We
negotiate with platform operators to earn distnbution revenues
for our HD signals or for our on-demand services And our
platform revenue 15 growing fast, increasing by almaost 19 per
cent to €220 million n 2014

What more can RTL Group do to respond to

this challenge?

GUILLAUME DE POSCH First of all, as Anke already pointed
out, we always Invest in the core of our business — program-
ming The programme gnds of our channels are not based
on a few, 1solated ‘outperformers’, but on a dwerse slate of
own-produced formats angd acquired programmes Nor are
our ratings built on expensive output deals or sports nghts
In many cases, we have a solid leadership across many time
slots and throughout the whole week, based on a vanety
of genres

ANKE SCHAFERKORDT Therefore, finding the new hits —big
and small — 15 a joint pnonty for both our broadcasters and
for FremantleMedia We have a unique combination of a
pan-European breadcasting group and a worldwide leader in
content production But we have 1o leverage our assets more
strongly - and this includes closer co-operahion across
the Group

QOur broadcasters won’t wait and hope that the next big hit
will come from the international markets We constantly ask
oursetves what content will help us score with viewers In the
future We strongly believe in having our own exclusive formats
that are shown only on our channels As a consequence, we
invest in development, startng our own ntiatives In cther
words create, try and buy We are already relying on this
strategy, but we want to pursue it more aggressvely

The same I1s true for FremantleMedia which has a major
competitive advantage In being part of RTL Group with our
famiies of channels, we also have the platforms and the time
slots to try out FremantleMedia’s new formats

Talking about RTL Group’s second pillar, content What
15 your view on the current wave of consclidation

tn the international content production industry — and
what does it mean for FremantieMedia?

GUILLAUME DE POSCH The reasons for this consalidation
are defensive and offensive at the same tme On the one
hand, the theory is that ‘the bigger you are, the safer you arg’
because you can spread your nsks across a larger geography
or more content genres On the other hand, being a larger
content provider aliows you to be a bigger supplier to new
platforms such as Netflix and Amazon

Strengthening the creative pipeline — and ultimately improving
the profit margin - of FremantleMedia raquires targeted
investments in naw talents, genres and geographicat areas, as
recently demonstrated with the acquisition of 495 Productions

GUILLAUME DE POSCH

“We always invest in the core of
our business - programming. In many
cases, our channels have a solid
leadership across many time slots
and throughout the whole week, based
on a variety of genres.”

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REFQORT 2014
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CHIEF EXECUTIVES REFQRT

This acquisition allows our content arm to expand its share of
the valuable US cable market and complements and diversi-
fies the company's extsting portfol:o of content and clients In
the biggest TV market in the world With FremantleMedia, we
have a crown jewel In our portiolio — and we are all convinced
and committed to be an active player when it comes to further
consolidation In a nutshell we clearly aim to further scale up
our global content arm

RTL Group may have leading market positions

In broadcast and content. But what about pillar three,
your digital businesses?

ANKE SCHAFERKORDT Onine video is at the heart of our
digital strategy — and 1t's the focus of our invesiments in this
space RTL Group has beefed up its posiion in digital and
now owns majonty stakes in the number one multi-channel
network for fashion, beauty and ffestyls, StyleHaul, the
number three global MCN, BroadbandTv, the number cne
European MCN, Divimave, and one of the top five global plat-
forms for programmatic video advertising, SpotXchange

As a result, our total online video views have soared from 7 bil-
lion to more than 36 billion over the past two years We have
become the leading European media company in online wdeo,
currently generating S 3 bilhon online video views per month
So with our recent investments, we've accelerated our digital
strategy Now 1t will be our joint task to develop our rapidly
growing reach in online videc mnto a more significant and
profitable third pillar of RTL Group  And we're making progress
in 2014, our digital revenue grew strongly, by almost 27 per
cent to €295 million, admittedly from a small base We are
confident that these digital businesses — combined with addi-
tional investments in the digital space - will reach such scale
over the next three years that they will become one of the
growth dnvers of RTL Group’s total revenue

How will you integrate the recent acquisihons

nto RTL Group?

GUILLAUME DE POSCH We wiil create a new digital hub
in 2015 The mission for the team of the hub wil be to
further synergise the newly acquired digital businesses into
RTL Group - to support therr international expansion and to
foster collaboration and knowledge exchange

ANKE SCHAFERKORDT One major task for the Group is to
establish and develop the nght business models, so that in the
future i really won't make a difference, n financial terms, on
which devices and services viewers watch our content Qur
business I1s about creativity and storyteling — and clearly, we
will remain a content company But in addition, state-of-the-
art technology has become a key dniver for the media industry,
from online advertising sales to audience measurement and
video recommendatons

GUILLAUME DE POSCH

“RTL Group has everything it needs
to seize the opportunities of the
digital media worlid: excellent people,
a highly profitable core business
and a fantastic entrepreneurial DNA.”

ATL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2014




CHIEF EXECUTIVES REPORAT

ANKE SCHAFERKORDT

“We foster change by creating an
environment where our creative talents
and executives can thrive, and try out new
things. | would even say that we should
reinvigorate the famous ‘RTL pioneering
spirit’ when we shook up the established
world of the public broadcasters.”

As a consequence, we will further expand our data and
technology-based competencies That 1s why the acquisibion
of SpotXchange was such an important and structural move
into the area of digtal monetisation The Denver-based
company has a first-class management team that has built
a leading, state-of-the-art platform for programmatic selling
of online video advertising — and SpotXchange 1s growing at
impressive rates

In online video, what 1s your strategy for competing
with US companies such as Youtube, Apple, Amazon,
Facebook and Netflix?

GUILLAUME DE POSCH While we have a long-established
tradition of running our broadcasting operations on a
decentralised, country-by-country basis, most of these tech
and internet giants operate globally They haven't even
heard of our European ‘Schengen fronhers™ To competa will
Increasingly require a co-ordinated response from RTL Group
To grow market-leading positions on all digital platforms, we
will rethink our local approach to some extent This is not

about changing our culture of decentralsatton However,
digital transformation will lead to closer co-cperation across
our business units For example, FremantleMedia 1s already
producing exclusive content for StyleHaul SpotXchange and
RTL Nederland recently announced the launch of a joint
venture for the Benelux region Closer co-operation may also
result In setbng up cross-unit expert teams to acquire new
digital assets — because the know-how we have in the local
markets 1s the key to success

Qur international presence and the vanety of skills we have
are unigue In our Industry 'We will increasingly make use of
this strength Let's be clear this s a path we have begun to
take, but we will intensify our efforts, stnving for permanent
improvement and innovations

How do you intend to foster this cultural

change and challenge?

ANKE SCHAFERKORDT For us in management it means
creating an environment where our creative talents and
executives can thnve, and try out new things | would even
say that we should renvigorate the famous 'RTL proneenng
spint’ when we shook up the established world of the public
broadcasters Maore co-operation, more nsk-taking, and more
thinking outside the box will ubimately result in more speed
More speed in developing new formats, in roling them out
across our international footprint, and also more speed i
launching digital intiatives

GUILLAUME DE POSCH Llet me summanse we have
afready accelerated our development into a global force
In broadcast, content and digtal There are pienty of oppor-
tunities for us In the digital media world because people watch
more and more video content on more and more devices
and screens RTL Group has everything it needs to sewze
these opporturities excellent peaple, a highly profitable core
business and a fantastic entrepreneunal DNA

ATL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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Got Talent, recognised
by the Guinness World
Records as the maost

successful reality format

ATL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2014




The roots of RTL Group
date back to 1924,
when Radio Luxembourg first
went on air.

Since then, we have undergone
many transformations -
through mergers, strategic
partnerships and acquisitions.

During our journey from radio
to TV, and now to a converging
digital media world, some
things have remained constant:
ourinnovation and pioneering
spirit; and the fact that we have
always been market leaders.

\

CORPORATE STRATEGY

With our strong families of
channels we are the number
one commercial broadcasterin
Europe. And with
FremantleMedia, we are
a globhal leaderin content
production. We've also
succeeded in becoming the
leading European media

company for online video.

But we won'trest
on our laurels. We want
todo more.

We have set ourselves
four major tasks in our
efforts to continue
RTL Group’'s success story.

From animated 30 proguction
Astérix to footbali and
fashion bloggers ~ RTL Group offers
its audiences the broadest possible
diversity in entertainment




CORPORATE STRATEGY

Ich bin ein Star - Helt mich hier raus!
guarantees stellar ratings for
ATL Television, in all demographics

" RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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TV is about creativity, story-
telting and having a close
relationship with the audience.

Keeping our established hit
formats fresh and alive, and
adapting them to the changing
tastes of our audience,
has clearly been one of
RTL Group’s biggest strengths.

However, creating and
establishing the next
successful format for a mass
audience is becoming
ever-more challengingin
today’s highly fragmented
digital world.

This is why we invest
significantly in programme
development and in acquiring
new formats and rights.

Finding the new hits -
both big and small -is a shared
priority for both cur
broadcasters and our
content production
arm, FremantleMedia.




CORPORATE STRATEGY

StyleHaui's famous viogger,
Zoella, is a true
Youtube influencer, with
over 7.5 million subscribers

Bars & Melody -
Simon Cowell's chosen
'Golden Buzzer' act on

Britain's Got Talent
reached over 66 million
views on Youtube




CORPORATE STRATEGY

We always want to be where
our audiences are -
and so we want RTL Group
tobecome a glcbal
forcein online video.

We are constantly expanding
our advertising-funded
catch-up TV services,

making them available on all
devices and platfarms.

We create aoriginal content
fordigital platforms.

And finally, we are aiming for
a strong short-form video
presence through our
own platforms or our multi-
channel networks,
BroadbandTV and StyleHaul.
Thisis animportant
opportunity, as
multi-channel networks
offer access
to glebal audiences ona
significant scale.

Morethan 80 per cent of our

g 1 & 5.3 billion monthly video
frepins el 6 — ‘ views are already outside our
ZMP'L’, cE principal broadcasting
) territories, and we expect
substantial further growth.

36

17
7 ]
iz 213 2014

Online video views
{1 billion}




CORPORATE STRATEGY

The Price is Right
retains its status as
the number one

daytime showinth'e USA ﬂ h F
© pRice

i,

N 18
ainht
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Advertising budgets follow
eyeballs: online video
advertising is currently the
fastest-growing digital
advertising segment.




To better monetise our rapidly

growing digital reach
will require new skills and
resources - skills like
aggregation and producticon
of short-form video, and
in advertising technolog_)_r_._

CORPORATE STRATEGY

TWENTY-FIVE Ty

Y Lrcag e
P Tinpgg ‘-‘"'}‘:'q_

A0 Perary

In 2014, RTL Group
acquired a majority stake in
SpotXchange - one of the
largest global marketplaces
for digital video advertising,
Thisinvestmentisa
structural move into the area
of digitai monetisation -
improving our opportunities
by adding innovative
data and technology-based
capabilities.

ATL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Estimated Compound Annual
Growth Rate (CAGR)
of online video advertising
between 2014 and 2018




CORPORATE STRATEQY

RTL Group has a strong and
long-standing DNA that
combines creativity and

boldness in programming
strategies with a prudent
business approach.

But we also believe we have to
become 'hungrier’ again -
hungry forthe next acquisition,
the next big hit, the next scoop
-toremain aleaderin
innovation.

Competing with the global
internet giants, we will
make the best use of our Above all, we need the best
assets. This requires closer people. We need expertise
co-operation across across the board - the
broadcast, content and digital. programme maker, the sales
guy, the strategist, the techie
-all bring different
perspectives to the table.

We follow new paths and
create an atmosphere
where our peopie areinspired
totry out even more new
ideas, and take more risks -
and where they feel
responsible for the results.

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2014




Our FUTURE lies in fostering
creativity and innovation.

TOGETHER we can take advantage
of our global scale, if we succeed in
closer and more open collabegration.

Because NOW we have the chance
to shape our future.

As RTL Group's Annual Report 2014
demonstrates, we have
already started this new journey.

Images from RTL Group's
Management Congress 2014
in Hilversum/Amsterdam
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THE QUIZ

SHOW

Which act
appeared on
RTL Late Night
in the
Netherlands
in 20147

STROMAE

ATL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Humberto Tan is the most
successful talk show host in
the Netherlands, achieving
record ratings again in 2014.
It helps that he gets every
international artist he invites
on te the show — indeed,

ALL the pop stars listed
opposite appeared on his show
in 2014. RTL 4 also broadcasts
The Volce Of Holland, and

the country's longest-running
soap, Goede Tijden, slechte
Tijden, which celebrated

its 25" anniversary in 2014.




THE QuIZ
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Who’s wallowing
in the mud here?
The cast of...

vl‘l‘.“’#.l W i‘l.‘-?“
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DRINK, DRIVE PARTY DOWN | AM DIRTY
AND PARTY SOUTH AND i LIKE IT
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I1f you're watching young people
partying, flirting, arguing and
trading insults on TV, chances
are you’'re watching cone of

495 Productions’ reality shows.
Since its establishment in
2006, the Los Angeles-based
production company has risen to
become one of the largest and
most creative producers of
reality shows in North America.
The best-known 4%5 Productions
series is Jersey Shore, the
most successful MTV show of ail
time, with versicns in many
countries, including the

United Kingdom, Russia, Spain,
Poland and Mexico. Other
high-rating productions
currently on air are the talk
show The Real and the MTV
series Snooki & Jwoww.

RTL GCroup's content production
arm, FremantleMedia, acguired
75 per cent of 4%5 Productions
in 2014 = with an option

to purchase the remaining

25 per cent.

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2014




In the last European Champion-
ship and in the World Cup
qualifiers, Germany scored

a sensaticnal 7¢ geals in

20 games — more than ever
before! RTL Television secured
an exclusive package to broad-
cast all of Germany’s gualifying
matches for football's biggest
international tournaments.

The first European Qualifier
match on 7 September 2014,

was celebrated with a

four-hour footbkall

evening featuring the

newly c¢rowned world

champions — and also with

a win against Scotland, with
only two German goals this gime.“"
10.% million viewers tuned in.

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2014




THE QUIZ

How many goals
does the
German national football
team score in an
average qualifying match?

[ “}:‘\f"
¢ ;?
l\ A
1.5
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DIGITAL

How many video

views did
StyleHaul reachin 2014?

900,000 80,000,000 9,000,000,000

RATL GROUF ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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THE QUiZ

In December 2014, RTL Group acgquired a majority stake of
94 per cent i1in StyleHaul — the leading beauty, fashion and women's
lifestyle multi-channel network. The company 18 home to

more than 5,200 content creators and generates 1 billion views
each month — StyleHaul proves how Youtubers are becoming /

the new influencers in the digital media world, offering b
new marketing opportunities. Co-founded in 2011 _byj /
Stephanie Horbaczewski, StyleHaul videos are noygbreamedaninora
~--. than 62 countries,™and.gttract gver 220.mudCnEUBEcTbers.
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THE QUIZ
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THE Quiz

The mini-series Unsere Mitter,
unsere Viter (Generation War),
a UFA Fiction production

in partnership with SundanceTv,
has been one of the most
successful German productions
on the international TV market
in recent years. It was sold
in more than 150 countries —
and almost all channels

that broadcast it recorded
above-average ratings.

The series also won the German
Television Award in 2014.
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THE QUIZ

BROADRCAST

in anthills there are never any jams - ants

o
&

30 KM/H 55 KM/H 95 KM/H

Hwagwgnﬁmd
eo is one of the most
distinguished brands in
journalism. The green
magazine has appeared under
the slogan “The new picture
of the Earth” since 1976 —
and since then it has stood
for quality reporting from
remote regions, for complex
science journalism and
fascinating animal specials.
In May 2014, Mediengruppe
RTL Deutschland launched the
pay-TV channel Gec Television
with Gruner + Jahr, featuring
shows such as Insekten
hautnah (Insects Up Close) and
award-winning documentaries
like Searching for Sugar Man.

.’




THE QuIZ

INFORMATION

In 2014, Team Wallraff
conducted an
undercover
investigation into
Burger King
restaurants.
What deplorable
condition did
they NOT uncover?

SHELF LIFE CLOTHING CONTENT
the sell-by dates All employees bad Burger King pad
of food producis to wear clown costumes employees far
werg manipulated during carnnal less salary than they
agreed to n a

public commitment

Gunter Wallraff is an 1con of German
journalism. Since the 1960s he has frequently
gone undercover to investigate cases of
social grievances. He has worked for
RTL Television since 2012, and Team Wallraff —
tndercover-Reporter decken auf has been
on air sance 2013 His shows attract an
average audience share of 19 6 per cent in the
14~-59 target group, and in 2014, Walliraff
won a German Television Award in the Best
Feature category for his work.

9

NEWS

How many
square metres is the
new screen in the
RTL Info newsroom?

RTL Belgium's flagship channel RTL-TVI
18 the leadaing channel in French-
speaking Belgium, in part thanks to
1ts hugely successful news shows
In the TV season 2013/14, the evening
news bulletin attracted a total
audience share of 43.5 per cent 1In
December 20i4, RTL Belgium revamped
1ts news programmes with a more
dynamic and modern look and feel.
The kick-off of RTL Info attracted
49.9 per cent of the target group,
shoppers aged 18 to 54 The changes,
including the introduction of the
panoramic Studlo screen, bring greater
fluidity to on-air broadcasts and
enable 1mprovements to 1its production
procedures and editorial process.
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SHOW

What do |
really know?

Who do celebnties usually
test their general knowledge against Who presents the show?
on Qu'est-ce que fe sais vraiment?

20 police officers Karine Le Marchand and Stéphane Plaza

10 professors France Gall and Gérard Depardieu

300 students Nicolas Sarkozy and Catherine Deneuve

The questions are about general knowledge
For example what do you call the
hip-hop dance performed on the floor?

The show 1s an interactive quiz
How can viewers join In?

Homepage Popping

Teletext Sidewalk

Qu’est-ce que je sais vraiment?
has aired on the French channel M6
every Thursday since March 2014.
The popular family guiz is watched by
an average of over three million
viewers. For the first time in France,
M& launched a second-screen operation
that allows viewers to respond
in real time to the guestions asked
on the show and to compare
answers with the on-air participants.
The threshold of simultanecus
connections gquickly reached the
pre-set limit of 500,000 participants
on the éplay application — a record
for a second-screen application.




in November 2014, Aste€rix _\
— Le Domaine des Dieux
(Asterix: The Mansions Of

The Gods) was released

in French c¢inemas. The film

surpassed all expectations:
in the first week alone,
around 780,000 peocple went
to see it. The elaborately
animated 30 film was produced
by Groupe Mé, France’'s
second largest commercial
broadcaster, in which

RTL Group owns 2 48.& per
cent stake. The movie

has been sold to arocund

50 countries.

THE Quiz
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CONTENT

On average,
how many Romans
are beaten

unconscious in an
Astérix adventure?




Amoi
seg’ ma uns
wieder
(by Andreas

Gabalier)
oy

THE QUIZ

Hide & Seek
(by Sasha)

SHOW

Who sang
which song on
) Sing meinen
Song?

The successful German singer
Xavier Naidoo invites fellow
musicians like Sasha and
Sarah Connor to South Africa
to stay together and cover
each other’s songs — and
everyone wants to watch. Sing
meinen Song — das Tauschkonzert
achieved an average audience
share of 9.1 per cent in the
- target group. The show even won
a 2014 German Television
Award in the Best Entertainment
category. A second series
begins on Vox in May 2015.

\

Dieser Weg
(by Xavier Naidoo)

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Open
your
Eyes
{by Sandra
Nasig)
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Digital advertising is a billion-eurc business. And online video advertising is its fastest growing
segment. But what happens when we click on an online video? Mare than you think: the user data
is transmitted to a saleshouse for online video advertising and within milliseconds an auction is
held in which a commercial is sold to the highest bidder. SpotXchange is one of the biggest players
in this sector. Every day, over three billion ad decisions in over 100 countries are processed
on this platform. The growth in online videc advertising is largely driven by ‘programmatic video
advertising', which SpotXchange specialises in. Here, RTL Group expects annual growth rates of
more than 40 per cent. In 2014 RTL Group acquired a majority stazke of 65 per cent in SpotXchange.




THE QuiZ

BROADCAST

How are the
urban climbers in
the series = _
Don’t Loof ID G
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SHOW

What start-up
idea prevailed in
Die HOhle der
Lowen, the German
edition of
Shark Tank?

LE PETIT RAISIN COLOURCORD PET LOAD
Wine glasses to go, Corduroy pants A transport service
vacuum-sealed that change therr that uses drones to
anct filled colour to match pick up city dogs
with Chardonnay the s¢ason and from their balconies
thanks to a special to go for ther walk

laundry detargent

Die Hohle der Lowen (Shark Tank/Dragons’ Den)
was a surprise success on German television.
Oon the vox show, would-be entrepreneurs present
their business ideas to the ‘sharks’' (or
an the German version, 'lions’) — five seasconed
businesswomen and businessmen including
actign-event specialist Jochen Schweizer and
tourism expert Vural Oger. If they like one of
the 1deas presented, they actually participate
in the start-up with an agreed budget — making
1t possible to turn the business idea into
a reality. With market shares up to 9.7 per cent
(14-59 target audience) for the first
ei1ght episodes, the show generated impressive
ratings for Vox. Die Hohle der Lowen
was nominated for the 2015 Grimme Prize in the
Entertainment category

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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BROADCAST

‘Kockica’
is Croatian -
but what
does it mean?

DICE - THE NEW
CHILDREN’S CHANNEL

SPOON - THE NEW
COOKING CHANNEL

With the launch of RTL Kock:ica — the channel
has been on air saince the beginning of January
2014 — RTL's Group’s Croatian offshoot,
RTL Hrvatska, filled a gap in the market. The
children s and youth channel 18 the third
channel in RTL's Croatian family and 1s aimed
at a younger audience than the main channel,
RTL Televizija (target group: 18 to 49
demographac), and RTL 2 (1B to 35). And the
launch was promiging: 1in 2014, RTL Kockica
scored an average audience share of 17 2 per
cent among children aged 4 to 14.
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THE QUIZ

Antonia Rados 1s one of the world’'s most experienced and renowned foreign reporters.
She has worked for RTL Television since 1995, and since 2009 as Chief Foreign
Correspondent Antonia Rados has visited almost every trouble spot in the Maddle
East, the Balkans and Africa In September 2014, she attracted international
attention with a series of reports broadcast from combat zones in Syria and Iragq —
currently the most dangerous places in the world There she met
victims, opponents and fighters of the ‘Islamic State’ terrorist group

i " - - .; 1*

~ " "How many times
v has Antonia Rados
a’ travelled to

= Afghanistan for
RTL Television?

o

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REFPORT 2014 45




4

BRAZIL

Got Talent?

In which country does which star sit on the jury of the
most successful television show of all time?
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With 500 million viewers in 193 countries and a total of six hillion Youtube hats,
Got Talent has officially been named ‘Most Successful Realaty TV Format® of all time by
the Guinness World Records Since 2014, the talent show — co-produced by Sameon Cowell's

Syco and FremantleMedaa — has also been on air in countries as diverse as KRenya,
Mexico and Myaamar, with Mongolia soon to follow. 66 markets now have their own versions
of the show, led by the US vers:ion, which in 2015 enters 1ts tenth season.
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THE QUiZ
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AWARDS

The most important TV
award in the Netherlands is
the ‘Gouden Televizier’.
How many of the five prizes
went to RTL in 20147

In France, RTL's radic broadcasts
generate nationwide audience ratings
otherwaise only achieved by TV
channels: ¥Yves Calvi, the new host of
RTL Matin, rmmediately scored 12 8
per cent of the market with his
morning show Even more astonishing
are the ratings achieved by Laurent
Rugquier, who joined RTL from Europe 1
with a very special task- to succeed
the iconic 85-year-old presenter
Philippe Bouvard, who had moderated
the show Les Grosses Tétes since 1977.
Ruguier immediately attracted 15 8 per
cent of the market. Now the two
popular new presenters Ruquier and
Calvi have appeared 1n a commercial
together under the heading
Le RTL Check. In the past five years,
90 per cent of the programme
has been revamped. One reason for
RTL Radig’s unbroken success in
France: innovation and tradition.

RADIO

Since the successful
changeover of
Les Grosses Tétes
with Laurent Ruquier
in September 2014,
how many
podcast downloads
of ATL Radio’s
cult show has been
registered
each month?

2014 was an exceptional year at RTL Group for awards
and accolades. For example, in the Netherlands,
RTL won three of the five Gouden Televizier Awards
— the country’'s foremost TV awards — 1ncluding
Best Female Presenter (Chantal Janzen) and Best
Male Presenter (Humberto Tan). Small wonder,
considering RTL went into the running with eight
nominations for the five awards in total Other
awards won by RTL Group in 2014 include the German
Television Award 1n the category ‘Best Series’
for Danni Lowinsk: (UFA Fiction) and in ’‘Best
Docutainment’ for Shopping Queen (Vox), while the
German Radio Award for the country’s best morning
show went to Arno & und die Morgencrew on 104.6 RTL.

1 080 8088008800848 88 8 & ¢
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THE QUIZ

Tch bin ein Star — Holt
mich hier raus! (I'm A
Celebrity - Get Me out Of
Here!) scores scme of the
highest ratings on German
television. In 2014, the
reality show attracted an
average of 7.97 million
viewers with an average
audience share of 39%.5 per
cent in the target group
of viewers aged 14 to 59%.

SHOW

FOR REAL"
Which of the following bushtucker
trials really happened? (And which
did we invent for this quiz?)

DEVIL'S KITCHEN THE INTESTINES BATH ALL YOU CAN EAT 80X YOUR WAY THROUGH

The contestani had to The contestant The contestant had io eat The contesiant
scoop rotten meat had to submerge in roasted sheep's brains, had to go three rounds
full of cockroaches onto a bathtub full live mealworms in the ring agatnst
kitchen scales of sheep's intestines and turkey testicles a boxing kangaroo
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THE QUIZ

when 1t comes to cooking and
eating, Vice Media tells

the story in a way that has
younger audiences licking
their lips, with the new
video-driven online platform,
Munchies, launched in spring
2014 by FremantleMed:ia and
Vice Media. Both companies
develop and produce digital
content for the online food
channel — and FremantleMedia
will take this content to

TV screens around the world.

Loy

picitaL

What is the name of the extra hot chilli
sauce made in a Munchies episode?

@

YOU GO MENTAL HOLY MOTHER OF HOTTER THAN
HOT SAUCE GOD HOT SAUCE PAMELA ANDERSON'S EVER
BEEN HOT SAUCE
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DIGITAL

What is the
highest number of
points ever
scored by a player
in an NBA game”?
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videos by fans for fans: in 2014, BroadbandrTv (BBTV) extended its partnership with
the NBA (National Basketball Association}. Since 2009, BBTV has overseen fans’
videos uploaded on Youtube for the NBA channel — the most successful sports channel on
Youtube, with over 6 million subscribers. wWith 23.5 billien wvideo views in 2014,
BRTV is the third largest multi-channel network {MCN) on Youtube, managing 25,000 partners
with 2906 millicon subsc¢ribers. RTL Group owns a 51 per cent stake in BBTV.
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Chairman’s
statement

THOMAS RABE
Chairman of the Board of Directors
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CHAIRMAN S STATEMENT

2014 was another successful businass year for RTL Group
Thanks to a strong fourth quarter and arecord performance
by Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland, revenue and EBITA
reached the high levels of the previous year Atthe same time,
we made significant progress tn implementing our strategy

A focus of our work In 2014 was the expansion of our digitat
businesses with the acquisihion of a majornty stake in the
programmatic wideo advertising platform SpotXchange As
one of the big five US players in this segment, SpotXchange
not only strengthens cur position in a rapigdly growing global
market, but also provides us with additonal technology
and data-based competencies In addiion, we took over
StyleHaul, in which RTL Group - and Bertelsmann - had
owned shares since 2013 StyleHaul 1s the leading multi-
channel network on Youtube for fashron, beauty and women's
Ifestyte, and generates 1 billion video views a month Our
channels’ catch-up TV services and our online mult-channel
network BroadbandTV  achieved further growth And
FremantleMedia recorced a significant increase 1N demand for
online video content Its new offenngs include Munchies, a
web channel jointly launched with Vice Media

“RTL Group is one of the
world’s most successful
providers of video content in
the non-linear ecosystem.”

Together, RTL Group's online offers currently generate
more than 5 billon video views per month This makes
RTL Group one of the world's most successfut providers of
wvideo content in the non-linear ecosystem

This high demand for creative content and reach in online
viceo 1s Increasingly being monetised In 2014, RTL Group
increased tts revenues from digtal businesses by almost
27 per cent Adding 1n the 24/7 offenngs of our 52 TV channels
and 29 radio channels ana the more than 10,000 programme
hours produced annually by FremantieMedia, RTL Group 18
Europe’s fargest and most digital entartainment netwark

We also strengthened our core broadcast business by
launching three new TV channels RTL Kockica went on the
ar in Croatia, Geo TV in Germany — in collaboration with
Gruner + Jahr - and RTL CBS Extreme HD In South East Asia

In the: fietd of content production, FremantleMedia enhanced
its position in the United States with the acquisition of
495 Productions

RTL Group's Board of Directors worked closely with the
Executive Committee last year In addition to major strategic
decisions we fulfilled our ongoing respensibilities, such as
reviewing our Group's financial and operating performance,
while also focussing on the strategic drrection of
FremantieMedia

i lock forward to bulding on cur work in 2015 — and am
pleased that in 2014 the Board was joined by Achm Berg,
CEO of Arvato, and Jonathan F Miler, Partner at Capital
Advancit, who have added ther expertise, v particular in
digital businesses and technetogy | sincerely thank Judith
Hartmann, who resigned from our Board of Directors at
year-end, for har contnbution

Our work on the Board of Directors 1s founded on the shared
belef that creativity and innovation are the foundation of our
business success | am especially grateful to our 11,000-plus
colleagues and our Group's management team who, together,
achieved remarkable results N 2014 | am confident that
we will continue to offer you — and millions of other people -
plenty of reasons to keep following our offers and our Group's
development with interest

S

Thomas Rabe
Chawrman of the Board of Directars

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

oard

ANKE SCHAFERKORDT
Co-Chvef Executive Officer

Anke Schaferkordt, born In 1962, holds a degree

in business administration  She started her career
at Bertelsmann 1n 1988 In 1991, she moved to
ATL Plus (now RTL Television) in Cologne, and took
over the Controlling department the following year
From 1983 to 1995 she was a Director in charge

of the Corporate Planning and Controling dwsion
at ATL Television

In 1995, she Jjoined the TV broadcaster Vox,
serving as CFC and, from 1997 onwards, also

as Programme Director Then, from 1999 until
2005, she was CEQ of Vox In February 2005,
Anke Schaferkordt was appointed Chief Operating
Cfficer and Deputy CEO of RTL Television,

and since Septernber 2005, its CEQ In November
2007, the German RTL family of channels

adopted the corporate brand name Mediengruppe
RTL Deutschland In her capacity as CEC

of RTL Television, Anke Schaferkerdt 18 also

CEO of Mediengruppe RTL. Deutschland

Since Apnl 2012, Anke Schaferkordt has been
Co-CEQ of RTL Group In this capacity,

she retains her role as CEO of Mediengruppe

RTL Deutschland She aiso sits on the

Executive Board of Bertelsmann Management SE,
RTL Group’s majarity shareholder

Mandates in hsted companres

Member of the Supervisory Boards of BASF SE,
Ludwigshafen, and of Software AG, Darmstadt
Nationalbity German

First appomnted 18 Apnl 2012
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THE BOARD

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

/,

GUILLAUME DE POSCH ELMAR HEGGEN
Co-Chief Executive Officer Chaaf Financial Officer and

Head of the Corporate Centre

Guillaume de Posch, bornin 1958, started Elmar Heggen, born in 1968, holds a diploma
his career at the international energy and services in business administration from the European
cornpany Tractebel {1985 to 1990} and then Business School, and graduated with a Master
Joined the giobal management consulting firm of Business Administration (MBA} in finance

McKinsey & Company {1990 to 1993)
In 1982, he started his career at the Felix

Guillaume de Posch began his career in the Schoeller Group, beceming Vice President and
media industry at the Compagnie General Manager of Felix Schoeller Digital
Luxembourgeoise de Télédiffusion (CLT) as Imaging 1n the UK 1n 1998 Elrnar Heggen first
assistant to the Managing Director (1993 to 1894)  joined the RTL Group Corporate Centre in 2000
and then became Head of CLT's TV operations as Vice President Mergers and Acquisitions

In French-speaking countries (1985 to 1897) In January 2003, he was promoted to Senior
From 1997 to 2003, he was Deputy General Vice President Controling and Investments From
Manager and Programmung Director of the July 2063 until December 2005 he was Executive
French pay-TV company TPS, before joining Vice President Strategy and Gontroling

the pubiicly listed ProSiebenSat1 Media AG In

August 2003, first as Chief Operating Officer Since January 2006, Eimar Heggen has served
and then as Charrman of the Executive Board on the RTL Group Executive Management team,
and CEQ (2004 to 2008) and since 1 October 2006 he has been CFO

and Head of the Corporate Centre of RTL Group
Gullaume de Posch was appointed Chief Operating
Officer and a new member of the RTL Group
Executive Committee on 1 January 2012

With effect from 18 Apnl 2012, Guillaume de Posch
assumed the role of Co-CEO of RTL Group

Nationality Belgian Mandates 1n listed companies
First appowmnted 18 Apnl 2012 Member of the Board of Directors of Regus PLC,
London

Nationahty German
First appointed 18 April 2012
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

THOMAS RABE

Chawrman
CEO and Chairman of the
Bertelsmann Management SE
Executive Board

Thomas Rabe, born in 1965, holds a
diplorma and a docterate in economics
from the University of Cologne {Germany)
He started hig career in 1989 at the
Europeén Commussion in Brussels From
1990 to 1996 he held various senior
positions at Forrester Norall & Sutton (now
White & Case) in Brussels as well as the
state privatisation agency Treuhandanstalt
and a venture capital fund in Berlin In
1998, he joned Cedel International {Clear-
stream, following the merger with Deutsche
Borse Clearing) where he was appointed
Chief Financial Officer and member of the
Management Board In 1988

In 2000, Thomas Rabe became Chief
Financial Officer and member of the
Executive Committee of RTL Group In
March 2003, he was alsc appointed Head
of the Corporate Centre with responsibility
for the Luxembourgish activities of

RTL Group With effect from 1 January
2006, Thomas Rabe was appointed to the
Executve Board of Bertelsmmann AG as
the Group s Chief Financial Officer From
2006 to 2008, he was addtionally responsi-
bie for Bertelemann AG's music business

Since 1 January 2012, Thomas Rabe

has been CEQ and Charman of the
Executive Board of Bertelsmann AG, now
Bertelsmann Management SE

MARTIN TAYLOR

Vice-Chairman,
Independent Director

Martin Taylor, born in 1952, began his
career as a financial journalist with Reuters
and the Financral Times He then joined
Courtaulds PLC, becoming a director in
1987, then Chief Executive of Courtaulds
Textiles PLC on its demerger in 1990 He
moved to Barclays PLC in 1393 as Chief
Executve, a post he held until the end of
1898 From 1999 to 2003, he was Chairman
of WH Srmith PLC, and from 1899 to 2005,
International Advisor to Goldman Sachs
From 2005 until 2013, he was Chairman of
the Board of Syngenta AG

Since 2013, Martin Taylor has been an
external member of the Financial Policy
Committee of the Bank of England

He has worked on vanous projects for

the British Government and served

for five years as a member of its Council
for Science and Technology Appointed as
independeant, Non-Executive Director In
July 2000 {(when RTL Group was created),
he took over the responsibilities of Vice-
Chairman of the Board in December 2004

ACHIM BERG

Chief Executive Officer,
Arvato AG

Achim Berg, born in 1964, holds a Master
of Infermation Technology degree from the
Cologne University of Applied Sciences
He also completed the European Potential
Management Programme at the European
Economic School (EAP, Pars, Lendon,
Madnd, Rome, Berlin)

Achim Berg began his career in 1980 at
Bull AG In the field of sales and distnbution
He went on to spend six years at Micro-
soft, first as General Manager of Microsoft
Germany, then as Corporate Vice President
for the Windows Phone division in the
company’s US head office Pror to this,

he held several leadership roles in IT
compantes and sat on the board of

T-Comn, part of Deutsche Telekom AG

He has been Chief Executive Officer

of Arvato AG since April 2013, and s a
member of the Executive Board of
Bertelsmann Management SE He has
also been Vice President of Bitkom -

the Federal Association for Information
Technoiogy, Telecommunications and
New Media - In Germany since June 2013

In April 2014, Achim Berg was appointed
Non-Executive Director for a term of

one year expnng at the end of the Ordinary
General Meeting of Sharehoiders ruling

on the 2014 accounts

Committee membership

Audit, Nomination and Compensation
Mandates in isted companies
Chairman of the Supervisory Board
of Symnse AG, Holzminden
Nationality German

First appainted 12 December 2005
{effective 1 January 2006)

Re-elected 18 April 2012

80

Committee membership

Audit, Nomination and Compensation
{Chairman)

Nationality British

First appointed 25 July 2000
Ra-slected 18 April 2012

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

JUDITH HARTMANN

Chief Financial Officer and Membaer
of the Bertelsmann Managemant SE
Executive Board {until 31 Dacember 2014)

Judith Hartmann, born in 18968, holds

a Masters Degree in International Business
Admunistration and a doctorate in Econom-
ics from the Econemic University of Vienna,
Austna She began her career at The

Walt Disney Company in Paris where she
was promoted to Head of Finance of
Disney Consumer Products Europe sn 1939

In 2000, Judith Hartmann moved to
General Electnc (GE) where she had
commercial responsibility for business urits
such as GE Healthcare Latin Amernica,

GE Water Europe, Middle East & Afica and
GE Healthcare Clinical Systems at the Séo
Pauio, Brussels, Vienna and Wauwatosa
{USa) offices [n 2011, she was appointed
Chief Financial Officer of GE Deutschland
Here, her duties included overseeing

the Controlling, Accounting, Finance and
Business Development departments, and
she was also a member of the GE Global
Executiva Tearn

Since 15 October 2012, Judith Hartmann
has been Chief Financial Officer of
Bertelsmann, as well as a member of the
Bertelsmann Management SE Executive
Board and of Bertelsmann's Group
Management Committee (GMC)

Judith Hartmann resigned her mandate as
member of the Bertelsmann Executve
Board with effect from 31 January 2015

BERND KUNDRUN

Investor

Bernd Kundrun, born in 1957, studied
business adminustration at the universities
of Munster and Innsbruck In 1984, he
started his career as Executive Assistant at
the Bertelsmann Club in 1993, he was
appointed Chairman of the Management
Board of the Bertelsmann Club

In 1994, Bernd Kundrun became Managing
Dwector of Premiere Madien in Hamburg
He was appointed a member of the Execu-
tve Board of Gruner + Jahr in August 1997
and was responsible for the company's
newspaper division until 31 October 2000

From November 2000 to 6 January 2009,
Bernd Kundrun was Chairman of

Gruner + Jahr's Executive Board and the
company's CEQ Dunng this tme, he was
also a member of the Executive Board of
Bertelsmann Since February 2009, Bernd
Kundrun has been partner of the online
donation platform Betterpiace org and
since 2010 he has been Charrman of the
Supervisory Board of Gut org

At the end of 2009, Bernd Kundrun
founded the Start 2 Ventures Beteigungs-
gesellschaft which provides online start-
ups with nitial capital He s alse a member
of the Board of Directors of Neue Zurcher
Zeitung, and of the Supervisory Board

of CTS Eventim

JONATHAN F MILLER

Partner Advancit Capital

Jonathan F Miller, bern in 1956, holds a
Bachelors Degree in Psychology and
Social Relations from Harvard University in
Cambridge, Massachusetts (USA)

He began his career in 1980, holding vanous
positions in and around Boston, and

has been Partner at Advancit Capital since
2013 Before joning Advancit Capital,
Jonathan F Miller served as Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer at News Corp’s
Digital Media Group, and as Chief Digital
Officer at News Corporation Holdings

His prewious roles include that of Charrman
and Chiet Executive Officer at AOL from
2002 to 2006 He has also held sentor
management positions at USA Networks,
Nickelodeon and the Natonal Basketball
Associabon

Jonathan F Miller was appointed Non-
Executve Director of RTL Group in Apnl
2014 for a term of one year expiring at the
end of the Ordinary General Meeting of
Shareholders ruling on the 2014 accounts

Naticnality Austnan
Ferst appomnted 17 Apnl 2013

Nationality German
First apposnted 18 April 2012
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THE BOARD

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

JACQUES SANTER

Chairman of the Board of CLT-UFA,
Independent Director

Before Jacques Santer, born in 1937,
became Chasrman of the Board of
CLT-UFA In May 2004, his distinguished
career covered a variety of poliical

roles inciuding Member of the Eurcpean
Parliament (1974 to 1979 and 1899 to
2004}, Pnme Minister of Luxembourg (1984
to 1995) and President of the European
Comrrission (1995 to 1999)

ROLF SCHMIDT-HOLTZ

Business founder and investor

Rolf Schmidt-Heltz, born n 1948 1n
Martinsreuth, Germany, 15 an examined
lawyer and studied political science and
psycholegy He has been an independent
business founder and investor since Aprl
2011 Prior to that he was CEQ of Sony
Music Entertanment from February 2006
(unti Cctober 2008 Sony BMG Music
Entertainment) to March 2011, having
served the company as Charrman of the
Board from August 2004

From January 2001 to August 2004, Rolf
Schmidt-Holtz was Chairman and CEO of
Bertelsmann Music Group (BMG} and a
member of the Bertelsmann AG Executive
Board {from 2000) heading the BMG divi-
sion, which consisted of the Sony BMG
Music Entertainment joint venture and BMG
Music Publishing He also served the
Bertetsmann Executive Board as Chief
Creative Officer Rolf Schmidt-Holtz was
also a member of the Supervisory Boards
of Gruner + Jahr and RTL Group He

1s a member of the Bertelsmann Stiftung
foundation's Board of Trustees

Prior to running BMG, Schmidt-Holtz served
as Chief Executive Officer of CLT-UFA

He later oversaw the merger of CLT-UFA
with Pearson Telewision to form RTL Group
He 1s Co-Founder and Chairman of Just
Software AG and Co-Founder and Partner
of Hanse Ventures BSJ GmbH

JAMES SINGH

Independent Director

James Singh, born in 1846, holds

a Bachelor of Commerce (Hons) and

a Master of Business Administration
from the University of Windsor, Canada
He 1s a CPA (Ontano} and a Fellow of
the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants (UK)

James Singh joned Nestlé Canada as
Financial Anzlyst in 1977 and served the
company in vanous executive positions
urtil 2000 when he was appointed Senior
Vice President, Acguisitions and Business
Development, in Nestlé SA's headguarters
In Vevey, Switzerland He was a member
of the Executive Board, Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer

of Nestié SA from 2008 to 2012 He retired
on 31 March 2012 after along and distin-
guished career of 35 years with Nestlé

James Singh has been Charrman of

the Eurcpean CFO task force and held

a membership of the IIRC He currently
serves as Charman of the Finance
Committee of the European Round Table,
and 1s a member of the International
Integrated Financial Reporting Standard
Committee

He 1s also a Director of Great West Life
Assurance, Director of the American Skin
Association, and Chairman of CSM Bakery
Ingredients Ltd

Nationahty Luxembourger
First appointed 9 December 2004
Re-slected 18 April 2012

Committee membership
Nomination and Compensation
Nationality German

First appointed 18 April 2012
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

In her capacity as Co-CEQ of RTL Group, Anke Schaferkordt 1s responsible for
the Group’s largest profit centre, Medengruppe RTL Deutschland, for which she also
continues 1o serve as CEQ

ANKE SCHAFERKORDT

Co-Chief Executive Otficer

In his capacity as Co-CEO of RTL Group, Guilaume de Posch Is responsible
for the Group's broadcasting operations outside Germany, and the Group's
production business, FremantleMedia

GUILLAUME DE POSCH
Co-Chief Executive Officer

y In his capacity as CFO and Head of the Corporate Centre of RTL Group,
‘ h Elmar Heggen controls Finance and Legal He also oversees the Group's operations
In Luxemkourg and Spain
ELMAR HEGGEN

Chief Financial Officer and
Head of the Corporate Centre

Andreas Rudas, born in 1953, worked with the Austnan public broadcaster ORF from
1986 to 1997, eventually as Secretary-General from 1934 to 1897 In this role, he was
responsible for business planning, media, marketing and satellite broadcasting Starting
N 2000, he held vanous positions at Magna International Europe and was a member
of the Management Board from 2001 to 2005 Since December 2005, Andreas Rudas
was Executive Director of WAZ Ost Holding (a subsidiary of WAZ Media Group),
responsible for Austria, South Eastern Europe and Vietnam Andreas Rudas was

ANDREAS RUDAS* apponted Executive Vice President Regional Operations & Business Development
Executive Vice President, CEE and Asia with effect from 1 January 2009 In this capacity, he oversees
Regional Operations & Business RTL Group's operations in Croatia, Hungary, and Germany (radio), and explores
Development CEE and Asia business opportunities in Central and Eastern Europe, and iIn Asia On 10 March 2015,

Andreas Rudas was appointad Intenm CEO of RTL Hungary

The Executive Committee keeps the Board of Directors informed on the results of the Group

and 1ts main profit centres on a regular basis. The compensation of the members of the Executive
Committee is determined by the Nomination and Compensation Committee, and is composed of a
fixed and a vanable part {see note 9.3. to the consolidated financial statements).

Permanent guest
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November 2014 saw the 50,000
edition of N-TV's daily
business show, Teleborse, with
presenters Raimund Brichta
(left} and Markus Koch. The show
has covered business results and
the international capital
markets for over 2§ years now
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Caroline Fontenoy,

a presanter on RTL Info,
the daily news show
on RTL-TV], Belgium's
fiagship French-
speaking channel
RTL Info was revamped

in December 2014
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors are pleased to present therr report to the shareholders, with details on the businesses and the development of the Group,

together with the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014

HIGHLIGHTS

Revenue

Underlying revenue?
Reported EBITA?

Reported EBITA margin (%)

Reported EBITA

Imparrment of goodwill of subsichanes and amortisation
and mparment of tar value adjustment on acquistions of subsidianes

Imparment of nvestments accounted for using the equity method
Imparment on disposal group
Re-measurement of earn-out arrangements

Gain from sale of subsidianes, other investments
and re-measurement to far value of pre existing nterest In acquiree

EBIT
Net financial (expense)/income
jncome tax expense
Profit for the year
Attnibutable to
- Non controling interests
— RTL Group shareholders

Reported EPS (in €
Proposed/pad dvidend per share (in €)

+ Al finansial infermation for 2012 hes been restatect for IFRS 11
2 Adusted for scope changes and at constant exchange ratea

3 EBITA represants aarmings before mitorest and kaxes exchuding smpasment of goodwill and of aisposal group and amomsawn and mparmam of far vake
accountad 1o using the equity Mmethod re-measuremant of aaxn out arangaments and gan or loss from sale of
4 In Soptamber 2014 RTL Group paxd an extraordmary migrm dwdand of €2 00 per share for fiscal year 2014
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DIRECTORS REPORT

With a strong finish to the year, RTL Group delivers another impressive set of financial results
EBITA and EBITA margin stable on very high level, new record EBITDA

a Reported Group revenue was stable at €5,808 mil-
lion {2013 €5,824 milkon) Higher revenue from
Mediiengruppe RTL Deutschland and from acquisi-
tons (consolidation of BroadbandTV, SpotXchange
and 485 Productions} was offset by lower advert-
1sing sales In France, the effect of the disposal of
the French e-commerce service Mistergooddeal
along with lower revenue from FremantleMedia and
UFA Sports

= EBITA stable at €1,145 milion (2013 €1,148 mit-
lion), pnmarily dnven by a significantly higher profit
centnbution: from Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland

® Reported EBITA margin stable at 19 7 per cent

® EBITDA® slightly up by 1 5 per cent to €1,348 mil-
lon {2013 €1,328 mullian)

= Net profit attnbutable to RTL Group shareholders
decreased to €653 milion (2013 €870 milkon} This
was principally due to movements in impaament
charges anncunced at the interm results In 2014,
RTL Group recorded a goodwll imparrment on
RTL Hungary amounting to €77 milion Conversely,
the net profit for 2013 included a significant positive
one-off effect of €72 milion, resulting from the
reversal of an impairment on RTL Group's holding
in the Spanish broadcasting company Atresmedia

= Net cash from operating activities was €934 million,

resuiting in an operating cash conversion of 95 per
cent and net financtal debt of €599 million at the
end of 2014 (2013 net cash of €6 millon)

m|n the fourth quarter of 2014, reported Group

revenue was up 2 8 per cent at €1,862 milion
(Q4/2013 €1,812 million), while reported EBITA
was up signtficantly by 7 1 per cent to £466 million
(Q4/2013 €435 milion)

m RTL Group's Beard of Directors has proposed a

final dividend of €3 50 per share for fiscal year
2014, compnsing an ordinary dividend of €2 50 per
share and an extraordinary dividend of €1 00 per
share This proposal 1s a reflection of the Group's
strong cash flows, future Investment plans and its
target net debt to full-year EBTDA rato of 0 5t0 1 0
times In addition, RTL Group aready paid an
extraorchnary interm diadend of €2 00 per share
for fiscal year 2014 in September 2014

= Based on the average share pnce in 2014 (€80 558),

the total dwvidends for the fiscal year 2014 (€5 50
per share, 2013 €7 00 per share) represent a
dnaidend yield of 6 8 per cent

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REFOQRT 2014
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DIRECTORS REPORT

Major progress in imptementing RTL Group’s digital growth strategy

®» RTL Group's digital revenue’ continued to show
very dynamic growth, up 26 6 per cent to €295 mil-
lion (2013 €233 milion) benefitting from arganic
growth and new acquisitions

W RTL Group's platform revenue® grew by 18 9 per
cent to €220 milion (2013 € 185 rmilkon)

= RTL Group has developed massive scale in online

video In 2014

» RTL Group's catch-up TV services, websites ang
MCNs attracted a tctal 36 4 bilion online video
views, up 117 per cent year-on-year®

= thereof FremantleMedia's 216 Youtube channeis
attracted 9 0 billion views, up 35 per cent year-
on-year

m [n September, RTL Group completed the acquisi-
tion of a 65 per cent majonty stake in the program-
matic video advertising platform SpotXchange for
a cash out of €104 mihon Over 3 billon video ad
decisions are now processed through the SpotX-
change platform daly The investment has signifi-
cantly strengthened RTL Group's global scale

across the entire online wideo advertising market
and adds new technology and data-based compe-
tencies

® In October, RTL Interactive in Germany acauired

Econa Shopping (now renamed to Sparwelt) for a
cash out of €29 millon Sparwelt operates curated
advce and recommendation platforms for online
shopping such as Sparwelt de 1t1s the most signif-
icant acquisition in the history of RTL Interactive

» in December, RTL Group increased its shareholding

in StyteHaut to 94 per cent for a cash out of €84
miflion, further accelerating the Group's rapidly
growing presence in the online wideo space With
1 bilion video views per month, StyleHaul 1s the
leading mult-channel network (MCN) on Youtube
for fashion, beauty and Ifestyle — a highly attractive
segment for major advertisers

uin December, FremantleMedia increased its non-

controlling shareholding in Divimove to 51 per cent
Dvimove has become Europe’s leading MCN with
900 millon online wideo views per month

Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland with another record EBITA,

Groupe M6 with sightly higher EBITA contnbution

= Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland achieved its best
financial result ever EBITA increased by 50 per
cent to €650 milon {2013 €619 milion} This
improvernent was manly driven by significantly
higher TV advertising revenue in the second half of
the year and a growing digital distnbution business

s The French net TV advertising market was
estimated to be stable in 2014 The EBITA of
Groupe Mé was shghtly up to €209 million (2013
€207 mullon}, dnven by higher profit contnbutions
from the company's diversification activities

m ATL Nederand's EBITA stable at €103 mdlion
manly driven by hugher piatform revenue and diver-
sification actvities

Qutlook

a The TV advertising markets in 2014 reflected the
overal macro-economec situaton N Europe  All
European net TV advertising markets in RTL Group's
terntones were Up year-on-year, with the exception
of France - which was stable ~ and Belgum -
which was down 28 per cent This picture 1s

= EBTA of RTL Belgum stable at €46 milion,

RTL Hungary reports an EBITA loss of €1 milion
{2013 profit of € 15 mithon), manly due to impair-
ments resuting from the punitive advertising tax
which came into effect in August 2014

& FremantieMecha's EBITA decreased to € 113 milion

(2013 €136 millon) As explained at the Q3 results,
this was due to the cancellation of X Factor US,
lower revenue from Amernican fdol and increased
investments in digrtat businesses and the content

pipeline

expected to be similar in 2015 with overall slight
growth expected

= ATL Group currently expects s total revenue and

EBITA'® for the full year 2015 to be broadly stable
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DIRECTORS REPCRT

FINANCIAL REVIEW
REVENUE

Advertising markets across Europe were generally positive over the course of 2014 despite mixaed
macro-economic news flow RTL Group expenenced significant vanations across the months
and quarters of the year making it difficult to predict market trends with any certainty With

the exception of Belgium, which was down 2 8 per cent, all European net TV advertising marksts
in RTL Group’s termtones were up or stable year-on-year

A summary of RTL Group's key markets 1s shown below, including estimates of net TV advertising market
growth rates and the audience share of the mamn target audience group

Net TV RTL Group ATL Group
adverhsmyg auckence share audienca share
markgt n main nmain
growth rate 1argel group targel group
2014 2014 2013
(mn per cent) fin per cend (inpercent
Germany +35to4Q" 290" 3067
France +0 31 221m 2251 \ -
- 11 Industry and RTL astimates
Netherlands +2 1" 324" 335% 1z Sourca GX Target{;zm 14-59
-~ 13 Sowrce G M@ agtmat
Belgum 2! 35218 354% e &m:: M;U:;mnau e
- Target group housawnas under 50
Hungary +48n 368" 380" (m::bdng digital channels)
15 Seurce SKO
Croatia +4 10 250" 279® Target group 20-49 18-2¢h
16 Sowce Audimétng
Span +110m 300% 310%™ Target group shoppers 16-54 17-23h
- 17 Sewte AGH HunGary
Target graup  18-48 pnme tima
{including cabla channels!
18 Source AGB Mieisen Madia Research
During the year to December 2014, revenue was stable at £5,808 milion (2013 €5,824 milion)?' On a lke- Torgen group 18-49 pme tima

19 Scurce Atresmeo! i 1!
for-Ike basis {adjusting for portfolio changes and at constant exchange rates) revenue was down 1 2 per cent 20 Swn:: NG som;: ?Eﬁ :muﬂ 16-54
21 Al inancial ntormatian for 2013

to €5,668 milion {2013 €5,738 million) has besn rastated for FRS 11
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EBITA AND EBITDA

Reported EBITA was stable at €1,145 midhion (2013- €1,148 milion} The Group's EBITDA was
€1,348 mallion for the year (2013 €1,328 million), resulting 1n an EBITDA margin of 23 2 per cent
(2013 22 8 per cent)

Group operating expenses were flat at €4,787 million (2013 €4,785 milion)

NET DEBT AND CASH CONVERSION

The consohdated net debt at 31 December 2014 amounted to €599 million (31 December 2013 net
cash of €6 mullion) The Group intends to maintain a consorvative lavel of geanng of between 0 5
and 1 0 times net debt to full-year EBITDA in order to benefit from a more efficient capital structure

The Group continues to generats signficant operating cash flow with an EBITA to cash conversion ratio of
g5 per cent In 2044 (2013 108 per cent}

As at Asal

31 December 31 Oecember

2014 zm3

Net {debt}/cash position €m €m
Gross balance sheet debt ) (1104) (565i
Add cash and cash equwvalents 483 542
Add cash deposit and cthers 22 29
Net (debt)/ cash position (599} 3]
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DIRECTORS HREPORT

FURTHER GROUP FINANCIALS

RTL Group Value Added

The central performance indicator for assessing the
profitabiity from operations and return on invested
capital 1s RTL Group Value Added (RvA) RVA meas-
ures the profit realised above and beyond the appro-
pnate return on nvested capital This form of value
orentation 1s reflected in strategic investment and
portfolio planning — ncluding the management of
Group operations — and 1s the basis for senior
management compensation

AVA 15 the difference between net operating profit
after tax (NOPAT), defined as EBITA adjusted for a
uriform tax rate of 33 per cent, and cost of capitai
Cost of capitat 1s the product of the weighted aver-
age cost of capital (a uniform 8 per cent after taxes)
and invested capttal {operating assets less non-
interest-bearng operatng labilites) The present
value of cperatng leases 1S also taken into account
when calculating the invested capital

In 2014, RVA was €457 million (2013 €464 milion)

Main portfolo changes

On 7 January 2014, Groupe M6 acquired 51 per cent
of Best of TV SAS and Best of TV Benelux SPRL
{"Best of TV"} Best of TV has developed a leading
positton In France in distributing informercial and tele-
shopping products through major French retal
chang This acgustion enables Groupe M6 to
strengthen the position of its subsidiary, Home Shop-
png Service, In the home shopping and infomercial
business

On 26 March 2014, RTL Group acquired 75 per cent
of 435 Productions Holdings LLC and ts 100 per
cent affliates (“485 Productions”} 485 Productions
15 a US-based production entity speciaising in
unscripted, female-skewed docu-senes for cable
networks This acquisition enables FremantleMedia
to expand and diversify s core TV production busi-
ness internationally

On 1 September 2014, RTL Group acquired 70 8
per cent of SpotXchange Inc {652 per cent on a
fully diluted per share basis) and ts 100 per cent
affiliates (“SpotXchange™) SpotXchange 1s a leading
programmatic wideo advertising platform  The
acquistion of SpotXchange enables RTL Group to
enter a significantly growing — but stll evolving -
market and further enhances the Group'’s global
position m ontine video, especially with regard to
monetisation skills and technological competencies

On 29 October 2014, RTL Group acguired 100 per
cent of Econa Shopping GmbH (renamed to
Sparwelt GmbH), the leading operator of online cou-
poning portals in Germany With this acqusition
RTL Interactive GmbH has significantty strengthened
its position in the growing onkne couponing segment

On 1 December 2014 RTL Group gained the fult con-
trot of StyleHaul As of this date RTL Group holds a
97 per cent interest (94 per cent on a fully diluted per
share basis) in StyleHaul, the leading fashion, beauty
and Iifestyle mulh-channel network on Youtube

On 30 December 2014, RTL Group diuted its share-
holding in Radical Media to 35 per cent, resulting in
a loss on disposal of €18 million

Investments accounted

for using the equity method

The total contnbution of investments accounted for
using the equity method amounted to €47 milion
(2013 €117 milon) In 2013, the reported resuit
included the reversal of an imparment, totaling
€72 mithon, towards the associate Atresmeda
According to IFRS 11, joint ventures previously con-
soldated proportionally are now consolidated at
equity Accordingly, the 2013 comparatves have
been re-stated for thus effect

Gain/(loss) from sale of subsidianes,

other nvestments and re-measurement to far
value of pre-existing intarest 1n acquiree

In 2014 the Group recorded an income of €1 milton
(2013 income of €5 million} which includes the
re-measurement to farr value of the Group's pre-
existing interest i StyleHaul, in which the Group
increased its interest to 93 6 per ¢ent as of 1 Decem-
ber 2014 This re-measurement amounted to
€17 milion and 1s a non-cash gan Offsetting this
gain was a loss on disposal, amounting to €18 mil-
hon of the Group’s 28 per cent interest in the US
based company Radical Media and a dilution loss of
€5 millon iinked to the Group's shareholding in
Atresmedia

Interest income/ (expense)

Net interest expense amounted to €23 million
(2013 expense of €22 million) and 1s primarily due
to the interest charge on the Group's financial debt,
pension costs and other interest expenses
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Amortisation and impairment of fair value
adjustments on acquisitions of subsidianes

and joint ventures

An imparment loss totaling €88 milllon has been
recorded in the 2014 statements This charge 1s
pnmanty aganst the goodwill carried by the Group in
RTL Hungary, which has now been fully mpaired,
and 1s a direct result of a new advertising tax that
came into force on 15 August 2014 The charge
related to RTL Hungary amounts to €77 million A
further smaller impairment charge of €9 milion has
been recognised aganst the goodwil of Radical
Media, a US branded entertainment business owned
by FremantleMedia

The mparment and amortisaton loss totalling
€15 millon solely relates to the amortisaton and
impairment of far value adjustments on acquisiions
of subsidianes €9 million of this relates to an impair-
ment of iIntangible assets recegnised in a purchase
pnce allocation folowing the acquisition of the
Hunganan cable channels

Income tax expense
In 2014, the tax expenss was €288 milion (2013
expense of €302 million)

Profit attnbutable to RTL Group sharehoiders
The profit for the penod attnbutable to RTL Group
shareholders was €653 millon (2013 €870 mulion)

Earnings per share

Reported earnings per share, based upon
153,584,102 shares, was €4 25 (2013 €5 67 per
share, based upon 153,618,853 shares)

Own shares

RTL Group has an issued share captal of
€161,900,551 divided into 154,787,554 fully paid up
shares with no defined norminal value

RTL Group drrectly and indirectly hoids O 8 per cent
{2013 € 8 per cent} of RTL Group's shares

Profit appropriation (RTL Group SA)2

The statutory accounts of RTL Group show a profit
for the financial year 2014 of €328,520,730 (2013
€1,501,401,563) Taking nto account the share pre-
mium of €4,691,802,190 (2013 €4,691,802,190) and
the profit brougint forward of €649,053,229 {2013
€230,798,050), the amount available for distribution
15 €5,360,326,317 (2013 €6,037,466,168), net of an
ntenm dividend of €309,049,832 (€2 00 per share}
as decided by the Beoard of Directors of RTL Group
on 20 August 2014 and paid on 4 September 2014
(2013 €386,535,6351 € €2 50 per share)

Major related party transactions

The major related party transactions can be found
n note @ to the condensed consoldated internm
financial statements
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SEGMENTS

Year to Year to

Decernber December
2014 2013 Per cent
Revenue €m €m change
Mediengruppe RTL Deutschiand 2 047 1955 A7
Groupe M6 1205 1,374 57
FremantleMedia 1,486 1 525:1 2 6)
RTL Nederland 457 443 +20
RTL Beigium 199 209‘ {4 8)
RTL Radic (France) 166 175 651
Other segments 360 349 +32
Elminations {202) 211) na
Total revenue 5,808 5,824 03}

Year to Year to

December December
2014 2013 Per cent
EBITA €m £m change
Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland 650 619 +50
Groupe M6 209 20?_ +10
FremantleMadia 113 136 (16 9)
RTL Nederland 103 103 -
RTL Belgium 45 46 -
RTL Radi (France) 21 29 (27 8)
COther segments 3 8 (62 5)
Reported EBITA 1,145 1,148 03)

Year o Year o
Decernber December Peicentage
2014 013 paint
EBITA margins per cent per cent change
Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland 318 31 7 +0 1
Groupe M6 161 151 +10
FremantieMedia 78 89 (13}
RTL Nederland 225 230 0s)
RTL Belgum 231 220 +11
RTL Radio (France} 127 1686 B39
ATL Group 197 187 00
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Financ:al results

In 2014, the German net TV advertising market
was estimated to be up between 3 5 per cent and
4 0 per cent Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland's
revenue increased by 4 7 per cent to €2,047
milion (2013 €1,955 million), mainly dnven by
significantly higher TV advertising revenue

in the second half of the year and growing plat-
form revenue Accordingly, EBITA was up

from €619 millton in 2013 to €650 multion - an
increase of 5 0 per cent

Year to Year 1o

December Decamber
2ma 23 Per cent
£€m €m change
Revenue 2,047 1955 +47
EBITDA 665 634 +49
EBITA 650 618 +50

B VeX O gmm=+
ALY rRNTRO EEEra GEO

universum \ film

MEDIENGRUPPE RTL DEUTSCHLAND

Audience ratings

Dunng the reporting period, the combined average
audience share of Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland’s
channels decreased 1o 29 C per cent (2013 30 6 per
cent) in the target group of viewers aged 14 to 53
This was manly due to the fact that major sporting
events such as the Olympic Winter Games and the
Fifa World Cup were broadcast on the public chan-
nels However, the German RTL family of channels
remained ahead of its main commercial competitor
ProSiebenSati by 3 1 percentage points

RTL Telewision TV AUDIENCE SHARE
Source GIK Target 14-59 2010-2014 (%}
14 SEEEE——— 127
13 T 139
12 SEEE— 150
17 173
10 168

With an audience share of 12 7 per cent in the target
group of viewers aged 14 to 59 in 2014 (2013 13 9
per cent), RTL Television was the viewers' number
one choice for the 22nd consecutive year — 3 1 per-
centage points ahead of the second tighest-rated
channel, Satt Addtionally, RTL Television was the
onty channel to score a twe-digit audience share m
this demographic
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The most-watched broadcast on RTL Telewision in
2014 was the European Qualfier between Germany
and Ireland on 14 QOctober 2014, which attracted an
average 11 07 miflon viewers — an average audience
share of 34 9 per cent among viewers aged 14 to 59
Also popular were the boxing matches of Wladimir
Klitschko An average 354 per cent of the target
group of viewers aged 14 to 56 tuned in to the match
against Kubrat Pulev on 15 November

“With a very strong performance in

The comedy show lch bint ein Star — Hoit ruch hier the second half of the year,
raus! ('m A Celebnitly — Get Me Qut Of Here!) scored Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland
excellent audience figures The show, which was significantly grew its full-year
broadcast dally between 17 January and 1 February revenue and EBITA These record
2014, attracted an average 7 97 million viewers — an results were achieved in an ever
average audience share of 39 5 per cent in the target more competitive German

group of viewers aged 14 to 59 (2013 37 0 per cent} TV landscape This 1s why we will
Also on the internet, the show scored a new record continue to focus on our key
with 27 4 millon video views (2013 21 8 milion online strengths excellent entertainment,
video views) In autumn 2014, Das Supertatent (Got independent information - and a
Talent) had an average audience share of 201 per  strong presence of our brands across
cent among viewers aged 14 to 59 (2013 22 3 per all digital platforms and devices ”
cent) Complementing RTL Telewision's information

programmes, the investigative Tearn Wallraff caused ANKE SCHAFERKORDT

a stirin Germany It was awarded with a German TV CO-GEOQ, ATL Group,

Award (Deutscher Fernsehpreis) and was watched CEO, Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland

by an average 19 6 per cent of the target audience
Especially popular on the internet was Deutschiand
sucht den Superstar with 76 millon video views {up
20 per cent compared to 2013)

Vox TV AUDIENCE SHARE
Source GIK Target 14-59 2010-2014 {%)
14 67
13— 74
12— 75
11— 72
10— 74

In 2014, Vox's average audience share was 6 7 per
cent in the target group of viewers aged 14 to 59
(2013 7 4 per cent) One of the most popular shows
was Sing memnen Song — Das Tauschkonzert with
Xavier Naidoo which attracted an average 1 per
cent of target viewers The newly launched Die Hohfe
der Lowen was popular from the start With an
average audence share of 8 9 per cent In the target
group, Vox has already commissioned a second
season of the show The fourth season of Rizzol
& Isles was watched by an average 92 per cent
of viewers in the target group Dunng the day,
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Vox scored with Shopping Queen and its popular
host and designer Guido Mana Kretschmer, which
attracted an average daly audience of 8 6 per cent
of viewers aged 14 to 58

ATL Nitro almost doubled its audience share, attract-
Ing an average 1 6 per cent of viewers aged 14 to 59
(2013 09 per cent) With an audience share of
1 8 per cent in September and October 2014, the
channel recorded its best monthly audience shares
since Its launch

RTL I Tv AUDIENCE SHARE
Source GfK Target 14-58 2010-2014 (%)
14 —— 54
13— 58
12— 56
11  sm——— 50
10 =— 53

ATL Il recorded an average audence share of
5 4 per cent among viewers aged 14 to 59 {2013
58 per cent} Again, the access prime tme formats
Berlin — Tag & Nacht and Koln 50667 were among
the channel's most popular shows, attractng aver-
age audience shares of 8 3 per centand 6 9 per cent
among viewers aged 14 to 59 The Watking Dead
scored an average audience share of 10 O per cent
among viewers aged 14 to 59 In prime tme,
Game Of Thrones, Die Geissens — Eine schreckiich
glamourose Farmie! and Die Rewnanns — EBin
auBergewohniiches Leben proved popular

Super RTL TV AUDIENCE SHARE
Source GIX Target 3-13 (620 15h) 2010-2014 (%)
14 SR 197
173 233
12 T — 231
11 241
;8“ —— 228

The Disney Channel, launched in Germany in
January 2014, took some audience shares from the
existing children’s channels in Germany Despite thus,
Super RTL remained the most popudlar children’s
channel n Germany, with an audience share of
19 7 per cent in its target group of 3 to 13-year-olds
dunng the 600 to 20 15 tme slot (2013 23 3 per
cent}, on par with its competitor, Kika (19 7 per cent),
but ahead of Nick (9 8 per cent) and the Disney
Channel (8 3 per cent) The mowvies in pnme time
proved particulady popular The most-watched
movie on Super RTL was Snow Queen with an aver-
age audience share of 6 1 per cent among viewers
aged 14 to 59

The news channel N-TV attracted 10 per cent of
viewers aged 14 to 53(2013 1 0 per cent} Especially
popular were N-TV's morning news casts and
Teleborse, the chanrel's stock market reports With
an average 75 3 million visits per month, N-TV de
and the mobile offenngs of N-TV are regularly among
the top oniine news services N Germany

On 8 May 2014, Medengruppe RTL Deutschiand
launched the new pay-TV channel Geo Telewvtsion,
a partnership with Geo, the monthly magazine
oublished by Grurmer + Jahr The new channel
broadcasts high-qualty, award-wmning documenta-
nes on nature, technology, expleration, adventure
angd world events The channel 1s avalable on
Deutsche Telekom's IPTV platform Entertan and
complements the pay-TV channgis RTL Cnme,
RTL Living and Passion, which have been operating
successfully since 2006 These three special-interest
digital channels continued to grow steadily and are
among the leading pay-TV channels in Germany,
Austria and Switzerland, with over 4 8 mificn sub-
scribing households (2013 4 5 milkon)

National audience breakdown

Source GIK Target 14-59 2014 (%)
RTL Television 127

Vox 87

RTL I 54

Super RTL 16

N RTL Nitro 16
N-TV 10

Sat 1 96

Pro7 89

ZDF 87

ARD . 85

Kabel 1 51

Others 302
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Digital and diversification activities

In October, RTL Interactive acquired Sparwelt
(previously named Econa Shopping) The move fur-
ther strengthens the company’s online couponing
business, as Sparwelt operates curated advice and
recommendation platforms for cniine shopping sites
such as Sparwelt de 1t 1s the largest acquistion in
the history of RTL Interactive

In  October, Medengruppe RTL Deutschland
launched Blogwalk, a high-class online fashion and
Ifestyle magazine with video, content and photos
from 30 of the leading fashion bloggers in Germany
Throughout the year, RTL Interactive launched a total
of threa new Smart TV channels Dooloop, Fitness &
Yoga and Clipfish Serien

Mediengruppe RTL Deutschiand's family of catch-up
services, combined with the clip portal Chpfish de,
the Clipfish HbbTV channels and the unit’s channel
and thematic websites, recorded a total number of
1,090 mithon video views of professionally produced
content (2013 1,190 millon) 21 per cent of the video
views were generated with mobile devices — up
20 per cent year-on-year {2013 16 per cent) While
big shows still draw large numbers of video views,
lower overall onlne video views reflect decreasing
TV audience shares Overall i 2014 the online
offenngs of Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland reached
an average of 26 2 millon unique user aged 10 and
above per month
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GROUPE M6

Financial results

The French TV advertising market was estimat-
ed to be stable compared to the previous year
However, Groupe Mé&'s revenue was down to
€1,295 mithon in 2014 {2013 €1,374 million),
mainly due to lower TV advertising revenue and
the sale of Mistergooddeal EBITA increased

to €209 milion (2013 €207 milion), driven by
higher profit contnbutions from the company’s
diversification activities

Year to Year to

December December
2014 2m3 Pet cent
€m £tm change
Revenue 1,295 1374 5 ?1
EBITDA 27 319 +25
EBITA 209 207 +10

Audience ratings

In 2014, two major sport events (the Winter Olympic
Games and the Fifa World Cup) had a strong impact
on average audience shares in France In adghon,
the six new DTT channels launched in December
2012 continued to grow, reaching an average total
audience share of 3 8 per cent (2013 2 3 per cent),
further dnving fragmentaticn
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Groupe M6's combined audience share was 22 1 per
cent in the key commerciat target group of house-
wives under 50 (2013 22 5 per cent)

M6 TV AUDIENCE SHARE
Source Médiamétne Target housewves < 50 20102014 (%)
14 S ——— 159
13 162
12 SRR 170
11 172
10 T —— 165

M6 confirmed its status as the second most-
watched channel in France among housewves
under 50, sconng an average audience share of
15 9 per centn 2014 (2013 16 2 per cent) In terms
of total audience share, M6 remained the third maost
popular channel In France for the fourth consecutive
year with an audrence share of 10 1 per cent

L'Amour est dans le pré was once agan the most
watched prograrmme of the summer with an average
56 miikon viewers and an average audience share
of 34 & per cent In the target group For the fourth
consecutive year, the format made M6 the most-
watched channet among ali target groups on Mon-
day evenings In summer

In access pnme tme, the evening news programme
Le 19h45 continued to be the leading news show
among housewives under 50, with an average audi-
ence share of 22 6 per cent Scénes de Ménages
scored its best viewing figure since 2012 with an
average audience share of 21 4 per cent in the tar-
get group The series remained the most popular TV
show in access prime tme The newly launched Les
Reines du Shopping (Shopping Queen), together
with Obyectif Top Chef allowed M6 to increase its
audience share by 30 per cent dunng the second half
of the year, compared fc the first half

w9 TV AUDIENCE SHARE
Source Médamétne Target housewves < 50 2010-2014 (%)
14  w— 36
13 o 40
12 w— 42
11— 43
10 e 39

For the fourth consecutive year, W9 was the leading
pnme-time DTT channel in France among house-
wives under 50, attractng an average audience
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“In 2014, Groupe M6 pursued
its innovative strategy With strong
brands, diversified assets and
creative teams, we are ready to face
the chalienges of 2015 ”

NICOLAS DE TAVERNOST
Président du Directoire, Groupe M6

share of 3 6 per cent (2013 4 Q per cent) Underining
its postioning as a ‘mini-generalist’ channel, W3
scored high ratings in vanous genres, including
movies, magazines, factual ertertanment formats,
reality TV shows and live broadcasts of Uefa Europa
League football matches The broadeast of the
Europa League match between Lyon and Turn was
watched by 2 milion viewers, making 1t the most-
watched show on French DTT in 2014, and attract-
ing the best audience for W3 since the channel's
launch

Of the six OTT channels faunched in December 2012,
Gter was the leading channel in the target group of
housewives under 50 with an average audience
share of 1 2 per cent {2013 0@ per cent) 703,000
viewers tuned in for the mowvie Jumany, making it the
channel's most-watched broadcast in 2014

Pans Premiere was the most-watched pay TV chan-
nel among the total audience and the most popular
general-nterest pay-TV channel in prime tme  Teva
was the undisputed leading pay-TV channel in the
target group of housewvas under 5C, confirming its
status as women's favourite premium channet Due
to a very competitve environment, Groupe M6
decided to close two music channels (M6 Music
Black and M6 Music Club} in order to focus its efforts
on M6 Music and its M6 Music Player device Addi-
tionally, Groupe M6 discontinued TF6, the channel
co-owned and co-operated with TF1

DIRECTORS REPORT

Digital and dversification activities

At the end of 2014, M6 Web recorded more than
1 hillon onkne video views, while the network of M6
Web reached an average audience of 1t milion
unique users per month across its network (2013 12 1
million) — excludng mobile usage The company’s
apps for IPhone, IPad, Android and Windows phones
had been downloaded more than 26 million tmes

In March 2014, M6 Web launched four new free
digital channels available on its web platform eplay
Stones, Crazy Kitchen, Sxiéme Styles and Comic
By the end of the year, 6play — avalable on both
computer and tefevision via virtually all cable, IPTV
and satellte packages in France — had recorded over
800 milicn videc views, while the mobile app had
been downloaded more than 18 milion tmes The
M6 Mobile by Orange service was stable at 2 8 mul-
lion customers In 2014

In January, through its subsidiary Home Shopping
Service (Ventadis Division), Groupe M6 finalised the
acquisition of a 51 per cent equrty stake in Best of
TV, a French company that imports and distributes
products sold wvia home shopping to points of sale
The integration of Best of TV generated significant
operational synergies

On 3t March, the Group scld the entre share
capital of Mistergooddeal to Darty Group, in accord-
ance with the announcement made on 18 Decem-
ber 2013 2014 was also marked by the continued
operational integration of Luxview and Optilens, the
acgursition of Printic and the continued development
of MonAlburmPhoto

National audience breakdown

Sourck Médiamétng Target housewnves < 50 2014 (%)
M6 159

Wg 36

Gter 13

TF 250

v France 2 101
France 3 42

D8 41

TMC 37

NT1 27

Canal Plus 23

France 4 18

Cthers 253
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FREMANTLEMEDIA

Financial results

Revenue of FremantieMedia - RTL Group’s
production and brand explotation arm —
decreased to €1,486 milion in 2014

(2013 €1,525 million), due to the cancellation
of X Factor US and lower revenue from
Amencan Idol Accordingly, EBITA decreased
to €113 milion {2013 €136 million)

Year to Year 1o

December December
2014 2013 Per cent
£€m £€m change
Revenue 1,486 1525 28
EBITDA 149 156 45)
EBITA 113 136 (16 9)
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Strategy

Having completed 1ts strategic realgnment and
restructure, FremantieMedia has focussed on the
implementation of 11s new strategy In additren to
bulding a scalabte digtal operation and developing
a prme-tme scrnipted business, FremantleMedia
continues to dnve its core business by investing n
and growing its content ppeline Its production
hours ared reached a five-year high of 10,084 hours
In 2014, up 18 per cent on the previous year (2013
8,499), while the number of hours of new prime
time drama produced in 2014 grew by 28 per cent
over the previous year from 100 hours In 2013 to
128 hours

Production business

In 2014, FremantieMedia's global network of praduc-
tion companies was respensible for roling cut more
than 48 formats and anng 342 productions world-
wide The business also distnbuted more than
20,000 hours of content in over 200 terntores,
making FremantleMedia one of the largest creators
and distnbutors of award-winning international pro-
gramme brangs In the world

In March 2014, FremantleMedia acquired a majonty
stake in 495 Productions, a leadng US-based
realty production company renowned for its cutting
adge, female-skewed programming  The acquisition
extends and complements FremantieMedia’s pro-
gramming FremantleMedia’s Scandinavian produc-
ticn company Miso Film, expanded ts footprint by
opening a new office In Sweden to produce both
feature films and TV senes for the Scandinavian and
international market

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2014




Non-scnpted

In Apnt 2014, Guinness World Recards officially
named Got Talent ‘The Worlds Most Successful
Realty TV Format® ever — the show having been
commussioned in an impressive 58 temtones world-
wide The format has continued to travel and s now
In 66 markets The eighth season of Bntan's Got
Talent scored an average audience share of 43 1 per
cent on 1TV, more than doubling the prime-time
average 12 4 million viewers tuned in to the finale,
making It the broadcaster's most watched show of
the year Amernca’s Got Talent continued to be the
USAs most watched show dunng the summer,
averaging 10 3 millon viewers and scornng a total
audience share of 9 7 per cent on NBC

The Pnce Is Right continued to rank as the number
one daytme show inthe 2014/15 season, winning an
average audience of 5 1 million viewers (2+) and an
audience share of 12 8 per cent for the season o
date Famuly Feud hit & new high on 10 November
2014, attaining an average household rating of 6 4 per
cent — the show's highest performance for over
20years Farmy Feud s the number one game show
in first-run syndication for the 2014/15 season to date
among the key demographic of women aged 25 fo
54, outperforming Jeopardy and Wheel of Fortune

Some 23 versions of The X Factor were broadcast in
2014, with four new markets (South Africa, Vietnam,
Czech/Slovak, Georgia) premienng the format for the
first ume There were 14 international versions of
Idols 1n 2014, nciudng Amencan Idol, which
remained the number one senes on Fox, winming an
average audience share of viewers aged 14 to 43 of
7 9 per cent, exceeding Fox's pnme-time average by
49 per cent

Number of hours broadcast

Programmes 014 2013
New — _ 3,194 =m 2,070
Returning weswmmmm—n 6,900 snme—— 6429
Total ——— 10,094 — 8,499

Breakdown of hours broadcast by main markets

2014 w013
USsA aEmssamEnn 1,006 SEEE— 967
Germany e— 753 enm—— 790
France oo 461: S——— _ 608
UK - 326 === 280
ltaly - 245 m— " Tasg
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“We have made good progress
against our strategy 1n 2014
as we scaled up investment In our
creative pipeline, digital and
format development across scripted
and non-scripted, while maintaining
our core business to deliver
improved revenues 1n the future
We look forward to building on
these achievements with continued
Investment 1n 2015 7

CECILE FROT-COUTAZ
CEQ, FremantleMedia
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The Farmer Wants a Wife continues to be the world's
most popular dating show Local versicns aired n 14
markets in 2014 In France the ninth senes of L'amour
ast gans fe pré ranked as M&’s highest rated enter-
tainment show for the seventh year running with an
average audience share of 34 6 per cent in the target
group of housewves under 50 Local version were
also popular in Germany {Bauver sucht Frau) and the
Netherands (Boer zoekt Viouw}, where it remains the
country's highest-rated show

Scnpted

With pnme time scripted drama beng a key focus for
the business, FremantleMedia saw an increase of 48
per cent In the number of new pnme time drama
titles ainng across the year, nsing from 31 10 2013 t0
461N 2014

Launching its second season in Australia, Wentworth
was recommissioned for a third season even before
the second series ared, while local versions of
the show have been produced for the Netherlands
and Germany In the Netherlands, the local version
Celbiok-H was 5BS 6's highest-rated drama of 2014
In the commercial target group of shoppers aged 20
to 49 It was watched by an average t 1 milton view-
ers and recorded a 15 7 per cent share in the target
group

Returning to UK screens after a 16-year absence,
Birds OFf A Feather premiered to an audience of
9 5 millon viewers on 2 January 2014 making it ITV’s
highest rated sitcom launch in over 10 years The
show recorded an average audience share of
28 6 per cent

In the UK, nnovative British procedural cnme drama
Suspects ared from February to March 2014 on
Channel 5, winning an average audience of 1 1 mil-
llon viewers and an average audience share of
58 per cent, 23 per cent higher than Channel 5's
prime time average

UFA's histonical theatncal release Der Medicus {The
Physician) has attracted 3 6 millon mowie-goers in
Germany since 1ts launch in December 2013, while
the TV debut n December 2014 drew an audience
of 75 millon Milions more have seen it n Spain,
Austna and Switzerland

Long-running daytme scnpted shows continue to
perform well Gute Zetten, Schlechte Zeiten was
once agan Germany's highest rated drama of the
year with an average 2 8 millon viewers  In Hungary,
Between Friends remains the country's most popu-
lar drama, averaging a total audience share of 26 1
per cent

In Australa, long running daly drama Neighbours
again ranked first i its tme stot across all dgital free
tc arr channels The UK ainngs continued te boost
Channel 5's daytime share 1n 2014, with & total audr-
ence share of 6 3 per cent share sn the 17 30 slot

Kids & Family Entertainment

Kids & Family Entertanment implemented uts plan to
build global franchises with the international rollout of
core pre-school brands wath some success Tree Fu
Tom has now been broadcast in 123 terntones while
Kate & Mim-Mim was sold 10 11 new markets in
2014 across North Amenca, Europe and Asia

Digital

InJune 2014, FremantieMedia North Amenca (FMNA)
launched its onginal digtal production studio, Tiny
Riot, to produce onginal digital content for partners
such as Vice Media, StyleHaul, BroadbandTy, as
well as for FMNA's TV properties including Farmily
Feud and Celebnty Name Game

In February 2014, FremantlieMedia and Vice Media,
the global youth media company, announced a ven-
ture to create a multi channel foed platform for the
milennial audience Munchies was subsequently
launched in Apnl at Mip TV Content for the platform
1S being created by FremantleMedia digital teams in
the US, UK and Germany, with more terntones to
follow In less than a year, the channel has attracted
nearly 35 million views and 330,000 subscnbers

In December 2014, FremantleMedia ncreased its
non-controling nterests in Divimove to 51 per cent
This followed a successful year which saw Divimove
become Eurcpe’s leading multi-channel network,
operating 1,700 partner channels that attract 900 mil-
llon views per month and 80 mithion subscribers

FremantieMedia's Youtube presence continued to

reach new heights in 2014

u FremantleMedia content registered @ G billion views
In 2014 (2013 6 7 billion) and a total of more than
20 million subscnbers

® FremantleMedia now has over 200 channgls In
40 different terntones There were 52 new channel
launches 1n the reporting penod, including Family
Feud 1n Australa, Celebnty Name Garne n the
United States, and channels for local versions of
Take Me Out 1n South Afnca and Thaland
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RTL NEDERLAND

Financial results

The Dutch TV advertising market was

estimated to be up 2 1 per cent year-on-year
RTL Nederland’s revenue was up 2 0 per cent
year-on-year to €457 milion (2013 €448 million),
mainly drniven by higher platform revenue and
digital revenue EBITA was stable at €103 mulion
{2013 €103 milhon), mainly thanks to the
positive one-off effect from the termination fee
of the mobile provider Sizz, a co-operation
between RTL Ventures and Vodafone

Year to Year 1o

December Decermber
2014 203 Per cent
&m €m changa
Revenue 457 448 +20
EBITDA 10 110 -
EBITA 103 103 -
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Audience ratings

Durng the reporting period, RTL Nederland’s chan-
nels reached a combined pnme-time audience share
of 32 4 per cent In the target group of viewers aged
20 to 49, shightly down from 33 5 per cent in 2013 —
rmanly due to the broadcast of the Fifa World Cup
and Qlympic Winter Games on the public channels
Despite this decrease, RTL Nederland'’s channels
remained clearly ahead of the public broadcasters
(26 6 per cent} and the SBS group (19 8 per cent)

RTL 4 TV AUDIENCE SHARE
Source SKO Target shopoers 20-49 (18—24h) 2010-2014 (%)
14— 193
13 AR 199
12 192
11 R 201
10— 183

RTL Nederland's flagship channel, RTL 4, scored an
average pnme-time audience share of 19 3 per cent
in the target group of shoppers aged 20 to 49 (2013
19 8 per cent) On Fridays, RTL 4 retaned its very
strong postion with the talent theme, includng
shows such as The Vioice OF Holland {average audi-
ence share 38 5 per cent) and Alles Mag Op Viydag
{27 5 per cent) The channel's access prime-time
ne-up — which Includes RTL Boufevard, Goede
Tiden, Siechte Tiden and RTL Nieuws - delvered
strong ratings once agan Drama series such as
Divorce and Neuwe Buren also performed well,
attracting average audience shares cf 33 0 per cent
and 28 8 per cent, raspectively

RTL 5 TV AUDIENCE SHARE
Source SKO Target 20-34 (18—24h) 20102014 [%)
14 oo—— 64
13 wa— 68
12  SE—— 70
11— 94
10 e——— 88

RTL 5 acheved a prnme-time audence share of
6 4 per cent In its key target group of viewers aged
2010 34 (2013 6 8 per cent) Once again, Dutch pro-
ductions were the most popular programmes on the
channel On Thursdays, Expeditie Robinsor scored
an average audience share of 28 0 per cent
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RTL 7 TV AUDIENGE SHARE
Source SKO Target men 2045 (18-24n} 2010-2014 (%)
14 —— 66
1.?: I 78
12 —— 72
11 — 78
19 R 71

The men's channel RTL 7 scored an average pnme-

“Qur family of channels managed time audience share of 66 per cent among male
to retain market leadership 1n 2014 viewers aged 20 {0 49 (2013 7 8 per cent) Popular
and to stay well ahead of the programmes included the Darts World Cup 2014 in
competition, despite the success January with an average audience share of 32 5 per
of the Dutch football team duning cent, and Uefa Europa League football matches
the Worid Cup We have experienced 28 7 per cent of target viewers tuned in to the Europa
strong growth in our digital League final on 14 May 2014
activities, which resulted in
an increase in online display and RILS TV AUDIENCE SHARE
video revenues Woe have Source SKO Targel women 2049 (18 - 24h) 20102014 (%)
successfully turned around our 14 v 35
{ive entertainment activities 13— 35
and capitahsed on our ongoing 12 wo— 30
film inveastments ” 11— i 33
10— 32

BERT HABETS

CEO, RTL Nederland The women’s channel RTL 8 aftracted an average
prme-time audience share of 3 5 per cent of women
aged 20 to 49 {2013 3 5 per cent) With 4 9 per cent
of target wewers tuning 1n dunng August, RTL 8
scored the highest monthly audience share since its
launch Cnme senes such as the CSf franchise and
Bones have especially improved the channel’s per-
formance on Saturday and Sunday nights

Since March, the digital pay-TV channels RTL Lounge
and RTL Cnme have been included in the Dutch
audience measurement Both scored an average

;‘::";:':”d'e”“ breakdown audience share of 0 04 per cent In the target group
et 20-49 18-240 e of viewers aged 20 to 48 On average, RTL Lounge
RTL 4 187 registered a reach of 49 milton viewers, while
RILS5 57 RTL Cnme reached 3 5 milion viewers The children's
RTL 7 52 channel, ATL Telekids, attracted 3 8 milion viewers
RTL B 28 aged 6 and above inits core target group of children
N Nederland 1 175 aged 3 to 8, the reach was 682,000
SBS B 89
Veronica 60
Nederland 3 57
Net 5 50
Nederland 2 33
QOthers 212
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Digital and diversification activities

RTL Nederland’s platforms and partners generated a
total number of 763 millon video views 1IN 2014 — up
18 7 per cent from 643 millianin 2013 RTL Nederland's
network of websites (excluding syndication partners)
generated a total 519 millon video views n 2014
{2013 547 million) The most popular formats were
Goede Tiden, Slechte Tiden, The Bold And The
Beautiful, RTL. Nieuws and The Voice Of Holland The
rapid growth of mobife video views 1s demonstrated
by the fact that RTL. Nederlands’ mobile apps gener-
ated around 80 per cent of all onfine video views in
2014 (2013 53 per cent)

As part of its strategy RTL Nederland continued to
invest In the VOD-platforms Videoland, NL Ziet and
RTL XL In Jure Videoland Unbmited was launched
For a monthly subscription fee, users get unimited
access to movies and senes Even before the
go-hve, mterest was high, with 150,000 prospective
customers registering for the new platfiorm

Another successful business unit of RTL Nederland
1s film ventures International bleckbusters The Woif
Of Walf Strest and Gooische Viouwen 2, based on
the popular RTL 4 series Gooische Vrouwen, were
two big hits in the Netherlands With more than
2 million wisitors since its premiere in Cecember,
Goaische Vrouwen 2 was the most popular film of
2014 in the Netherlands

On 2 December 2014, RTL Ventures announced that
it will increase its sharehoiding in Dutch Learning
Cornpany (DLC), a provider of online courses and the
founder of the Netherlands’ largest online portal for
first aid courses, ledereen EHBO, from 37 3 per cent
tc 79 per cent Later that monih RTL Ventures
announced to increase us interest in Future Whiz
Media (Squla), the leading children's learning techno-
logy company As a resuit, RTL Ventures’ total inter-
est in Sgula grew from 20 3 per cent to 37 3 per cent

DIRECTORS® REPORT
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RTL BELGIUM

Financial results

Against the background of a TV advertising
market that was estimated to have decreased
by 2 8 per cent year-on-year, RTL Belgium’s
revenue was down by 4 B per cent to

€199 million {2013 €209 million} due to lower
revenue from the TV business EBITA was
stable, reflecting cost savings in RTL Belgium's
TV business during the reporting penod

Year to Year io

Oscember December
208 2013 Per cent
&m &m change
fevenue 199 209 “8g
EBITDA 50 51 20
EBITA 46 46 -

RIL?TVI ERd UG Framan

Audience ratings

With a combined pnme-time audwence share of
35 2 per cent among shoppers aged 18 to 54 {2013
36 4 per cent), ATL Beigrum's family of TV channels
mantaned its position as the market leader in
French-speaking Belgum - despite the fact that
the Fifa World Cup was broadcast by the competi-
tion RTL Belgium's lead over the pubiic channels
remained high at 14 7 percentage points

RTL-TVI TV AUDIENCE SHARE
Source Aucmétne Target shoppers 38—54 (17-23h) 2070-2014 (%)
14 255
t . 296

1O 300

The flagship channel RTL-TVI recorded an audience
share of 25 5 per cent in pnme time (2013 26 6 per
cent} — 9 4 percentage points ahead of the number
two channel, French broadcaster TF1, and 11 3 per-
centage ponis ahead of the Belgian publc broad-
caster La Une The most watched broadcast of the
year on RTL-TV| was a special edition of the evening
news RTL info on 15 December 2014, which scored
a total audience share of 49 0 per cent Alsc popular
was the broadcast of Albert 80 ans, son iémoignage
pour Phistorre on 9 June 2014 which attracted a total
audience share of 47 3 per cent Thanks to changes
n the afiernoon schedule in September and the
replacement of the teleshopping window, RTL-TVI
ncreased its audience share among shoppers aged
18 to 54 1n this timesiot to 19 ¢ per cent (September
to December 2013 6 2 per cent)

Club RTL TV AUDIENCE SHARE
Source Audimétne Target men 18-54 (17 =230 2M0-2014 (%l
14 EEEE——— 69
1'3- ——— ) 74
;2“ — ) 64
1:1_ I : 55
10" S 55
Plug RTL TV AUGIENCE SHARE
Source Audmétne Target 15-34 {17-230) 2010-2014 (%)
14 m—— 49
13— 45
12 num— 38
1 1“ — ) ) 34
10— 38
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Club RTL recorded a pnme-time audience share of
69 per cent among male viewers aged 18 to 54
(2013 7 4 per cent} Football remans one of the
most popular broadcasts on the channel, sconng an
average audience share of 20 5 per cent among men
aged 18 to 54 Plug RTL reported a prme-tme audi-
ence share of 4 9 per cent among 15 to 34-year-old
viewers (2013 4 5 per cent} The most popular pro-
grammes were Qur veut epouser mon fils?, Rising
Star and the 11™ seascn of Nouvelle Star

According to the latest CM audience survey by the
Belgian Centre d’Information sur les Médias in 2014,
Bel RTL and Radio Contact achieved audience
shares of 13 9 per cent (2013 152 per cent} and
15 3 per cent (2013 15 3 per cent), respectively

Digital and diversification activities

In 2014, the number of wvidec views across
RTL Belgium's websites increased to more than
117 milion {2013 103 milken), drven by news,
football content and major TV shows On a dally
basis, RTL be increased the numier of unique wisi-
tors to reach 266,741 1N 2014 {2013 230,000) Le Jeu
Connect confrmed viewers' interest for a great sec-
ond screen expenence In May, RTL Belgium
launched Maradio be a unigue player offering listen-
ers access to ail the Belgian French-speaking radio
stations in one place

French-speaking Belgium
audience breakdown

Soure Augimétne Target shoppers 18-54 {17-23h) 2014 (%)
RTL-TVI 255
Club RTL 58
Plug RTL 39
TF1 161
La Une 142
La Deux 63
AB3 56
France 2 47
France 3 23
Others 156

DIRECTORS REFPORT

“In 2014, with RTL Info,
RTL Belgium strengthened its
indisputable position as
news leader due to heavy
investments and a high degree
of professionalism
in TV, radio, apps and onlhine ”

PHILIPPE DELUSINNE
CEOQ, RTL Belgium
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RTL RADIO (FRANCE)

Financial results

Throughout 2014, the net radio advertising
market in France was estimated to be down

2 2 per cent compared to the same penod

n 2013 Total revenue of the French RTL radio
family decreased to €166 milion (2013

€175 million), while EBITA was down to

€21 millron (2013 €29 million), mainly reflecting
lower advertising revenues inked to market
decrease and lower audience shares of the
flagship station

Year to Year to

December December
2014 2013 Per cent
Em £€m change
Revenue 166 175 51
EBITDA 25 33 24 2)
EBITA 21 29 (27 6}

Ml S

Audience ratings

The French ATL radio family mantained its market
leadership with a combined audience share of
18 0 per cent (2013 18 3 per cent) The three sta-
tions — RTL Radio, RTL 2 and Fun Radio ~ continued
to lead over their main commarcial cormpetitors, the
radio family of NRJ (15 3 per cent) and Lagardére
(13 1 per cent)

ATL Radio AUDIENGE SHARE
Source Médiamétre Target 13+ 2010-2014 {%)
14 e 13
13— i 119
12 N —— 1186
11— i 121
10 S—— 124

for the 11th consecutve year, RTL Radio was the
country’s number one radio station With an average
audience share of 11 3 per cent {2013 11 9 per cent)
the station remained ahead of its closest competitor,
France Inter, by 2 3 percentage ponts and was
the only French radio station with an audience share
of over 10 per cent The cumulated audence of
RTL Radic was 60 milon listeners daly (2013
& 2 milion)

Fun Radio AUDIENCE SHARE
Source Médiamétne Target housewnves < 50 2010-2014 (%}
14 o 38
13— 36
12— 38
11— 42
10— 41
RTL 2 AUDIENCE SHARE
Source Médameétne Target 13+ 2010-2014 (%)
147 | 29
13— _ 28
12 = 29
1 — 29
10 = 28

Fun Radio registered an audience share of 3 8 per
cent (2013 3 6 per cent} and a cumulated audience
of 36 millon lsteners per day (2013 3 5 milion),
making it the number three music radio station in
France RTL 2 had a share of 2 9 per cent (2013 2 8
per cent) and a cumulated audience of 2 5 mulon lis-
teners per day {2013 2 5 million)
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Digital and dwersification activities

Throughout the year, RTL Net conducted an ambi-
tious programme to recrganise all digital produc-
tions of RTL Radio, Fun Radio and RTL 2 The first
step was to relaunch RTL fr in Jure According to
the Mediametnie/NetRatngs study, ATL fr reached
31 millon unigue wistors per month dunng 2014
(2013 2 6 milion), improwing its ranking to become
one of the 15 most visited French news websites
With a lead of 683,000 unique visitors on the second-
placed radic ste (2013 456,000 unique wvistors),
RTL fr remains the undisputed leader of radio sites
in France and the only one to feature in the top 20
news sites

National audience breakdown

Source Mégiamdire Target 13+ 2014 (%)
General mierast radio networks
RTL M3
France Inter a0
Europe 1 .78

V MusiC radia networks

targetng young isterers
Fun Radio 38
NRJ 74
Skyrock 38
Music radio networks
targeting acuits
RTL 2 29
Nostalgie 39
RFM 31
Chene FM 27
Cther radios 443

DIRECTORS REPORT

“2014 was a turming point In
RTL Radio France’s history
Significant changes were made In
the management team and n
the programming grid Most notably,
replacing the anchorman of
iconic show Les Grosses Tétes,
hosted for 37 years
by Philippe Bouvard, was a
great challenge But these
moves were fundamental
for our station and the results
are above expectations ”

CHRISTOPHER BALDELLI
CEOQ, RTL Radio (France}
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OTHER SEGMENTS

This segment compnses the fully consolidated
businesses ATL Hungary, RTL Hrvatska
{Croatia), RTL Group’s Luxembourgish
activities, the German radio business,

UFA Sports and the Spanish investment
accounted for using the equity method,
Atresmedia in Spain Additionally, this
segment includes RTL Group’s digital assets
SpotXchange, BroadbandTV and StyleHaul
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ATL Hungary After decreasing for five years, the
Hunganan net TV advertising market grew by an estt-
mated 4 6 per cent in 2014 Total consolidated reve-
nue of RTL Hungary was up to €102 millien {2013
€100 million} manty due to the good performance of
RTL Hungary's cable channels

Due to the impact of the new advertising tax,
RTL Group has fully mpared its total goodwill on
ATL Hungary (€77 miion) The Group also had to
impatir a number of non-current and current assets,
under IFRS rules, for €18 millon These mpairments,
recorded aganst the EBITA of RTL Hungary,
amounted to €9 million Followng these smpatr-
ments, RTL Hungary reported an EBITA of minus €1
milion (2013 €15 milion} For more information
please see note 7 2 to the consolidated financial
statements

RTL Kiub TV AUDIENCE SHARE
Source AGS Hungary Target 18-49 {pnme time) 2010-2014 (G4
14 208
13 A —— 238
12 247
11 TR 20 §
10 291

The combined pnme-tme audence share of the
RTL family of channels in the key demographic of 18
to 49-year-old viewers was 36 6 per cent (2013
380 per cent) The prme-time audience share of
HTL Kiub decreased to 20 8 per cent (2013 238 per
cent} though the profit centre's flagship channel
remained the clear market leader, 6 4 percentage
points ahead of its main commercial competitor TV2
(2013 lead of 8 4 percentage paints)
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The most watched programmes were once agan
X-Faktor with an average audience share of 30 7 per
cent in the target group, the dally soap Baratok kozt
{Between Friends) with an audience share of 24 0 per
cent, and Epel-Nappal Budapest (Budapest — Day
And Night) with an audience share of 23 9 per cent
After rescheduling and repositioning the main news
programme Hiradd, the show regained leadership of
all news broadcasts s;n Hungary — with an average
audence of 235 per cent in December 2014
{December 2013 20 9 per cent)

RTL Hungary's cable channels achieved a combined
prnme-time audience share of 15 9 per cent among
viewers aged 18 to 49 {2013 14 1 per cent) With a
prime-tme audience share of 6 1 per cent n the
target group (2013 55 per cent), Cool was once
agan the leading cable channel n Hungary The
channel’'s most watched show was the movie Avatar
with an audience share of 14 2 per cent in the target
group The most watched programme on Film Plusz
—which scored an average audience share of 5 5 per
cent in the target group (2013 55 per cent) — was
The Expendables 2 with an audience share of 15 3
per cent On ATL I, the most watched programme
was the sixth season of Valo Vilag with an average
audience share of 8 7 per cent in the target group of
viewers aged 18 to 49

The channel's catch-up TV service, RTL Most, gen-
erated a total of 132 millon video views in 2014
{2013 79 milien) RTL Hungary's online portfalio s
the biggest local TV online videc portfolic with owned
and kcensed content

Nattonal audience breakdown

Source AGB Hungary Target 15-49 (pnme time) 2014 (%)
RTL Kiub 208

Cool 61

Film Plusz 55

RTL I z24

w V2 144
MTV 1 53

Viasat 3 38

Others 417

DIRECTORS REFORT

“2014 has been another very
successful year for RTL Hungary.
Despite adverse conditions —
such as the new advertising tax — we
have continued to build our
portfolio of channels with a range
of highly popular shows and
once again established RTL Klub’s
newscast Hiraddé as the most
popular and important source
of news in the country.”

DIRK GERKENS
CEOQ, RTL Hungary
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*2014 was marked by
stable market conditions in Croatia
We built on this by expanding our
family of channels with the launch of
RTL Kockica and by further
expanding our digital offering

HENNING TEWES
CEQ, ATL Hrvatska

RTL Hrvatska In Croata, the advertising market was
estmatad to be up 4 1 per cent Totat revenue of
RTL Hrvatska was up to €35 millon (2013 €33 mil-
lion), while EBITA remained stable at break-even

RTL Hrvatska's channels achieved a combined
pnme-tme audience share of 25 0 per cent in the
target group of viewers aged 18 to 49 (2013 27 9 per
cent) - this decrease was manly due to ongoing
fragmentation of the market and the impact of the
Fifa World Cup

RTL Teievizija TV AUDIENCE SHARE
Source AGB Niglsen Media Research Target 18-49 (orime ime) 2010-2014 (%)
14— 177
13 206
12 219
T1 233
10 273

The flagship channel RTL Telewizija celebrated its
tenth anriversary in 2014 The channel's prme-tme
audience share was 17 7 per cent {2013 206 per
cent) Local production formats remained a vital part
of the programme  Th, dva, jedan - kuhigy!, an ongi-
nal project by RTL Televiziia, was one of the most
watched formats during 2014 The show — which
offers tradiional recipes and ways to prepare local
food — attracted an average 22 5 per cent of the
viewers aged 18 to 49

The game show Pet na Pet (Family Feud) recorded
an average audience share of 22 2 per cent In access
prime tme In August 2014, RTL Televiza launched
a new seres called Vatre wanyske, produced by
FremantleMedia Creatia, which was watched by an
average 21 3 per cent of viewers In the target group
The news format RTL Danas remaned popular, with
an average audience share of 26 7 per cerit

RTL 2 recorded a prime-time audience share of 6 2
per cent (2013 7 3 per cent) US sitcoms continued
to be a wvital part of the channel's offering, with Big
Bang Theory, Moderm Farmily, Two And A Half Men
and The Simpsons among the most popular seres
The children's channel RTL Kogkica, launched on
11 January 2014, achieved an average audience
share of 17 2 per cent among children aged 4 to 14
between 700 and 2000 The channel’s program-
ming 15 fully adjusted to children’s daily activities and
segmented into three separate units morning shows
for pre-school children, afternoon shows for school
children, and evening shows for young people and
the whole family

In 2014, RTL Hrvatska's web properties generated
more than 11 milion online video views {2013 11 mil-
lion) of which over 4 miion were long-form content
offered through the catch-up TV platform RTL Sada
RTL Hrvatska remained the market leader for digital
video advertising in Croatia in 2014, with an estimated
market share of over 40 per cent During the year,
RTL Hrvatska continued its strategy to Increase the
channel’s presence through web verticals, faunching
two new properties — uftrafit hr, dedicated tc fitness
and nutrition, 1N May, and mdizayn hr, dedicated to
home mprovement and decoration, in November

RTL hr apps on 10S and Android had been down-
loaded over 310,000 times by the end of 2014, while
the RTL Sada second screen app on 10S was
downloaded mare than 17,000 times Additionally,
RTL Hrvatska's properties on social media platforms
had gathered more than 440,000 fans by the end
of 2014

National audience breakdown
Source AGB Niglsen Medsa Research Target 18-49 (pnme tima) 2014 (%)

RTL Televizija 177
RTL 2 62
RTL Kockica 11
Nova 275
v HTY 2 109
HTV 1 83
Doma 71
Cthers 212
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In 2014, RTL was once agan the leading meda
brand in the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg Combin-
ing #s TV, radio and internet actwtes, the
RATL Létzebuerg media famity achieved a daily reach
of 82 Q per cent {2013 83 2 per cent) of all Luxern-
bourgers aged 12 and over

RTL Radio Letzebuerg is the station ksteners turn to
for news and entertainment, with 186,30C tuning n
each weekday (2013 199,200 lsteners} The TV
channel RTL Tété Letzebuerg attracts 136,900 view-
ers each day (2013 147,100 viewers per day), repre-
senting a prime-tme audience share of 48 3 per cent
of Luxembourgish viewers aged 12 and over, Mon-
day to Fnday, 19 00 to 20 00 (2013 47 7 per cent)

ATL lu continues to be the country’s most visited
website, with a dally reach of 33 8 per cent among
Luxembourgers aged 12 and over (2013 301 per
cent) The site was expanded cunng 2014 to include
sections featuring RTL Letzebuerg's popular TV and
radip programmes

Dunng 2014, RTL Télé Letzebuerg developed the
sports contents on its TV channels In addition to the
Champion's League, RTL Letzebuerg has succeeded
in ganing the nghts for the Eurcpean Qualifiers
with a large focus on the national team All the
main cychng events around the world featunng
Luxembourgish racers were covered live by RTL Tele
Letzebuerg, including Tour de France and the spring
classics

Overall, together with daily and weekly sports news,
Ive coverage of basketball games, tenmis tourna-
ments and other big natonal events, more than 200
hours of sports content have been produced on
RTL Télé Létzebuerg in 2014

RTL Létzebuerg DAILY REACH
Source TNS ILRes Punmedia 2014 Tanget 12+ 2014 (%)
RTL Radio Letz - t— 528
RTL Télé Letz*  ———— _aaz
RTL tu — 338

RTL Létzebuerg —— 52 O

Incluaing Den 2 RTL

DIRECTORS REPORT

“In 2014, RTL was once again
the leading media brand In
the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg,
reaching B2 0 per cent of
the Luxembourgish population
every day.”

ALAIN BERWICK
CEQ, RTL L&tzebuerg

BCE In 2014, Lagardére Active, a major French
media player, commissioned RTL Group’s technical
services provider BCE to operate its “Eurcpe 1" long
wave high power transmitter site BCE set up a digital
transmitter infrastructure fully controlled and moni-
tored remotely

In the UK, BCE installed a muth-playout and postpro-
duction infrastructure for Viasat For FremantieMedia,
it managed the transfer of all IT equpment from
Stephen Street to a datacentre in London and to
Luxembourg for back-up reasons

BCE was also In charge of the engineenng and winng
of EVS’ new headguarters in Belgium, and Edradio’s
new local area network (LAN) installation in France

At the last IBC in September 2014, BCE receved an
award for the best workflow/asset management/
autornation solution, for its services for RTL CBS Asia
Entertainment Network BCE launched the second
channel, RTL CBS Extreme HD, in May

In October, Antenne Réunion, the leading broad-
casting group of Réurion Island, replaced its channel
management scftware with BCE's brcadcast soft-
ware solutions (Athena, Cronos and Adonis}
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“Despite the ongoing audience
fragmentation in the media market,
radio 1s the regional mass media
In a highly competitive environment
RTL Radio Deutschland’s stations
continue to perform well; In some
cases even Increasing reaches
and advertising revenues With our
17 programmes and the strategy
to deliver high quality content to our
audience via all significant
distribution platforms we have
a great foundation to
continue our success story ”

GERT ZIMMER
CEQD, RTL Radio Deutschland

RTL Radio Deutschland reported revenue of €50 rmul-
iionin2014 (2013 €52 milhon), while EBITA amounted
to €8 milion (2013 €10 milion) Increasing local
sales actmties could not fully compensate for the
exceeding discount pressure on the nattonal sales
houses and the lapse of a one-off dvmdend

Commercial radio in general decreased its average
hourty reach year-on-year by 2 1 per cent among
isteners aged 10 and over, with RTL Radio
Deutschland's portfollo losing 18 per cent of s
listeners Nevertheless ATL Radio Deutschland's
statons mantaned ther strong posiion In the
regionally fragmented market and continued to
deliver an smpressve performance

RTL Radio Deutschiand expanded its portfolio in
2014, with RTL Radio Center Berin acquinng a
10 per cent stake n the Berlin youth radio station,
93 6 Jam FM RTL Radio Center Berlin now has three

strong brands all performing well in the capital’s
highly competitive radic market with 30 FM stations
104 6 RTL s expanding its position as market leader
while 1055 Spreeradio has secured itself fourth
place in the list of Berln's most listened-to radio sta-
tions 93 6 Jam FM is already proving popular the
station increased its average number of listeners per
hour by 27 3 per cent in 2014

At the end of 2014, RTL Group's German radic port-
follo comprised investments in 17 stations, most of
which are minonty holdings because of constraints
in media ownership In Germany In total, these
statons reach more than 23 milkon listeners each
day, and have a combined average audence of
approximately 4 7 mifhon listeners per hour

Atresmedia in Spain The Spanish TV advertising
market ncreased by an estimated 11 0 per cent in
2014 Despite the decision of the Spanish Supreme
Court to close down ning Sparvsh DTT channels in
May - three of which were operated by Atresmedia
~the Atresmedia family of channe!s achieved a com-
bined audience share of 300 per cent in the key
commercial target group of viewers agegd 16 to 54
(2013 31 0 per cent) The man channel, Antena 3,
recorded an audience share of 13 8 per cent (2013
13 4 per cent) In the commercial target group

Antena 3 TV AUDIENCE SHARE
Source TNS Sofres Target. 16-54 2010-2014 (%)
14 I 138
13 e 134
12 i286
11u — 17
10 oE— 118

On a 100 per cent basis, consoiidated revenue of
Atresmedia was up 64 per cent to €883 milion
(2013 €830 mitlon), while cperating profit (EBITDA)
increased to €128 milion (2013 €80 milion) Net
profit was €47 millon {2013 €46 million), as pub-
fished by Atresmedia The profit share of RTL Group
was €8 milion {2013 €10 million}

Nationaf audience breakdown

Sourte THS Salres Target. 16-54 2014 (%)
Antena 3 138

La Sexta 79

Atresmedia digital channe!s 83

Telecinco i36

y Cuatro 82

TVE 1 - 79

Forta 52

Cthers  _ . 351
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SpotXchange In September 2014, RTL Group
acquired a majenty shareholding in SpotXchange, a
leading video adverttsing monetisation company
Mare than 3 billon video ad decisions are processed
daly va SpotXchange {2013 2 bilien) Throughout
the year, SpotXchange registered 88 million ad
impressions served on a daldy basis (2013 60 medion)
According to Comscore, in October 2014,
SpotXchange advertising reached 51 6 per cent of
the US population

BroadbandTV With 25,000 channels and 280 million
subscribers?®, BroadbandTV s the number three
multi-channel network (MCN) on Youtube worldwide
In 2014, BroadbandTV registered a total of 23 5 bil-
flon video views — up 122 per cent from 2013
Throughout the year, the company expenenced con-
tinued expansicn and success nternationally, with a
core focus on Portuguese and Spanish-speaking
markets

in 2014, BroadbandTV announced a multi-year ong-
inal programmming deal with FremantieMedia North
Amenca {FMNA} and launched an internal production
studic Addiionalty, the major gaming network TGN
- one of the top two gaming brands on Youtube -
was rebranded to create ning hew shows acress the
network BroadbandTV signed new major deals with
Sony Pictures and FremantleMedia for its content
detection and management semice Viso Novi and
also renewed the existing contract with the NBA, the
longest standing deal of its kind on Youtube With
Viso Catalyst, BroadbandTv extended ts profes-
sional service offenng and signed new partners
including Sony Pictures with management of all
media film, TV and digital worldwide

DIRECTORS REPORT

StyteHaul In December 2014, RTL Group acgured a
majornty stake In the beauty, fashion and women’s
Iifestyle focused mutti-channel network StyleHaul
With more than 5,000 channels®, StyleHaul s a
leading multi-platform marketing solution for global
fashion and beauty brands and the largest muitti-
channel network on Youtube within those categones
In 2014, StyleHaul registered a total of 90 billon
video views — up 112 per cent compared to 2013 In
January 2014, StyleHaul launched The Crew, the first
senes under a multi-year development deal with
FremantieMedia North Amenca's digital studio Tiny
Riot In November 2014, StyleHaul announced & part-
nership with the female-driven TV channel Oxygen
and Tnum Entertanment to develop a pilot, featunng
digital stars from StyleHaul Before 1 December
2014, StyleHaul was accounted for using the equity
method The Group has recognised a gain of €17
million as a result of measuring at far value ts 26 per
cent equity iInterest previously held In Styletaul

Following the receipt of the final administrative
approval regarding addiional properties contributed
in October 2014 to Group companes, RTL Group
has recogrised a capital gan of €32 milion following
the cease of control according to IFRS cntena (‘other
operating ncome”, 2013 €19 million)
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SIGNIFICANT

ATL Group s party to legal proceedings in the
normal course of its business, both as defendant
and claimant

Most of these claims involve complex issues and the
probabilty of loss and an estimation of damages are
difficult to ascertan A prowsion Is recognised when
the nsk of a loss becomes lkely and when it 1s
possible to make a reasonable estimate of the
expected financial effect of a proceeding The pubh-
caton of this information on a case-by-case basis,
however, would serously prejudice the company’s
position In the ongoing legal proceedings or In any
related settlement discussions

The main legal proceedings to which RTL Group 1s a
party are disclosed below

Several subsidianes of the Group are being sued by
broadcaster RTL 2 Fernsehen GmbH & Co KG and
its sales house El Cartel Media GmbH & Co KG
before the regional court in Dusseldorf in Germany
seeking disclosure of information in order to substan-
tiate a possible clam for damages The proceedings
succeed the imposition of a fine in 2007 by the
German Federal Cartel Office for the abuse of market
dominance with regard to discount scherme agree-
ments {“share deals”) IP Deutschland GmbH
and SevenOne Media GmbH granted to meda
agencies The German Federal Cartel Office argued
that these discounts would foreclose the advertising
market for small broadcasters The proceedings
involve 1P Deutschland GmbH, RTL Television GmbH,
Vox Television GmbH, RTL Disney Fernsehen GmbH
& Co KG and N-TV Nachnichten GmbH Broadcast-
ers MTV Networks Germany GmbH as well as
TeleMunchen-TV GmbH had imtated smilar pro-
ceedings befcre the regona court i Munich
TeleMunchen-TV GmbH was unsuccessful i first
and second Instance, the jJudgment being now final
and non-appealable MTV Networks Germany GmbH
withdrew its lawsuit in September 2013

LITIGATIONS

Brandi Cochran was employed as a model on the
television senes The Price Is Right from July 2002 until
February 2010 and s clarming wrongful termination
and other allegations due to her gender and preg-
nancy Herclamwas brought against FremantleMedia
North Amenca (“FMNA”) The Court entered judgment
N January 2013 and awarded her damages in the
amount of $8,536,384 (compensatory damages of
$766,944 and punitve damages of $ 7,769,440, sub-
Ject 1o interest at the rate of 10 per cent per annum
until paid) plus attorney's fees FMNA appealed the
verdict FMNA filed post-tnal moations for (1) a new tnal
and (1) judgment notwithstanding the verdict (“JNCV™)
In March 2013, the motion for a new tnat was granted
{and the verdict was vacated), but the motion for
JNOV was denied FMNA flled an appeal on the
demal of the motion for JNOV, while Brandi Cochran
appealed the granting of a new tnal In December
2014, the Appellate Court remanded the parties for
anew trial and allowed Brandi Cochran to introduce
new arguments Tnal 1s expected to commence In
late spring/early summer 2015
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PRINCIPAL RISKS
AND UNCERTAINTIES

Principal risks and uncertanties are disclosed in
note 3 to the consohdated financial statements for
the financial nsks (pages 128 te 136) and in the sec-
ton *Corporate Governance” on the RTLGroup com
website for the external and market nsks

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
STATEMENT

The RTL Group Board of Directors 1s committed to
fugh standards of corporate governance RTL Group
has applied the principles of good governance for
years, even before the Ten Principles of Corperate
Governance were implementad by the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange — principles that RTL Group s in line
with and submitted to

More information on this topic can be found in the
‘Investors’ secton of the Company’s website
(RTLGroup com) It contans RTL Group’s corperate
governance charter, and regutarly updated informa-
tion, such as the latest version of the Company's
governance documents (articles of incorporation,
statutory accounts, minutes of shareholders' meet-
ings), and information on the compesition and
missicn of the RTL Group Board and its Committees
The “Investors” section also contains the financial
calendar and other information that may be of inter-
est to shareholders

Sharehclders

The share capital of the Company s set at
€191,900,551, which is divided into 154,787,554 fully
paid up shares with no par value

As at December 2014, Bertelsmann held 751 per
cent of RTL Group shares, and 24 1 per cent were
publicly tracked The remaining 0 8 per cent ware held
collectively as treasury stock by RTL Group and one
of #s subsidiartes

General Meetings of Shareholders wiil be held af the
registered office or any other place in Luxembourg
indicated in the convening notice A Generat Meeting
of Shareholders must be convened on the request of
one or more shareholders who together represent at
least one tenth of the Company’s capital, and the
Annual Gereral Meeting of Shareholders 1s held on
the third Wednesday of Apnlat 15 00 If this dayis a
public holiday, the meeting will be held on the next
business day at the same time

Resolutions wilt be adopted by the simple majonty of
valid votes, excluding abstentions Any resoluton
amendng the Artictes of Incorporation will be
adopted by a majonty of two thirds of the votes of all
the shares present or represented

The Annual General Meeting will examine the reports
of the Board of Directors and the auditor and
thaught fit will approve the annual accounts The
meeting will also determine the allocation of profit,
and decide on the discharge of the drrectors and the
auditor from any duties
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Board and management

Board of Directors

On 31 December 2014 the Board of RTL Group had
12 members three executive directors, and nine
non-executive directors Achim Berg, co-opted as
non-executive director an 5 March 2014 i replace-
ment of Thomas Hesse, and Jonathan F Miller,
elected as non-executve drrector at the General
Meeting of Shareholders on 16 Apnl 2014 were
appainted for one year The other executrve and non-
executive directors elected at the General Meeting of
Shareholders on 18 Apni 2012 were appointed for
three years The biographical details of the directors
are set out on pages 58 to 62 Four of the non-exec-
utive directors — Jonathan F Miller, Jacques Santer,
James Singh and Martin Taylor — are independent of
management and other outside interests that might
interfere with ther ndependent jJudgement

Martin Taytor was appointed under the cntena of
independence of the London Stock Exchange,
before RTL Group adopted the Ten Principles of the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange, though at the tme of
his last reappointment he met the critena of the latter
Jonathan F Miller, Jacques Santer and James Singh
are iIndependent directors, and both meet the current
cntena of independence of the Ten Ponciples of the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange

The Board of Drectors has to rewew, with expert
help If requested, that any transaction between
RTL Group or any of its subsidanes on the one hand
and any of the sharehclders or any of therr respec-
tive subsidianes on the other hand 1s on arm's length
terms

The responsibility for day-to-day management of the
Company is delegated to the Chief Executive Officers
(*CEOs") The Board has a number of responsibilities,
which include approving the annual Group's budget,
overseeing significant acguisitons and disposals,
and managing the Group's financial statements The
Board of Drrectors met four times in 2014 physically
or via telephone conference — with an average
attendance rate of 93 per cent - and adopted some
decisions by circular resolution An evaluaton pro-
cess of the Board of Directors’ actvities — and the
activities of its committees — was camed out in 2014

The findings were discussed by the Board

The Executive Coemmittee updates the Board on the
group’s activiies and financial situation At each
meeting, representatives of the Executive Committee
brief the Board on ongaing matters, and on possible
upcoming investment or divestment decisions

In 2014, a total of €0 6 million (2013 €06 million)
was allocated in the form of attendance fees to the
non-executive members of the Board of Directors
and the Committees that emanate from & (see note
9 4 to the consohdated financial statements)

Neither options nor loans have been granted to
Owectors

Appropnate measures were taken by the Company
to ensure complance with the prowisiorns of the
Luxermbourg law on market abuse, and with the
Crculars of the Commission de Survellance du
Secteur Financier (CSSF) concerning the application
of this tegislation

The following Board Committees are established
Nomination and Compensation Committee

The Nominaton and Compensation Commuittee
comprises three non-executve drectors, one of
whom 1s an independent director (who also chars
the meetings}, and meets at least twice a year The
Committee's plenary mestings are attended by the
CEOs and the Executve Vice President Human
Resources The Nomination and Compensation
Committee may invelve other persons whose collab-
oration 15 deemed to be advantageous to assist the
Nomination and Compensation Committee in fulfill-
ng s tasks The Charman of the Nomnation and
Compensation Committae reports on the discussion
held and conciusions taken by the Normination and
Compensation Committee to the subsequent Soard
of Directors meeting The Nomination and Compen-
sation Committee met five times in 2014 physically or
via telephone conference, with an average attend-
ance rate of 100 per cent

The Nomination and Compensation Committee con-
sults with the CEOs and gives a pnor consent on the
appaintment and removal of executive directors
and senior management, makes a proposal to the
General Meeting of the Shareholders on the appoint-
ment and removal of the non-executive directors,
and establishes the Group's compensation pohcy
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee 1s composed of four non-exec-
utive directors, two of whom are independent, and
meets at least four tmes a year

The Committee's plenary meetings are attended by
the CECs, the Chief Financial Officer (*CFO"), the
Head of Audt & Compliance, the external auditors
and other senior Group finance representatives The
Audit Committee may inwvite other persons whose
collaboration 1s deemed to be advantageous to
assist the Audit Committee in fulfiling its tasks The
Audit Committee met five times in 2014 physically or
via telephone conference, with an average attend-
ance rate of 90 per cent The Chairman of the Audit
Committee reports on the discussions held and
conclusions taken by the Audt Committee to the
subsequent Board of Cirectors meeting

The Committee assists the Board of Directors in its
responsibility with respect to overseeing the Group's
financial reporting, the nsk managemeant and internal
control as well as standards of business conduct
and compliance

The Audit Committee monstars the financial report-
Ing process, the statutory audit of the legal and con-
solidated accounts, the independence of the external
auditors, the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
contrals, the compllance programme and the
Group's nsks The Audit Commuttee reviews the
Group's firancial disclosures and submits a recom-
mendation to the Board of Directors regarding the
appointment of the Group's external audtors

The Head of Audit & Compliance and the external
auditors have direct access to the Charman of the
Audit Committee, who 15 an independent director

CEOs

Responsibility for the day-te-day management of the
company rests with the CEOs, who — on a regular
basis and upon request of the Board — inform the
Board of Directors about the status and develop-
ment of the Company

The CECs are responsible for proposing the annual
budget, to be approved by the Board of Directors
They are also respensible for determining the ordi-
nary course of the business

DIRECTCRS' REPCRT

Executive Committee

On 31 December 2014, the Executive Committee 1s
comprised of the three Executive Directors, that 1
the two CEOs and the CFQO The Executive Vice
President Regional Operations & Business Develop-
ment CEE and Asia 18 Invited to attend the meetings
cn a permanent basis The Executive Commitiee 1S
vested with internal management authonty Bio-
graphica! detalls of the members of the Executive
Committee can be found on page 63

External auditor

In accordance with the Luxembourg law on
commercial companies, the Company's annual and
cansoldated accounts are certified by an external
auditor, appointed at the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders On 16 Apnl 2014, the shareholders
apponted Pricewaterhouse Cocpers, société
coopérative (PwC) for a year PwC's mandate will
expire at the Annual General Meetng on 15 Apnil
2015

Dealing in shares

The Company's shares are hsted on Euronext
Brussels, and on the Frankfurt and Luxembourg
Stock Exchanges Applicable Belgian, German and
Luxembeurg nsider dealing and market manipula-
tion laws prevent anyone with materal non-pubic
information about a company from dealing in s
shares and from committing market manipulations

A detaled Dealing Code contains restactions on deal-
ings by directors and certain employees of RTL Group
and its subsidianes, or assoctated companies

Restrictions apply to

# Members of the Boarc of Directors,

® Ajl employees of RTL Group SA, and directors and
employess of any subsidiary or afflated company
of RTL Group who, because of ther postion or
activites, may have access to unpublished price-
senstive information
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Code of Conduct

Basic gudelnes for conductng business at
RTL Group are governed by the Code of Conduct
The Code outines binding mwnimum standards for
responsible behaviour toward business partners
and the public, as well as for behaviour within the
company The Group has a traning programme in
place to ensure that employees across RTL Group's
operations are fully aware of the Code

More information on the Code of Conduct 1s availa-
ble at RTLGroup com/codeofconduct

Internal controls over financial reporting

Internal controls over financial reporting am to
provide reasonable assurance on the rehability of
external and nternal financial reporting, and therr
confarmity wath the applicable laws and regulations
They help to ensure that financral reporting presents
a true and far pcture of the Group's net assets,
financial position and operational results The Code
of Conduct requires to manage recordkeeping and
financial reporting with integnty and transparency

Standards and rules

The rules governing the Group's financial reperting
environment and cnical accounting policies are
set out In the Group’s Financial Accounting Manual
(FaM) The FAM, which 1s regularly updated, Is
crrculated to the members of the Group’s finance
community, and published on RTL Group's intranet
Standards of a rmintmum control framework for key
accounting processes at the leve! of RTL Group’s
fully consolidated reporting units are formahsed in
a set of expected key controls RTL Group's central-
ised treasury and corporate finance actmities are
governed by dedicated policies and procedures
Hedging of exposure n non-Euro currencies 1s
governed by a stnct policy All mnternal and external
financial reporting processes are organised through
a centrally managed reporting calendar

Systems and related controls

Locally used {*ERP”, treasury applcations) finance
systems are largely centrally monitored wvia a
common system platform to ensure a consistent set-
up of system-embedded controls Segregation of
duties, access nghts and approval hmits are regularly
reviewed by the local data owners for all reporting
units whose finance systems are centrally man-
taned Internal and external financial reporting 1s up-
streamed by a centrally managed integrated finance
system — from budgeting and trend year analysis,
manthly internal management reporting, forecasting
of financial and operational KPIs, ta consolidaton
and extenal financial reporting, and finally nsk
managernent reporting {see the section "How we
manage risks") Specific system-embedded controls

support the consolidation process, including the
reconciiation of intercompany transactions T Gen-
eral Controls (ITGCs") are regularly assessed by
external experts or by internal audit For all the
RTL Group central apphications and interfaces {the
“Referenced Applications™) as well as therr related
IT Infrastructure, controls objectives are defined The
descnption of the control environment and the effec-
tiveness of these controls are subject to an annual
SOC1 ISAE3402 thid party assurance report The
Group’s consolidation scope 1s constartly updated,
both at the level of financial Interests captured 10 the
ceonsohdation system, and at the level of legal infor-
mation through a dedicated legal scope system

Analytics and reporting

All mternal and external local financial and consoli-
dated reporting 1s systematically reviewed by local
finance staff or by finance teams within the Corporate
Centre Typical analyses include compansons to
previous year, budget and forecast, financial and
operational KPIs, flows of key captions on the iIncome
statement, statement of the financial position,
changes in equity, and cash flow statement Regular
communication betwean RTL Group's operations and
the Caorporate Centre’s finance department ensures
any ssue that could aifect the Group's financial
reporting 1S iImmediately flagged and resolved Quar-
terly reporting to the financial market 1s reviewed by
the Audit Committee as mandated by the Board of
Directors

Transparency

Finance committees ensure any issues ansing at
focal level that could significantly affect the financial
statements are quickly brought to the attention of
managerment RTL Group's incident reporting policy
requres business units to immediately report fraud
ncidents to the Group !dentfied control weak-
nesses that could impact the reliability of financial
reporting - reported by ether external or internal
audit — are brought to the attention of management
and the Audit Committee, and are part of a follow-up
process Each year, the business units self-assess
the matunty level of their local internal controls over
financial reporting Results of this self-assessment
are reported 1o the Audit Committee At each mest-
ing the Audit Committee s updated on the key
accounting, tax and legal 1Issues within the Group

The Corporate Centre constantly promotes the
importance of soundly designed internal controls —
not only over financial reporting, but also for opera-
tional processes — through dedicated workshops
with RTL Group's business units, and the work of the
Internal Audt department
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How we manage nsks

By ther nature, media businesses are exposed to
nsk Telewision and radio channels can lose audi-
ences rapidly as new competitive threats emerge,
with consequent loss of revenue Broadcasters and
progucers are exposed to legal nsks, such as htga-
tion by aggneved ndmiduals or organisations, and
media businesses are mare exposed than most to
economic cycles — advertising s usually one ¢f the
frst casualtes i an economic downturn
RTL Group's international presence exposes it to fur-
ther nsks, such as adverse currency movements and
debtors' default

The Board of Directors s responsible for ensunng
RTL Group mamntans a sound system of internal
controls, including financial, operational and compli-
ance nsks

ATL Group defines its sk management as a contn-
uous process at Business Unit and Group level to
prevent, protect, mitigate and leverage nsks in hght
of execution of RTL Group's mission and strategic
objectives RTL Group's nsk management has been
designed to be fully aigned with International Risk
Management Standards {e g COSO framework) and
Bertelsmann SE & CO KGaA's nsk management
practices RTL Group has robust nsk management
processes in place, designed to ensure that nsks are
tdentified, monitored and controlled RTL Group's nsk
management system is based on a specific policy

and a clear set of procecdures Policies and pro-
cedures are reviewed on a regular basis by the inter-
nal Audit Depariment and/or external consulting
companies Risk management and nsk reporting are
co-ordinated by the Head of Enterpnse Risk Man-
agement (ERM), and reporting 15 then reviewed by
the Internal Aucht Department

RTL Group's nsk management process ntends to

meet the following three main objectives

= “Embedded culture” Promote and embed a com-
mon nsk management culture in the daly work of
RTL Group's employees,

= “Consistent policy” Develop consistent risk pol-
cles on Key matters to be talored and implemented
at Business Unit level with consideration of tocal
challenges and envircnment,

= “Harmonised response” Ensure harmonised sk
management pravention, detection and mitigation
measures across RTL Group and its Business Units
vs key nsks, as well as a continuous related mon-
itorng and improvement programme

The nsk management organisation 1s the combina-
tion of structures and relationships (see the diagram
above) which enables a proper nsk governance envi-
ronment RTL Group’s Risk management govern-
ance model has a strong vertical component
descending from the Board, Executve, Audt and
Risk Management Committees, through the Execu-
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tive responsible (CEQ, CFO and Head of ERM) and
down to all the levels of the dedicated nsk manage-
ment functions, including Group local entities  This
backbone 15 enabled by related contral functions
carmed out by the Legal & Regulatory, Complance,
Strategy & Controlling, Treasury, Insurance, Group
Financial Reporting, Tax, IT, Human Resources,
Sales & Commercial and Investor Relattons depart-
ments Besides, an independent monitonng s car-
ned out by Internal Audit and External Audit

The internal control system 15 designed to prowde
reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of
objectives in the following categones
» Effectiveness and efficiency cf operations,
and the optimal use of the Group's resources
= Integrity and relhability of financial and
operational Information
u Reliability of financial reporting
= Proper identification, assessment, mitigation
and reporting of matenal nsks
s Complance with applicable laws, regulations,
standards and contracts

The Risk Management Committee 1s composed
of the following permanent members
8 RTL Group Chief Financial Officer and
Head of the Corporate Centre
u RTL Group Executive Vice President
Strategy & Contrcling
= ATL. Group Deputy CFO and Executive
Vice President Finance
& RTL Group Senior Vice President Treasury
and Enterprise Risk Management
= RTL Group Senior Vice President Audit
and Compliance
m RTL Group General Counsel
m Media Assurances' Chief Executive Officer
= Additional guests may be invited to participate
n Risk Management Committee meetings
as subject matter experts based on topics to
be addressed

Defintion of nsk

RTL Group defines a nisk as the danger of a negative
development that could endanger the solvency or
existence of a business unit, or have a negatve
impact on the Group's income statement

Risk reporting framework
We have developed a framework for the reporting of
nsks, in ine with good corporate practce

This framework s based on a number of key

pnnciples

m Comprehensive scope of nsk assessment nsks are
assessed within a framework of defined key nsk
categories Regular nsk assessments mclude a

description of the nsk, an indication of the potential
financial iImpact, and steps taken to miigate the
nsk These steps are performed throughout
RTL Group, consokdated by the Head of Enterpnse
Risk Management, reviewed by the internal Audt
Department, and uttimately summansed n a dedi-
cated nsk management report Results are pre-
sented to the Audit Committee
m Regular and consistent reporting RTL Group’s sys-
tem of internal controls ensures that nsks are
addressed, reported and mitigated when they anse
All significant nisks are comprehensively assessed
within the nsk reporting framework, and reported to
RTL Group management on a bi-annual basis This
ensures that necessary actions are undertaken to
manage, mitigate cr offset nisks within the Group
The risks are reportec In a common reporting tool
to ensure consistency In scope and approach
» Bottom-up approach RTL Group assesses nsks
where they anse — in its operations All business
units assess themselves according to the two parts
of the Risk Management Report
= Part A Risk assessment and quantificaton
of residual nsks if apphcable
s Part B Self-assessment on Internal Controls
in place
& Consolidated Group matnx the enterprise nsk
maragement team aggregates a comprehensive
view of significant nsks for the Group by consol-
dating local nsk assessments A Risk Management
Committee prepares and reviews this consclidated
Group nsk matrix The committee also
= Advises on the control and reporting process for
any major risks, and recommends mitigation
strategres to the Group CFO
= Monitors follow-up of nsks and ensures mitigation
measures have been taken
% |ncreases nsk awareness within the Group
n ldentifies potential optimisation opportunities In
processes
= Audit approach toth the process of local nsk
assessments and the consolidated Group nsk
matrices are regularly reviewed by the Internal
Audit

Going forward

RTL Group's nsk management framework 15 con-
stantly challenged - at both operational and Group
level — through the Risk Management Committee, to
ensure 1t reflects the nsk profile of the Group at all
times

To ensure RTL Group's Enterpnse Risk Management
process and reporting requirements are consistently
implermented throughout the Group, we hold reguiar
workshops to update staff and to intreduce new
tools avalable to assess nsk
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Luxembourg Law on Takeover Bids

The followsng disclosures are made in accordance
with article 11 of the Luxembourg Law on Takeover
Bids of 19 May 2006

a) Share capital structure

RTL Group SA has issued one class of shares which
15 admitted to trading on the Frankfurt Stock
Exchange, Euronext Brussels and the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange No other secunties have been
issued The issued share capital as at 31 December
2014 amounts to €191,900,551 represented by
154,787,554 shares with no par value, each fully
paid-up

b} Transfer restnctions

Al the date of thes report, all RTL Group SA shares
are freely transferable but shall be subject to the pro-
visions of the applicable Belgian and Luxembourg
insider dealing and market manipulation laws, which
prevent anyone who has matenal non-public infor-
mation about a company from dealing N its shares
and from commiting market manipulations A
detalled Dealing in Shares Code contains restnictions
on dealings by directors and certan employees of
RTL Group SA and is subsidiaries

€) Major shareholding

The shareholding structure of RTL Group SA as at 31
December 2014 15 as follows Bertelsmann Capital
Holding GmbH held 75 1 per cent, 24 1 per gent
were pubkcly traded and the remaining O 8 per cent
were held collectively as treasury stock by RTL Group
SA and one of its subsidianes

d) Special control nghts

All the 1ssued and outstanding shares of RTL Group
SA have equal voting nghts and with no special con-
trol nghts attached

e) Control system in employee share scheme

RTL Group SA’s Board of Directors 1s not aware of
any 1ssue regarding section e) of article 11 of the
Luxembourg Law on Takeover Bids of 19 May 2006

f} Voting nghts

Each share 1ssued and outstanding In RTL Group SA
represents one vote The Articles of Association do
nat provide for any voting restrictions In accordance
with the Articles of Association, a record date for the
admission to a general meeling is set and certificates
for the shareholdings and proxies shall be receved
by RTL Group SA the 14th day before the relevant
date at 24 hours (Luxembourg time} Additional pro-
visions may apply under Luxembourg ‘aw

DIRECTORS' REPORT

g) Shareholders’ agreement

with transfer restrictions
RTL Group SA's Board of Directors has no informa-
tion about any agreements between sharsholders
which may result in restrictons on the transfer of
securities or voting nights

h} Appointment of Board members,
amendmerits of the Articles of Association

The appointment and replacement of Board
members ang the amendments of the Articles of
Association are governed by Luxembourg Law and
the Articles of Association The Articles of Associa-
tion are published under the 'Investors’ Corporate
Governance Section on RTLGroup com

1) Powers of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors s vested with the broadest
powers to manage the business of RTL Group SA It
may take all acts of administration and of disposal In
the interest of RTL Group $A The Board of Directors
has set up several commuttees whose members are
Directors The responsibilities and functionalties of
the Board of Drectors and its committees are
descnbed in the Aricles of Assoocation and the
Corporate Governance Charter, published under the
‘Investors’ Corporate Governance Section on
ATLGroup com The Board of Brrectors s not entitled
to buy back treasury shares

1) Sigruficant agreements

or essential business contracts
The Beard of Directors 1s not aware of any significant
agreements to which RTL Group 8A 1s party and
which take effect, alter or terminate upon a change
of control of RTL Group SA following a takeover bid

k) Agreements with Directors and employees

The Executive Committee members are entitled to
contractual severance payments In case of dismissal,
to the exception of dismissal for senous reasons

Subsequent events
See note 10
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OUTLOOK

The TV advertising markets 1n 2014 reflected the
overall macro-economic situation it Europe  All
European net TV advertising markets in RTL Group's
temtones were up or stable year-on-year, with the
exception of Belgum — which was down 28 per
cent This picture 15 expected to be similar in 2015
with overall slight growth expected

For the full year 2015, RTL Group expects the com-
bined audience shares of its families of channels to
grow slightly compared to 2014 due to both higher
programme Investments and the fact that the public
broadcasters will not be showing major sporting
events as they did in 2014

RTL Group confirms the outlock on FremantleMedia
which expects EBITA to be down due to lower pro-
duction volumes on an important format 0 the US
However, if the recent strength of the US Dollar
agamst the Euro continues, this could offset some
of these effects as approxmately a third of
FremantleMedia’s business 1s US-based

4 March 2015
The Board of Directors

RATL Group's platform revenue® 1s expecled to con-
tinue to grow strongly, while RTL Group's digral
revenue will grow by double-digt growth rates,
dnven by organic growth and consolidation effects,
with StyleHaul and SpotXchange both being fully
consolidated for the full year 2015

As a result, RTL Group expects its total revenue and
EBITAY to be broadly stable

RTL Group has histoncally shown an operating cash
convarsion rate of close to 100 per cent and thiss
not expected toc change significantly

The central performance indicator for assessing the
profitability from operations and return on invested
captal 1s RTL Group Value Added {RVAR* RVA
measures the profit realsed above and beyond the
appropnate return on Invested captal This form of
value onentation 15 reflected in strategic Investment
and portfolio planning, ncluding the management of
Group operations, and 13 the basis for senior manage-
ment cormpensation in 2014, RVA was €457 milion
(2013 €463 milion) With selected programme
investments and higher working capital, RTL Group
expects the RVA to be slightly down in 2015
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MANAGEMENT
RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

We, Guillaume de Posch and Anke Schaferkordt, Chief Executive Officers and Elmar Heggen, Chief Financiat
Cfficer, confirm, to the best of our knowledge, that these 2014 consolidated financial statements which have
been prepared In accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Linion, gve a true and far view of the assets, labilites, financial position and profit or loss of
RTL Group and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, and that the Directors’
report iIncludes a far review of the development and performance of the business and the position of
RTL Group and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a descnption
of the pnnoipal nisks and uncertanties that they face

Luxembourg, 4 March 2015

I CCS%/{G,% V =¥

Anke Schiferkordt and Guillaume de Posch Elmar Heggen
Chief Executive Officers Chief Financial Officer

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2014

105




CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 Cecember

203

2014 Restated!
Notes €m £m
Reverue o DIEEN  ssos 5624
Other operating incoms B3 51
Consumption of current programme nghts ) (1,903} 1,924}
Depreciation, amortisation and imparment (203} (198}
Other cperating expenses ) ) A (2681) {2,663}
Amortsaton and impaiment of far value adjustments on acquisitions of subsidianes {103) (10}
Gain/{loss) from sale of subsidanes other investments
and re-measurement to far value of pre existing interest in acquires 1 5
Profit from operating activities 1,002 1,085
Share of resuits of investments accounted for using the equity method 47 117
Earnings before interest and taxes (“EBIT™) 1,049 1,202
Interest income : 10 B
Interest expense 33 {30)
Financial resuits other than mnterest 6. 5] L] 70
Profit before taxes 1,022 1250
Income tax expense 6. 6] (288) (302)
Profit for the year 734 848
Attrbutable to
RTL Group shareholders 653 870
Non-controling interests 81 78
Profit for the year 734 948
EBITA? 1,145 1,148
Impairment of goadwil of subsidianes 7.2 {eg) -
Imparment of disposal group 7,10, - (1)
Imparrment of nvestments accounted for using the equity method 4 68
Amoertisaton and imparment of far value adjustments on acguisitions of subsidianes {15) [4fe)]
Re-measurement of eam-out amangements 2 1
Gain/{loss) from sale of subsidianes, other investments
and re-measurement to far value of pre-existing nterest in acguiree 1 5
Earnings before interest and taxes (“EBIT™) 1,049 1202
Earnings per share (in €)
- Basic 425 567
- Diuted 425 587
41) Seanate 1 29

{2) EBRA represents Garmings belond INtenist and tzoes excucng IMpaITment of goocwil and of deposal groud NG AMOMERANGN and ImBarment of far vakue aCRBMENtS oM ACOUETIONS of SUENES. NNpATTent &! Kvestments

accountad for usry the ecurty rmathod re-ir " of eam-out

o and gan or loes from sale of subssarms other FVestmants and -Teasueman to far vakuo of - grasng Wieres! M acoures

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consclidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended 31 December

2013
2014 Rextated’
Notes €m €m
Profit for the year 734 948
Other comprehensive Income
ftems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement of past-employment benefit obligations 7. 14, (500 -
Income tax . 10 n
(40) {1)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Forexgn currency transiation differences 19 (28)
Effective portion of changas in far value of cash fiow hedges 71 (28)
Income tax V)] 7
52 119
Change n farr value of cash flow hedges transterred to profit or loss - (15
Income tax - 5
- (o)
Far value gains/ (losses) on avalable-for sale financial assets )] (15)
Income tax 1 3
[t)] {12)
63 67)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of income tax 23 168)
Total comprehensive income for the year 757 880
Attnbutable to
RTL Group shareholders 675 803
Non-gontrolling nterests 82 77
Total comprehensive income for the year 757 880
(1) Seancte 1 29

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consciidated financial staternents
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Asan
31 December 1 January
31 December 2m3 2n3
2014 Restated!  Restated!
Nates £m £€m £m
Non-current assets
Programime and cther nghts ) 93 109 119
Googwil 2,870 2,707 2678
Cther intangible assats 187 198 202
Property, plant and equipment 337 331 346
Investments accounted for using the equity method as1 359 273
Leans and cther financial assets 192 142 240
Defarred tax assets 7.6 a3gs 389 ars
4,455 4235 4233
Current assets
Programme nghts 1,028 955 Q02
Cther inventories 15 15 30
Incomae tax recevable 56 42 86
Accounts recervable and other financial assets 1,697 1723 1995
Cash and cash equivalents 483 542 821
3,279 3275 3634
Assets classified as held for sale 4 27 3
Current habilities
Loans and bank overdrafts 583 36 16
Income tax payable 42 o0 77
Accounts payable 2,453 2,513 2132
Provisions ) 166 194 220
3,244 2833 2445
Liabities dectly assocated with non-current assets classified as held for sale 7. 10, - 24 ~
Net current assets 39 445 1,192
Non-current llabilities
Loans 7. 11, 521 529 12
Accounts payable 392 an 219
Provisions 250 169 174
Deferred tax labiities 55 58 62
1,218 1087 567
Net assets A,276 3593 4,858
Equrty attnbutable to ATL Group shareholders 2,829 3159 4,366
Equity attnbutable to non-controlling interests 447 434 492
Equity Tt T i (T3 3276 3503 4858

1) Sea rote 129

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consobidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Equity
Equity  aftrbutable
Cumency Reserves  attnbutable to 1 ron
Share Treasury transiabon Hecging  Revaluation  and retaned  ATL Group contraiing Total
capiat shares reserve Teserve reserve eamings  sharghokiers mtarests equity
Notes £m €m £m €m €m £m €m €m £€m
Balance at 1 January 2013 restated’ 192 a4} {142) 2 98 4,243 4,366 492 4,858
Total comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - - - - B70 870 78 948
Foreign currency translation diferences - - (26} - - - (26) - (26)
Effective portion of changes in far value
of cash flow hedges net of tax - - - {19) - - {19} - 19)
Change in far value of cash flow hadges
transferred to profit or loss net of tax - - - (10} - - 1 - (10)
Farr valua gans/{losses) on avalable for sale
financial assets, net of tax - - - - (i - (i1 m (12}
Re-measurement of post-employment beneht
obligations, net of tax - - - - - {) i - 1}
- - (286) (29) {11) 869 803 77 880
Capital transactions with owners
Dwidends - - - - - {1,988 (1998 (144}  (2,142)
EFquity settled transactions, net of tax 7.45. 7 - - - - - 2 2 3 5
Transactions on non controlling nterests
withaut a change in control - - - - - {5) (5) 1 [E1]
Transactions cn non controling interests
with a change n control - - - - - (10} (10 a 6)
Denvatves on equity instruments - - - - — 1 1 1 2
- - - - - o100 (135)  (2,145)
Balance at 31 Decemnber 2013 restated’ 192 {44) (168) (8) 85 3,102 3,159 434 3,593
Total comprehensive Income
Profit for the year - - - - - 653 853 81 734
Foreign currency translation differences - - 19 - - - 19 - 19
Fffective portion of changes in far value
of cash flow hedges net of tax - - - 50 - - 50 2 52
Far value gains/{losses)
on avalable-for-sale financial assets, net of tax - - - - (8) - (8) - 8)
Re-measurement of post-employment benefit
obligations net of tax - - - - - {39) (a9 m (40)
- - 19 50 8 614 675 a2 757
Capirtal transactions with owners
Dividends - - - - - (999} (299) (r4) (1,073}
Equity-settied transactions, net of tax - - - - - 3 3 3 6
Acquiaition of treasury shares - (1 - - - - (1) - 1}
Transachons on non-controling interests
without a change in contral - - - - - 3 3 6 9
Transachons on non-controlling interests
with a change n control - - - - - 21 21) (1) (22)
Denvatives on equity mstruments - - - - - 2 ] &) (5)
Transachens on treasury shares of associates - - - - - 12 12 - 12
- {1) - - - {1 D04) {1 005) 69) (1,074)
Balance at 31 December 2014 192 (45) (149} 42 77 2,712 2,829 447 3,276
{1} Samncte 129
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 December

2m3

2014 Restated!
Notes €m €m
Cash flows from ;)per—aimg ac{wnles-_ T i i
Profit before taxes 1,022 1250
Adjustments for
- Depreciation and amortisation 205 189
- Value adiustments, iImpairment and provisions 233 110
- Share based payments expenses 12 5
— Gain on disposal of assets 3 (38) (33)
- Financial results ncluding net interest expense
and share of resuits of nvestments accounted for using the equity method 14 (138)
Use of provisions 7.13. (95) (85)
Working capital changes (91) 65
Income taxes pad {328) {237)
Net cash from operating activities 934 1,116
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisitions of
- Programme and other nghts (89 {78)
- Subsidianes, net of cash acquired {246) (77)
- Cthar intangible and tangible assets (85} (8g)
— Gther investments and financial assets (39 (23)
Current deposit with shareholdar (75} -
} (543) (262)
Proceads from the sale of intangible ang tangible assets 7 24
Disposal of other subsidianes, net of cash disposed of 1 -
Proceeds from the sale of investments accounted for using the equity method, other iInvestments and financial assets 6 249
Current deposit with shareholder 75 426
Interest rece:ved 7 25
96 724
Net cash from/(used n) Investing activities @47 462
GCash flows from financing actvities
Interest pad (26) @
Transactions on non-contrailing interests 2 3)
Acquisition of treasury shares (1) -
Term loan faciity due to sharehoider 536 500
Proceeds trom loans B t7 11
Repayment of loans N )
Dwidends pad (1,073) (2 143)
Net cash used in financing activities {552) (1,644)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (65) 66)
Cash and cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at beginning of year : ’ 5?0 616
Effect of exchanga rata fluctuation on cash held ) 4 [63]
Effect of cash in disposal group held for sale 7.10. - 5)
Cash and cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at end of year 479 540
(1) S8 note 120

The accompanying notes farm an integral part of these consohdated financial staterments
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NOTES TC THE CONSOQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE

ER SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

RTL Group SA (the “Company”) i a company
demiciled in Luxembourg The consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2014 comprise the Company and its
subsidianes {togsther referred to as “RTL Group” or
“the Group") and the Group's interest in associates
and joint ventures RTL Group SA s the parent
company of a multnational television, radio and
production Group holding, directly or indirectly,
investments in 541 companies The Group manly
operates television channels and radio stations in
Europe and produces telewision content such as
game shows and scaps The list of the principal
Group undertakings at 31 December 2014 1s set out
In note 11

The Company is Iisted on the Brussels, Frankfurt and
Luxembourg Stock Exchanges Statutory accounts
can be obtaned at its registered office established at
45, boulevard Pierre Frieden, L-1543 Luxembourg

The ultimate parent company of RTL Group SA
preparnng  consclidated  financial  statements,
Bertelsmann SE & Co KGaA, includes in its consol-
idated financial statements those of RTL Group SA
Bertelsmann SE & Co KGaA s a company incorp-
orated under German law whose registered cffice
15 estabished at Carl-Bertelsmann-Strae 270,
£-33311 Gutersich, Germany Consolidated financial
statements for Bertelsmann St & Co KGaA can be
obtaned at ther registered office

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
were authonsed for 1ssue by the Board of Directors
on 4 March 2015

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPCRT 2014

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of compliance

The consoldated financial statements have been
prepared in accerdance with International Financial
Reporting Stancards (IFRS) as adopted by the Euro-
pean Union

Basis of preparation

Consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements are presented
i rmidions of Euro, which is the Company’s functional
and Group presentation currency, and have been
prepared under the histoncal cost convention except
for the following matenal items in the statement of
finangial position

m Dervative financial instruments are measured
at fair value,

a Non-derivative financial instruments at farr value
through profit or loss are measured at far value,

u Avatable-for-sale financial assets are measured
at farr value,

= Liabilities for cash-settled share-based payment
arrangements are measured at farr value, and

® The defined benefit assets and labiites
are measured n accordance with (AS 19

The preparaticn of financial statements in conformity
with IFRS as adoptec by the European Union requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the applicaton of palicies
and reported amounts of assets and labilites,
ncome and expenses The estimates and associated
assumptons are based on histoncal expenence and
vanous other factors that are believed to be reason-
able under the crcumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources Actual resufts
may differ from these estimates

11
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The estimates and undertying assumphons are re-
viewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the penod in which the
estimate 1s revised If the revision affects only that pe-
ried, or In the pened of the rewision and future penods
if the revision affects both current and future penods

Judgements made by management in the apphcation
of IFRS that have a significant effect on the financial
staterments and estimates with a significant nsk of
matenal adjustrment in the next years are discussed
in note 2 Certan comparative amounts in the
consolidated statement of financial position have
been reclassified to conform with the current year's
presentation

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
The accounting polcies have been consistantly
applied by the Group entities and are consistent with
those used n the previous year, except as follows

1 New and amended standards

and interpretations adopted by the Group
The follpwing standards, amendments to standards
and new Interpretations are mandatory for the
first time for the financial penod beginning 1 Janu-
ary 2014

8 [AS 27, “Separate financial statements” (revised
2011},

u [AS 28, “Associates and joint ventures” (revised
2011),

s |AS 32 {amendments}, “Financial instruments
presentation — offsetting financiat assets and finan-
cial labies™,

® 1AS 39 (amendments), “Financial instruments rec-
ognition and measurement™,

= |[FRS 10, Consolidated financial statements™ Un-
der IFRS 10, subsidianes are all entities inclugding
structured entities over which the Group has con-
trol The Group controls an entity when the Group
has power over an entity, 15 exposed to, or has
nghts to, vanable returns from its involverment with
the entity, and has the ability to affect these returns
through its power over the entity Subsidianes are
fully consolidated from the date on which conirol s
transferred to the Group They are deconsohdated
from the date that control ceases The Group has
reassessed the control over its investees in the ight
of the prowisions of IFRS 10 and concluded that no
change was necessary’,

IFRS 131, “Joimt arrangements” Under IFRS 11,

investments N joint arrangements are classified

either as jont operations or joint ventures, depend-
ing on the contractual nghts and obligations each
investor has rather than the legal structure of the
joint arrangement The Group has assessed the

nature of ts jont arrangements and determined
that all are jont ventures The Group's jont ar-
rangements which were previously included by
propartionate consolidation, are now classified as
Joint Ventures under IFRS 11 and are therefore ac-
counted for using the equity method iy accordance
with the provisions of the amengded IAS 28, "Asso-
ciates and Joint Ventures” The change affected
several financial statement line tems resulting n
decreasing revenue and expenses, assets and lia-
biities Nevertheless, profit for the penod and eg-
uity were unchanged Even though not significant
for the Group, the financial effects of the change n
accounting policies on the financial statement are
presented in note 129,

= [FRS 12, “Disclosures of interests in other entities”
includes the disclosure requirements for all forms
of interests n other entities including joint arrange-
ments, assoclates, and unconsehdated structured
entites The Group has made the required disclo-
sures in these consolidated financial statements
(see notes 74 and7158),

& [FRIC 21, “Levies™

2 Standards and amendments to existing
standards that are not yet effective and have
not been early adopted by the Group

The following new standards and amendments have

been published but are not effective for the Group's

accounting penod beginning on 1 January 2014 The

Group has yet 1o assess the impact of the new

standards and amendments

= ‘Disclosure Inmative {(Amendments 1o IAS 1) -
effective from 1 January 2016 to encourage com-
panies to apply professional judgement in deter-
muing the information {o disclose in ther financial
statements®,

u |AS 19 revised, “Defined Benefit Plans Employee
Contnbutions”™ — effective from 1 July 2014,

s Amendments to IAS 16, “Property, plant and equip-
ment” and 1AS 38,"Intangible assets” on deprecia-
tion and amortisation and 1AS 16, “Property, plant
and equipment” and IAS 41, “Agnculture” related to
accounting for bearer plants — effective from 1 Jan-
uary 2016 In the first amendment, the IASB has
clanfied that the use of revenue-based methods to
calculate the depreciation of an asset 1s not appro-
pnate because revenue generated by an actmty
that includes the use of an asset generally reflects
tactors ather than the consumption of the econom-
ic benefits embodied in the asset The IASE has al-
so clanfied that revenue 1S generally presumed to be
an Inappropnate basis for measunng the consump-
tion of the economic benefits embodied in an intan-
gible asset However, past the headline 1s a rebut-
table presumption, and revenue-based amortisation
18 permitted when it can be demonstrated that rev-
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{1] The applcation of thase standaras
niapretainns and amenomants had no
sign ficant rmpact ‘o7 the Growp

(2) Thes marprotation was endorsad on
17 Jung 2014 and o applcabls 1o the
annual periad bagrinng on or after thea
data Thvs wil afiect the menm pencd
reorting froam 2015 Grwards As an
exarmple tha Hungaran advertising tax
wil ba calculated besed on the revenug
of tha panod whh tha applicabie rate
and o longer on an average rate of the
eoxpactod tox for the full yopr

{al These standards and
have nat yel boan sncomed by the

Unon

Ewropean

{4) Enciorsad by tha Eurapean Unicn
n January 2015 with gffecove date
t February 2015

NQTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

enue and the consumption of the economic bene-
fits of the Intangible asset are highly correlated?,
= Amendment to 1AS 27, “Separate financial state-
ments”, on equity method on separate financial
statements — effective from 1 January 20163,
= “Investments Entites  Applying the Consolidation
Exception (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and
IAS 28)" — effective from 1 January 2016,
& Annual iImprovements 2010-2012 and 2011-2013 -
effective from 1 July 20144,
= Annual improvements 2012-2014 - effective from
1 January 20162,
8 [FRS 9, "Financial instruments” {and related amend-
ment on general hedge accounting) — effective from
1 January 2018 The IASB has pubhshed the com-
plete version of IFRS 9 which replaces the guidance
in A3 39 This final version includes reguirements
on the classificatton and measurement of financial
assets and labilities, it also includes an expected
credit losses modei that replaces the incurred loss
imparrment model used today?,
IFRS 14, "Regulatory deferral accounts” - effective
fromn 1 January 20167,
IFRS 15, “Revenue from contracts with customers™
applies to all contracts wath customers except those
that are financial mstruments, leases or insurance
contracts and infroduces a five-step process that
the Group will have to follow The new Standard
goes beyond just “commercial effect”, “fair valug™
and “nsk and rewards” and wilt also result in a signif-
icant increase N the volume of disclosures refated
to revenue IFRS 15 will be apphicable for reporting
periods beginring on or after 1 January 20172,
Amendments to IFRS 10, “Consolidated financial
statements” and IAS 28, “Investments in associates
and joint ventures”, on investment entities appiying
the consolidation exception - effective from 1 Jan-
uary 2016°

Pnnciples of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidianes are thase undertakings controlled by the
Company Control exists when the Company has
power or ability {“de facto control”), directly or indi-
rectly, over an entity, 1 exposed to, or has rnights te,
vanable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect these returns through its
power over the entity The existence and effect of po-
tential voting nghts that are presently exercisable or
presently convertible are considered when assessing
whether the Company controls another entity Direct-
ly or indirectly held subsidianes are consclidated
from the date on which control 1s transferred to the
Company, and are no longer consolidated from the
date that control ceases

ATL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2014

The full consoligation method 1s used, whereby the
assets, llzbilities, Income and expenses are fully in-
corporated The praportion of the net assets and net
income attnbutable to non-controling interests s
presented separately as non-controlling interests in
the consohdated statement of financial pesiton and
in the conschidated income statement

Accounting for business combnations

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method as at the acquisition date, whichts
the date on which control is transferred to the Group

For acquisttons on or after 1 January 2010, the
Group measuras goodwill at the acquisition date as

= the farr value of the consideration transferred, plus

®the recognised amount of any non-controling
interests in the acquiree, plus If the business com-
bmation 13 achieved n stages, the far value of the
existing equity Interest (n the acquires, less

® the net recognised amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and labilities assumed

When the excess is negative, a bargan purchase
gain 1s recognised immediately in profit or loss

The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary 15 the fair value of the assets transferred,
the liabifities incurred and the equity interests 1ssued
by the Group The consideration transferred includes
the far value of any asset or hability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement

Costs related to the acquisition, other than those as-
sociated with the 1ssue of debt or equity secuntres,
that the Group incurs In connecton with a business
combination, are expensed as incurred

Any contingent consideration payable s recogrised
at far value at the acquisition date

If the contingent consideration 1s classified as equity,
it 15 not re-measured and settlement I1s accounted for
within equity Otherwise, subsequent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration are recog-
nised in profit or loss

The potential cash payments related to put options
1Issued by the Group over the equity of subsichary
companies are accounted for as financial habilities
The amount that may become payable under the
option on exercise 15 INtially recognised at fair value
within accounts payable with a corresponding charge
directly to equty or through goodwill n case of
business combination with the transfer of the rnsks
and rewards of the non-controling interests to the
Group Such options are subsequently measured

113




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method, In order to accrete the labiity up to the
amount payable under the aption at the date at which
it first becomes exercisable The charge ansing Is
recorded as an interest expense In the event that the
option expires unexercised, the llabiity 1s derecog-
nised with a correspending adjustment to equity

On an acquistion-by-acquisition basis the Group rec-
ognises any non-controling interests In the acquiree
either at far value or at the non-centrolling interest's
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets

Identifiable assets acquired and llabilities and contin-
gent labilities assumed in a business combination
are measured Initially at their far value at the acqui-
sition date

Accounting for transactions

with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controling
interests as transactions with equity owners of
the Group For acguisitions from non-controling
interests, the difference between any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
vaiue of the net assets of the subsidiary I1s recorded
n equity Gains or losses on disposals of non-
controling interests are also recorded In equity

Loss of control

When the Group ceases to have confrol, any retained
interest in the entity 1s re-measured to its far value at
the date when control 15 lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss The far
value subsequently becomes the nibal carrying
amount for the purposes of accountng for the
retaned Interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset In addition, any amounts previously
recognised 1in cother comprehensive Incomeg In
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had drectly dispesed of the related assets
or labilities This may mean that amounts previous-
ly recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss

Investments accounted

for using the equity method

The investments accounted for using the equity
method comprise interests N associates and joint
ventures

Associates are defined as those investments, where
the Group 15 able to exercise a significant influence
Joint ventures are arrangements in which the Group
has joint control, whereby the Group has nghts to the
net assets of arrangements, rather than nghts to
therr assets and obligations for therr labilities

Such investments are recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial posiion using the eguity
method of accountng and are ntally recognised
at cost, wnich ncludes transaction costs Under this
method the Group's share of the pest-acquisition
profits or losses of Investments accounted for using
the equity method s recognised n the income
statement, and its share of post-acquistion move-
ments N reserves 1S recogrised In reserves

The Group decided not to reverse any imparrment
loss recognised and allocated to goodwill on asso-
cates prior to 1 January 2009 This cumulated
impairrment loss amounted to €230 milkon

When the Group’s share of losses n an investment
acceunted for using the equity method equals or
exceeds s interest in the investment accounted
for using the equty method, including any other
unsecured recevables, the Group does not recog-
rise further losses, unless it nas incurred obligations
or made payments on behall of the investment
accounted for using the equity method

Unreatised gans on transactions between the
Group and its investments accounted for using the
equity method are elminated to the extent of the
Group's Interest In the mvestee Unrealised losses
are also elminated uniess the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred
Accounting policies of investments accounted for
using the equity method have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the poiicies
adopted by the Group and restated :n case of
specific transactions on RTL Group level In relation
with investments

Transactions eliminated on consohdation
Intra-group balances and transactons and any
unreahsed gains ansing from ntra-group trans-
actions are ehminated in prepanng the consolidated
financial statements Unrealised gains ansing from
transactions with investments accounted for using
the equity method and joint ventures are eiminated
to the extent of the Group's interest in the under-
taking Unrealised gains resulting from transactions
with associates and jont ventures are eiminated
against the investment accounted for using the
equity method Unrealised losses are elminated in
the same way as unrealised gains except that they
are only eliminated to the extent that there s no evi-
dence of impairment

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REFPORT 2014




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Foreign currency transtation

Foreign currency translations and balances
Transactions In foreign currencies are translated to
the respective functional currencles of Group entities
at the forexgn exchange rate ruling at the date of the
transaction Monetary assets and habiliies denomi-
nated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are
translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that
date Foreign exchange differences ansing on trans-
lation are recognised in the income statement Non-
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of histornical cost In a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction MNon-monetary assets and habilities de-
nominated in foreign currencies that are stated at far
value are translated to Euro at foreign exchange
rates ruling at the date the far value was determined

Financial statements of foreign operations

The assets and labiites of foreign operations,
mncluding goodwill, except for goodwill ansing from
acquisstons before 1 January 2004, and far value
adjustments ansing on consolidation, are translated
to Euro using the foreign exchange rate prevaling at
the reporting date Income and expenses are trans-
lated at the average exchange rate for the year under
review The foreign currency trangtation differences
resulting from this treatment and those resulhing from
the translation of the foreign operations’ opening net
asset values at year-end rates are recognised directly
n a separate component of equity

Exchange differences ansing from the translation of
the net iInvestment N a foreign operation, or associated
undertaking and financial instruments, which are de-
signated and qualified as hedges of such investments,
are recognised directly in a separate component of
equity On disposal or partial disposal of a foreign
operation, such exchange differences or proportion
of exchange differences are recogrised in the Income
statement as part of the gain or loss on sale

Derivative financial instruments
and hedging activiies

Fair value

Denvative financial Instruments are initially recognised
at far value in the statement of financial position at
the date a denvative contract 1s entered into and are
subseqguently re-measured at far value
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The far value of foreign currency forward contracts
1s determined by using forward exchange market
rates at the reporting date

Cash flow hedging

For qualfying hedge relationships, the Group docu-
ments at the inception of the transaction the relation-
ship between hedging instruments and hedged
items, as well as s nsk management objectve and
strategy for undertaking the hedge This process
includes inking all denvatives designated as hedges
to spectic assets and liabiities or to specific firm
commitments or forecast transactons The Group
also documents both at the hedge inception and on
an ongong bass, its assessment of whether the
hedgng denvatives are effective in offsetting changes
in farr values or cash flows of the hedged tems

The accounting treatrment apphed to cash flow
hedges in respect of off-balance sheet assets and
liabiliies can be summarnsed as follows

= For qualfying hedges, the effective component of
far value changes on the hedgng mstrument
{mostly foreign currency forward contracts or cash
balances tn foreign currencies) 15 deferred in
“Hedging reserve”,

= Amounts deferred in “Hedging reserve” are subse-
quently released to the ncome statement in the
penods in which the hedged tem impacts the In-
come statement or are used to adjust the carmying
value of assets purchased (basis adjustment)
When hedging forecast purchases of programme
rights n foreign currency, releases from equity via a
basis adjustment occur when the programme nght
15 recogrused on-balance sheet in accordance with
the Group's policy,

u The ineffective component of the far value chang-
es on the hedging Instrurment 1s recorded directly in
the mcome statement

When a hedging instrument expires or 1S sold, or
when a hedge no longer meets the cntena for hedge
accounting under IAS 38, any cumulative gain or loss
included in the “Hedging reserve” 1s defered until the
committed or forecast transaction uttimately impacts
the ncome statement However, If 2 committed or
forecast transaction 1s no longer expected to ocour,
then the cumulative gain or loss that was reported
in equity 15 immediatety transferred to the income
staterment
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Current/non-current distincticn

Current assets are assets expected to be realised or
consumed in the normat course of the Group's oper-
ating cycle {normally within one year) All other assets
are classified as non-current assets

Current habilities are habhties expected to be settled
by use of cash generated in the normal course of
the Group's operating cycle (normally within one
year) or labilties due within one year from the report-
ing date All other habilities are classified as non-cur-
rent labilities

intangible assets

1.7, 1.

Non-current programme and other nghts
Non-current programme and other nghts ara initially
recognised at acqusition ¢ost or production cost
which includes staff costs and an appropriate portion
of relevant overheads, when the Group controls, In
substance, the respective assets and the nsks and
rewards attached to them

Non-current programme and other nghts include
(co-Jproductions, audiowisual and other nghts
acquired with the pnmary intention to broadcast,
distnbute or trade them as part of the Group's long-
term operations Non-current programme and other
nghts are amortised based on expected revenue The
amortisation charge s based on the ratio of net
revenue for the perod over total estimated net
revenue The (co-)production shares and flat fees of
distrbuters are amortised over the applicable
product lifecycle based upon the ratio of the current
pencd'’s revenue to the estimated remaimng total
revenue (ultimate revenue) for each (co-)production

Estimates of total net revenue are reviewed penod)-
cally and additenal mparment losses are recog-
nised if approprate

Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method as at the acquisition date Good-
will ansing from applying this method 1s measured at
initial recognition as detalled innote 1 3 1

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidianes s recognised
as an intangible asset Goodwill is tested annually
for imparrment and carned at cost less accumulat-
ed imparment losses Goodwill 1s allocated to cagh-
generating units for the pumose of mparment
testing Each of the cash-generating urits represents
the Group's investment # a geographical area of

operation by business segment, except for the con-
tent business, SpotXchange and the Multi Channefs
Networks, which 1S a worldwide operation

No goodwill 1s recegnised on the acquisition of non-
controling interests

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets with a definite usefd Ife,
which are acgurred by the Group, are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and mparment
losses They compnse licences (other than (co-)pro-
duction, audigwisual and other rights), trademarks
and similar nghts as well as EDP software They are
amortised on a straight-line basis over their estmated
usefui Iife as follows

& Licences seven to 20 years,
a Spoftware maximum three years

Other intangible assets with a definite useful life
also include capitalised costs assocated with the
acquisition of sports club players These costs are
amortised on a straght-line basis over the penod of
the respectve contracts The term of these contracts
may vary but it generally ranges from one to five years

Brands, unless an indefinite useful Iife can be just:-
fied, and customer relationships acqurred through
business combinations are amortised on a straight-
line basis over therr estimated useful kfe

Other intangible assets with an indefinite useiful life
are tested annually for imparment and whenever
there 1s an indication that the intangible asset may be
impared

Property, plant and equipment

Owned assets

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and imparment
losses Depreciation is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useiul lves of the assets
as follows

atand nit

& Buldings ten to 25 years,

u Technical equipment four to ten years,

® Other fixtures and fitings, teols and egquipment
three to ten years
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Where an item of property, plant and eguipment
compnses major companents having different useful
Ives, they are accounted for as separate tems of
property, plant and equipment Gains and losses on
disposals are determined by companng proceeds
with the carrving amount and are included In oper-
ating profit

Depreciation methods and useful ives, as well as
residual values, are reassessed annually

Leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the
Group assumes substantally all the benefits and
nsks of ownership are classifisd as finance leases
Assets held under finance leases and the related
obhgations are recognised on the statement of finan-
cial position at the lower of ther farr value and the
present value of minimum lease payments at the
inception of the lease, less accumulated depreciation
and imparment losses Such assets are depreciated
onthe same basis as owned assets (seenote 18 1)
or lease term if no evidence of iessee will obtain
ownership Each lease payment s allocated between
the liability and finance charge so as to achieve a
constant rate on the outstanding finance balance
The corresponding lease obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in loans payable The interest
element of the finance charge 1s charged to the
Incorme statement over the lease penod

t gases whera all the nsks and benefits of awnership
are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases Payments made under operating
leases, net of any Incentives received from the lessor,
are charged to the income statement on a straight-
ine basis over the period of the lease

Subsequent expenditure

Expenditure incurred to replace a component of an
item of property, plant and equipment, that 1s sepa-
rately accounted for, 1s capitalised, with the carrying
amount of the component that 1s to be replaced
beng wntten off Other subsequent expenditure s
capitalised only when it increases the future economic
benefits that will be denvec from the item of property,
plant and equipment Ali other expenditure Is
expensed as incurred
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Loans and other financial assets

Loans are recognised intially at fair value plus trans-
action costs In subsequent penods, loans are stated
at amortised cost using the effective yield method,
less any valuation allowance for credit nsk Any
difference between nomnat value, net of transaction
costs, and redemption value s recogrised using the
effectve interest method in the income statement
over the penaod of the loan

Non-current and current investments compnse avail-
able-for-sale assets and other financial assets at far
value through profit or loss

Investments intended to be held for an ingefinite
period of time, which may be sold n response to
needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates, are
classified as avalable-for-sale and are included in
non-current assets unless management have the
express intention of hotding the iInvestment for less
than 12 months from the reporting date or unless they
will need to be scld to raise operating capital, in which
case they are included in current assets Manage-
ment determine the appropnate classification of
its mvestments at the time of the purchase and
re-evaluate such designation on a regular basis
Availlable-for-sale investments are intially recognised
at far value plus transaction costs and are sub-
sequently camed at far value Unrealised gamns and
tosses ansing from changes in the fair vatue of avai-
able-for-sale investments are ncluded, net of deferred
income tax, in other comprehensive Income (revaiu-
ation reserve} in the penod in which they anse

Financial mstruments are designated at farr value
through profit or loss if they contain one or more
embedded denvatives which cannot be measured
separately, or when they are managed and thexr per-
formance 1s evaluated on a far value basis They are
nitially recognised at farr value, and transaction costs
are expensed In the Income statement Changes in
farr value are recognised in the income statement

All purchases and sales of non-current and current
investments are recognised on the trade date, which
15 the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset

The far value of publicly traded investments 1s based
on quoted market pnces at the reporting date The fair
value of non-publicly traded investments is based on
the estimated discounted value of future cash flows
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Current programme ngbts

Current programme nghts are initally recognised at
acquisition cost or Group production cost when the
Group controls, in substance, the respective assets
and the nsks and rewards attached to them

Current pregramme rights include programmes :n
progress, (co-)productions and nghts acquired with
the primary intention to broadeast or sell them in
the normal course of the Group's operating cycle
Current programme rights include an appropnate
portion of overheads and are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value The net realisable value
assessment 15 based on the advertising revenue
expected to be generated when broadcast and
on estimated net sales Weak audience shares or
changes from a pnme time to a late-right slot
constitute indicators that a valuation allowance may
be recorded They are consumed based on erther
the expected number of transmissions or expected
revenue In order to match the costs of consumption
with the benefits receved The rates of consurmption
appled for broadcasting rights are as follows

= Free television thematc channels programme
nghts are consumed on a straight-line basis over a
maximum of six runs,
1 Free television other channels
= Blockbusters (films with high cinema ticket sales),
mini-series (primarly own productions with a
large budget), other fiims, series, TV movies and
(co-lproductions are manly consumed over a
maximum of two transmissions as folows at
least 67 per cent upen the first transmission, with
the remainder upon the second transmission,
= Scaps, In-house productions, quiz and game
shows, sports and other events, documentaries
and music shows are fully consumed upon the
first transrmission,
= Children's programmes and cartoons are con-
sumed over a maximum of two transmissions as
foliows at least 50 per cent upon the first trans-
mission, with the remainder upon the second
transmission,
® Pay television channels programme rghts are
consumed on a straight-line basis over the license
penod

Accounts receivable

Trade accounts recevable anse from the sale of
goods and services related to the Group’s operating
actvites Other accounts recewable include, In
addition to deposits and amounts related to Profit
and Loss Pooling {"PLP") and Compensation Agree-
ments with RTL Group’s controlling shareholder, VAT
recoverable, and prepad expenses Trade and other

accounts recevable are measured at amortised cost
Imparment losses on trade and cther accounts
receivable are recognised when there 15 objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the onginat term of recev-
ables Significant financial difficulties of the debtor,
probability that the debtor wilt enter bankruptcy or
financial reorgarisation, and default or delinquency
in payments (more than 30 days overdue} are
considered indicators that the trade recewable 1s
impared The amount of the prowsian 1s the differ-
ence between the asset's carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the onginal effective interest rate The
carrying amount of the asset 1s reduced through the
use of an allowance account, and the amourit of the
loss 18 recognised n the ncome statement within
depreciation, amortisation and impairment When a
trade recevable 1s urcollectible it 1s written off against
the allowance account for tradte accounts recevable
Subsequent recoveres of amounts previously written
off are credited aganst depreciation, amortisation
and imparment in the income statement

Accrued income Is stated at the amounts expected
to be receved

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash consists of cash in hand and at bank

Cash equivalents are assets that are readly con-
vertible into cash, such as short-term highly liquid
Investments, commercial paper, bank deposits and
marketable secunties, all of which mature within
three months from the date of purchase, and money
market funds that qualify as cash and cash equiva-
lents under IAS 7 (seenote 312)

Bank overdrafts are included within current habilities

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assats that have an indefinite useful ife are not sub-
Ject to amortisaticn and are tested annually for mpair-
ment Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairrment whenever events or changes
N arcumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable Animpairment loss 1s recog-
nised for the amount by which the asset’s carmying
amount exceeds Its recoverable amount For the pur-
poses of assessing iImparrment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately
dentfiable cash flows (cash-generating units)

The recoverable amount 1s the higher of an asset's
far value less costs of disposal and value in use In
assessing value In use, and far value less costs of
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disposal where applicable, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to ther present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflacts current market as-
sessments of the time value of money and the nsks
specific to the asset

In respect of assets other than goodwll, an impair-
ment loss I1s reversed wihen there s an indication that
the conditions that caused the imparment loss may
no longer axist and there has been a change in the
estimates used 10 determine the recoverable amount
The carrying value after the reversal of the impairment
loss cannot exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation and am-
ortisation, if no impairment loss had been recogrised

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether
there I1s abjective endence that a financial asset, ora
group of financial assets, 15 impared

Ewvidence of impairment of avalable-for-sale financial
assets 15 assessed on the basis of two qualtative
cntena

® A significant drop of the fair valus, considered as a
decline exceeding one quarter of the acquistion
cost, while gvng consideration to alf market con-
ditions and circumstances, or

a The observation of an unrealised loss over two
consecutive years

If any such evidence exists for avalable-for-sale finan-
cial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisiion cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previcusly recognised in the income
statement - 1s removed from equity and recognised in
the income statement Imparment losses recognised
In the income staterment on equity instruments are
not reversed through the income statement (“Finan-
cial results other than interast”} Impairment testing of
trade accounts recenvable 1s descnbed iInnote 1 11

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified
as assets held for sale when therr carrying amount 1s
to be recovered pnncipally through a sale transaction
and a sale 1s considered highly probable They are
stated at the lower of the canying amount and far
value less costs of disposal if their carmang amount 1s
recovered prnincipally through a sale transachon rather
than through continung use The imparment iosses
on the assets related to disposal groups are reported
In non-current assets held for sale
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Accounts payable

Trade accounts payable anse from the purchase of
assets, goods and services relating to the Group's
operatng actvtes Other accounts payable com-
prise, n addiion to amounts related to the Profit and
Loss Pooling Agreement (“PLP") with RTL Group's
controling shareholder, VAT payable, far value of
dervative labilities, accrued expenses, and accounts
payable cn capital expenditure Trade and other
accounts payable are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, except denvative
liabilities which are measured at farr value

Loans payable

Interest-beanng current and non-current habilities are
recognised initally at far value less transaction costs
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-beanng
current and non-current llabillties are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between cost and
redemption value being recogmsed in the ncome
statement over the pericd of the borrowings using
the effective interest method

Provisions

Prowisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation to transfer
economic benefits as a result of past events The
amounts recognised represent management's best
estimate of the expenditures that will be required to
settle the obligation as of the reporting date Prowi-
sions are measwed by discounting the expected
future cash flows to settle the obligation at a pre-tax
nsk-free rate that reflects current market assess-
ments of the tme value of money and, where
appropnate, the nsks specific to the obligation

A provision for restructunng 1s recegrised when the
Group has approved a detailed and formal restructur-
Ing plan and the restructuring has either commenced
or has been announced publicly Casts relating to the
ongoing actwvities of the Group are not provided for

Prowvisions for onerous contracts relate to unavoid-
able costs for individual programme nghts, the
performance of which 18 assessed as clearly below
that onginally planned when the contract was agreed
Such situations mamnly anse in case of executory
obligations to purchase programmes wiich will not
be ared due to lack of audience capacity or to a
rmsmatch with the current editorial policy in additon,
an expected or actual fall in audience can be ew-
denced by several mndicators such as the under-
performance of & previous season, the withdrawal of
the programme’s main advertisers or a decline in the
populanty or success of sports stars Long-term
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sourcing agreements aim to secure the supply In pro-
grammes of broadcasters They are mamnly output
deals, producticn agreements given the European
guota obligations, and arrangements with sports
organisations The provision 1S measured at the
present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the expected net cost
of continuing with the contract Before a provision Is
astablished, the Group recogmses any impairment
loss on the assets assocated with that contract

Employee benefits

Pension benefits

The Group operates or participates in both defined
contnbution and defined benefit plans, according to
the national laws and regulations of the countries
In which 1t operates The assets of the plans are
generally held in separate trusteg-administered
funds, and some of the plans are operated through
pension funds that are legally independent from the
Group The pension plans are generally funded by
payments from employees and by the relevant Group
companies, taking into account the recommend-
ations of ndependent qualfied aciuanes

Pension costs and cohgations relating to defined
benefit plans are recognised based on the projected
unit credit method The Group recognises actuanal
gans and losses in other comprehensive ncome

Past-service costs are recogmised immediately
through the profit or loss

Pension costs relating to defined contribution plans
fincluding deferred compensation plans that are
defined contnbution plans In nature) are recognised
when an employee has rendered serace in exchange
for the contributions due by the employer

Other benefits

Many Group companies provide death In service
benefits, and spouses’ and children’s benefits The
costs associated with these benefits are recognised
when an employee has rendered service in exchange
for the contributions due by the employer

Share-based transactions

Share options are granied to certan directors and
senior employees The options are granted at the
market price on the date of the grant and are exer-
cisable at that pnce

When a share option 1s granted, the far value of
options granted 1s recognised as an employee
expense with a comresponding increase in equity The
farr value 1s measured at grant date and spread over
the penod durnng which the employees become
uncenditicnally entitled to the options The far value
of the options granted 1s measured using a binomial
model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted The amount
recognised as an expense I1s adjusted to reflect the
actual number of share options that vest, except
where forfeiture 15 only due to share pnces not
achieving the threshotd for vesting

The cost of cash-settled transactions s measured
imitially at far value at the grant date using a binomial
model taking Into account the terms and conditions
upon which the instruments were granted This far
value 1s expensed over the vesting penod until settle-
ment with recogrition of a comesponding habiity The
llabiity 1s re-measured at each reporting date up to,
and including, the settlement date, with changes in
far vatue recognised N the Income statement

Share capital

Equity transaction costs

Incremental external costs directly attnputable to
the 1ssue of new shares, other than in connection
with a business combination, are deducted, net of
the refated ncome taxes against the gross proceeds
recorded In equity

Treasury shares
Where the Company or s subsidianes purchase
the Company's own equity, the consideration paid,
inciuding any attnbutable transacton costs net of
ncome taxes, 15 shown In deducton of equity as
“Treasury shares”

Dividends

Dmdends on ordinary shares are recorgded in the
consoligated financial statements in the perod in
which they are approved at the Shareholders’ meet-
ing or authonsed by the Board of Directors in case of
interrm cmdend
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Revenue presentation and recognition

Revenue includes sales of nghts and licence income,
{co-)productions, advertising revenue and other sales,
net of sales deductions such as cash rebates, credit
notes, discounts, refunds and VAT Revenue com-
pnses the far value of consideration recewved or re-
cewvable for the sale of services 1n the ordinary course
of the Group's actvities Agency commissions are
presented as a decduction from advertising revenue

Revenue 1s recogrised when the Group has trans-
ferred the significant nsks and rewards of ownership,
and the control over the goods sold and the amount
of revenue can be measured reliably Specifically,
advertising sales are recognised when the related
advertisement or commercial 1$ broadcast, and sales
of programme nghts under licences are recognised
when the programme matenal has been accepted
by the kcensee as being in accordance with the
conditions of the icence agreement

Barter revenue 1s recognised f goods or servces In
a barter transaction are of a dissimilar nature and if
revenue has economic substance and can be relia-
bly measured Revenue from barter transactions 1s
recognised at the far value of the goods or services
receved, adjusted for any cash involved 1n the trans-
action

Government grants

Grants from government and inter-governmentai
agencies are recognised at ther far value where
there 1s a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
recewved and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions

Government grants refated to assets are iniially pre-
sented as a deduction in amwving at the carrying
amount of the asset

Grants that compensate the Group for expenses In-
curred are recognised in profit or loss on a system-
atic basis In the same pernod n which the expenses
are recognised

Gain/{loss) from sale of subsidianes, other
investments and re-measurement to

fair value of pre-existing interest in acquiree
Gans/{losses) on disposal or loss of control of
subsidiaries owring onty one non-financial asset or
a group of similar assets are classified in Other
operating income to reflect the substance of the
transaction
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Interest Income/ expense
Imterest income/expense 1s recognised on a tme
proportion basis using the effective interest method

Income tax

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year compnses
current and deferred tax Income tax i1s recognised in
the income statement except to the extent that
relates to items recognised directly to equity or other
comprehensive Income

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable on the tax-
able income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantially enacted in the countries where the
Group's subsidianes, joint ventures and associates
operate and generate taxable income at the report-
ng date and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years

Deferred taxes are recognised accoerding to the
balance sheet habiity method on any temporary
difference between the carrying amount for consolid-
ation purposes and the tax base of the Group's
assets and habilities Temporary differences are not
provided for when the initial recegnition of assets or
liabilities affects neither accounting nor taxable profit,
and when differences reltate to investments in subsia-
1anes to the extent that they will probably not reverse
in the foreseeable future No temporary differences
are recognised on the inhial recognttion of goodwill
Deferred tax assets and labilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the pencd
when the asset 1s realised or the liability 15 settled,
based on tax rates that have been enacted or sub-
stantively enacted at the reporting date

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it s probable that future taxable profits will be
availlable aganst which the temporary differences
and losses camed forward can be utlised Deferred
tax assets and labilibes are offset when there s a
legally enforceable nght to set off current tax assets
aganst current tax labilties and when the defered
income taxes refate to the same tax authonty
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Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation 15 a component of the
Group'’s business that represents a separate major
Iine of business or a gecgraphical area of operations
that has been disposed of or 15 held for sale or
distribution, or 13 a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs
upon disposal or when the operation meets the
critena to be classified as held for sale, if earler When
an operation s classified as a discontinued cperation
the comparatve income statement 1s re-presented
as If the cperation hag been discontinued from the
start of the comparative year

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share 1s calculated by dividing the
net profit attrbutable to shareholders by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue dunng the
year, excludng ordinary shares purchased by the
Group and held as treasury shares and the shares
held under the iqguidity agreement (see note 6 7 )

The diuted earnings per share 1s calculated by
adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary
shares cutstanding to assume conversion of alt dilu-
tive potential ordnary shares There 15 currently no
category of dilutive potential ordinary shares

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported 1n a manner con-
sistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker The chief operating
decision-rmaker, who 1s responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operat-
Ing segments, has been identified as the Executve
Committee that makes strategic decisions

An operating segment 1$ a component of the Group
that engages in business actmities from which it may
earn revenue and incur expenses, Including revenue
and expenses that relate to transactions with any of
the Group's other components

All operating segments’ operating results are re-
viewed regularty by the Group's Executrve Committee
to make decisions about resources to be allccated
to the segment and assess its performance, and for
which discrete financial information is available

The invested capital 1s disclosed for each reportable
segment as reported to the Executve Commuttee

The segment assets include the following items

& The non-current assets, except the incremental
far value of the avalable-for-sale nvestments,
the surplus of the defined benefit plans and the
deferred tax assets,

aThe curent assets, except the income tax
recevable, the far value of denvative assets, the
current deposit with the shareholder, the accounts
recevable from the shareholder in relaton to the
PLP and Compensation Agreements, the accounts
recevable related to dividend income, the fixed
term deposits, and cash and cash equivalents

The segment assets and liabilities are consistently
measured with those of the statement of financial
position

Impact of changes

th accounting policies and disclosures

As a result of the adoption of IFRS 11, the effects of
the change in accounting policies on the consclidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of
financial position and consclidated statement of
cash flows are presentec over the following pages

There was no impact on the consclidated statement
of comprehensive income and on the consolidated
statement of changes in equity The notes have been
restated accordingly The changes mainly relate to
ATL Disney Fernsehen GmbH & Co KG
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CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 December 2013

Asonginally  Restaterment

published FRS11  Fastated

. £m ) £€m £m
Revenue i 5 88!;_ {65) 5,82m4
Other operating income 50 1 51
Consumption of current programme nghts {1 940) 16 {1,924)
Depreciation, amortisation and smpainment {203) 5 (198}
Other cperating expenses i (2 687) 24  (2,683)
Amortisation and impaimeant of far value adjustments on acquisitions of subsidianes o - 10
Gain/lloss) from sale of subsichanes, other investments
and re measurement to far value of pre @xsting nterest In acquiee 5 - 5
Profit from operating activities i 1104 {19) 1,085
Shara of resuits of nvestments accounted for using the equity method 102 i5 117
Earnings before interest and taxes (“EBIT") 1206 ) 1,202
Interest incoma 8 - 8
Interest expensa (30) - (30)
Financial results other than interest 69 1 70
Profit before taxes ) 1,253 (3 1,250
Income tax expense (305) 3 {302)
Profit for the year 948 - 948
Attrbutable to
RTL Group sharehoiders a0 - 870
Non-controling interests 78 - 78
Profit for the year 948 - 948
EBITA* 1152 W 1148
Impairment of disposal group i {10) - (10)
Reversal of impairment of Investments accounied for using the eguity method 68 - 63
Amorbsation and impairment of far value acjustments on acquisitions of subsidianes {10} - []
Re-measurement of eam-out arrangements 1 - 1
Gan from sale of subsidianes, other Investments and reé measurement to farr value of pre-existing interest in acgquiree _5 - 5
Earmngs before interest and taxes (“EBIT") 1206 {4) 1,202
Earmings per share (in €
- Basic 567 - 567
- Diluted 567 - 567

ESITA represents earnings betors nterest and toxes exchuang mparment of goocwil and of dispceal group  and amansation and MMEaMent of far value aUSIMeNts ©N acoUISHons of SubSIENes IMPSIMENt OF MVOSLTaNtS
accounTec for uming the equity method re-MEasUBMGN Of Bam-tut aTangaments and gar or 083 om kale of o, other g ra T I tar vidue Of pre-axpling WTerast i ACOUSDe
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NOTES TO THE CONSOQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 December 2013

Asonginaly  Restatement

published IFRS 11 Restated
€em €m €m
Non-current assets
Programme and other nghts } o na & 109
Goodwill 2709 {2 2,707
Other intangible assets 198 - 198
Property, plant and equipment B 332 {1 N
Investments accounted for using the equity method 335 23 359
Leans and other financial assets 141 ] 142
Deferred tax assets 392 {3 389
4222 13 4,235
GCurrent assets
Programme nghts 961 8] 955
Other inventones 15 - 15
Income tax recewvabie 42 - 42
Accounts recervable and other financial assets 1726 {51 1,721
Cash and cash equwvalents 574 (32 542
3318 43) 3,275
Assats classified as held for sale 27 - 27
Current liabilities
Loans and bank overdrafts 37 m 36
Income tax payabla 92 2 80
Accounts payable 2538 (251 2,513
Provisions 195 m 194
2862 29) 2,833
Lizlohties directly associated with non-current assets classified as held for sale 24 - 24
Net current assets 459 (14} 445
Non-current liabilities
Loans 530 (1) 529
Accounts payable 331 - 331
Provisions 169 - 169
Deferred tax habiites 58 - 58
1,088 (1) 1,087
Net assets 3563 - 3,503
Equity attnbutabie to RTL Group shareholders 3159 - 3,159
Equity attnbutable to non-controlling intarests 434 - 434
Equity 3,583 - 3.593
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 December 2013

Asongnally  Aestaterment

published IFRS 11 Restated
€m €m €m
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/{loss) before taxes } } 12583 [ic}} 1,250
Adjustments for
~ Depreciation and amortisation 185 (6) 189
— Value adjustments impairment and prowvisions 110 - 110
- Share-based payments expenses 5 - 5
- Gain on disposal of assets (33) - (33)
- Financial results including net iInterest expense
and sharg of results of invastments accounted for using the equity method (142) 4 {138)
Use of provisions (o5} - (95)
Working capital changes 68 3 65
Income taxes pad (240) 3 (237}
Net cash from/{used in} operating activities 1121 (5} 1,116
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisitions of
- Programme and other nghts 81) 5 (76}
- Subsidianes net of cash acquired {7} 2 0
~ Other intangible and tangible assets ) (a6) - (a6}
- Other nvestments and finangial assets (18) (5 23)
(264) 2 (262)
Proceeds from the sale of intangible and tangible assets 23 1 24
Disposal of other subsidianes net of cash dispesed of - - -
Proceeds from the sale of nvestments accounted for using the equity method, other investments and financial assets 250 (1) 249
Current deposit with sharenolder 426 - 426
Interest recenved i 25 - 25
724 - T24
Net cash from investing activities 460 2 462
Cash flows from financing activities
Intgrest pad {3 - (3)
Transactons on non-controling interests el - )
Term loan faciity dus to shareholder 500 - 500
Proceeds from loans 11 - 11
Repayment of loans {8 - 6
Dwidends paid {2 143) - (2143)
Net cash used in financing activities (1 644) - {1,644)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents R {83) 3 (86)
Cash and cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at beginning of year 645 {29) 616
Effect of exchange rate fluctuation on cash hetd } R )] - {5)
Effect of cash in disposal group held for sale ) ) - i5)
Cash and cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at end of yoar 572 {32) 540
ATL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2014 125




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

128

Estrmates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on histoncal expenence and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
are beleved to be reasonable under the circum-
stances

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerming the future The resultng accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant nsk of causing a matenal adjust-
ment to the carrying amounts of assets and labilities
within the next financial year are discussed below

Consolidation of entities (n which the Group
holds less than 50 per cent

Even though it has less than 50 per cent of the voting
aghts, management consider that the Group has de
facto control of Groupe M6 The Group 1s the majonty
shareholder of Groupe M6 while the balance of other
holdings remains highly dispersed and the other
shareheolders have not orgarised therr mnterest in
such a way that they intend to vote differently from
the Group

Programme and other nghts (assets and
provisions for onerous contracts)

The Group's accounting for non-current programme
nghts requires management judgement as it retates
to estmates made of total net revenue used in the
determination of the amortisation charge and impair-
ment loss for the year

In addition, management judgement will need to take
Into account factors such as the future programme
gnd, the realised/expected audience of the pro-
gramme, the current programme nghts that are not
likely to be broadcast, and the related valuation
allowance

Prowvisions for onerous contracts related to pro-
gramme and other nghts are also recogrised when
the Group has constructive obligations and it 1s prob-
able that unaveidable costs exceed the economic
benefits originally planned These provisions have
been determined by discounting the expected future
cash inflows for which the amount and timing are
dependent on future events, notably sports events

Estimated impairment of goodwill

and investments accounted for using

the equity method

The Group tests annually whether goodwll has
suffered any mparment, in accordance with the
accounting policy stated nnote 17 2

The Group tests annually whether investments
accounted for using the equity method have sufiered
any impairment, and if any imparment should be
reversed

The Group has used a combination of long-term
trenas, industry forecasts and in-house knowledge,
with greater emphass on recent experence, in
forring the assumptions about the development of
the varous advertising markets in which the Group
operates This 1s an area hughly exposed to the
general economic conditions

The state of the advertising market is just one of the
key operational dnvers which the Group uses when
assessing indmidual business models Other key
drivers include audience shares, advertising market
shares, the EBITA margin and cash conversion rates

All of these different elements are vanable, inter-
related and difficult 10 1sclate as the main dnver of the
vanous business models and respective valuations

The Group performs sensitvity analysis on the cash-
generating units, especially on those where the
headroom between the recoverable amount and the
carrying value is low

Contingent consideration and put option
habiities on non-controlling interests

Contingent consideration, resulting from business
combrnatons, IS valued at fair value at the acquisition
date as part of the business combination, and
subsequently re-measured at each reporting date
The determination of the far value 1s based on
discounted cash flow and takes into account the
probabiity of meeting each performance target Put
option labities on non-controlling interests are
valued based on the net present value of the
expected cash outflow in case of exercise of the
option by the counterparty
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fair value of avallable-for-sale investments

and financial assets/liabilities at far value
through profit or loss

The Group has used discounted cash flow analysis
for vanous avalable-for-sale investmenis and finan-
cial assets/labiities at far value through profit or
loss that were not traded n active markets

The carrying amount of avalable-for-sale invest-
ments would be an estimated €4 millon lower or
higher were the discount rates used in the discount-
ed cash flow analysis tc differ by 10 per cent from
management'’s estimates

(2. 6]

Provisions for litigations

Most claims involve complex issues, and the proba-
bility of loss and an estmation of damages are diffi-
cult te ascertain A provision 1S recognised when the
nsk of a loss becomes more likely than not and when
it 18 possible to make a reasonable estimate of the
expected financial effect RTL Group management
review on a regular bass the expected settlement of
the prowvisions

Income, deferred and other taxes

The Group s subject to Income and other taxes In
numerous Junsdictions There are transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
18 uncertain dunng the ordinary course of business

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it 1 probable that future taxable profits will be avail-
able against which the temporary differences and
losses carried forward can be utlised Management
Judgement 1s required to assess probable future tax-
able profits In 2014, deferred tax assets on losses
carry-forwards (mamnly in Germany. €25 million, 2013
€28 million} and on temporary differences {manly in
Germany, €316 millon, 2013 €335 milicn} have
been reassessed on the basis of currently imple-
mented tax strategies

Post-employment benefits
The post-employment benefits lay on several
assumptions such as

n The discount rate determined by reference to
market ytelds at the closing on high guality cor-
porate bonds {such as corporate AA bonds) and
depending on the duration of the plan,

® Estmate of future salary increases mamly taking
into account infiation, semonty, promotion and
supply and demand in the employment market

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2014

(2. 9]

Disposal groups

The determination of the far value less costs of
disposal requres management judgement as it
relates to estimates of proceeds of the disposal,
residual obligations and drrect disposal costs

Contingent habilities

Contingent liabilties are disclosed unless manage-
ment consider that the likelhood of an outflow of
economic benefits 1Is remote
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EX FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
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(3. 1]

Financial nsk factors

The Group's actmties expose It to a vanety of finan-
cial nsks market nsk {(including currency, interest
rate, inflation nsk and equity nsks), counterparty
credit nsk and hguidity sk The Group 1s expoesed In
particular to nsks from movements n foreign
exchange rates as it engages in long-term purchase
contracts for programme nghts (output deals)
denocminated in foreign currency

Risk management is carried out by the Group Treas-
ury department under the supervision of the Chief
Financial Officer under policies approved by the
Board of Directors Group Treasury identifies, evalu-
ates and hedges nsks In close cooperation with the
Group's operating units The Group's overall nsk
management programme focuses on the unpredict-
ability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance The Beard of Directors has 1ssued wit-
ten principles for overall nsk management as well as
written policies covenng specific areas, such as
market nsk, credit nsk, iquidity nsk, use of denva-
trves and investment of excess Iiquidity

The Group seeks to minimise the potential adverse
effects of changing financial markets on its perfor-
mance through the use of dervative financial instru-
ments such as forexgn exchange forward contracts
Denvatives are not used for speculative purposes
Ruisks are hedged to the extent that they influence the
Group's cash flows (1 e translatonal nsk linked to the
conversion of net nvestments in foreign operations
15 not hedged)

Market risk
Foreign exchange nsk

Foreign exchange expasure

The Group operates internakionally and 15 exposed
to foreign exchange nisk ansing from vanous curren-
cy exposures, pnmarly in respect of USD and GBP

Foreign exchange nsk anses from recognised assets
and habilities, future commercial transactions and net
nvestments in forergn operations

Far the Group as a whole, cash flows, net income
and net worth are optmised by reference to the
Euro However, foreign exchange nsks faced by
indnidual Group companies are managed or hedged
against the functicnal currency of the relevant entity
{as these entities generally generate their revenue
in local currencies) Hence the Group manages a

vanety of currencies due to the numerous functional
currencies of the comparues constituting the Group

In addition, market practices in the television busi-
ness imply a significant forward exposure to USD as
programma nghts are usually denominated in USD
and not pad up-front For this reason, the man
cff-balance sheet exposure of the Group is towards
the USD in respect of future purchases and sales of
programme rights, output deals {commitments for
future cash flows) and highly probable forecast trans-
actions (USD 15 millon as at 31 December 2014,
USD 76 milion as at 31 December 2013)

Management of the foreign exchange exposure
Managernent have set up a policy to require Group
companies t¢ manage ther foreign exchange nsk
against their funchional currency Group companies
are required to hedge ther entire foreign currency
exchange risk exposure with Group Treasury in
accordance with the Group Treasury policies All
foreign currency exchange exposures, including
signed and forecast output deals and programme
nghts in foreign currency are centralised n an
Intranet-based database To manage ther foregn
exchange nsk ansing from recognised assets and
llabiies and future commercial transactions, entities
in the Group use forward contracts transacted with
Group Treasury Group Treasury 1s then responsible
for hedging, most of the time on a cne-to-one basis,
the exposure against the functional currency of the
respective entity

The Group Treasury policy is ta hedge up to 100 per
cent of the recognised monetary foreign currency
exposures ansing from cash, accounts recewvable,
accounts payable, loans recewable and borrowings
denominated i currencies other than the functional
currency The Group policy is to hedge between
80 per cent and 100 per cent of short-term cash flow
forecasts and between 20 per cent and 80 per cent
of longer term (between two and five years) cash flow
forecasts Approximately 75 per cent (2013 70 per
cent) of anticipated cash flows constitute firm com-
mitments or highly probable forecast transactions for
hedge accounting purposes

In order to monitor the comphance of the manage-
ment of the foreign exchange exposure with the
Group's policy, a monthly report 15 produced and
analysed by management This report shows each
subsidiary’'s exposure to currencies other than ther
functional currency, detaling the nature (e g trade
accounts, royalties, ntercompany accounts) of on-
balance sheet iterns, and the undertying deals and
matunties of off-balance sheet iterms, as well as
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(1] Thasa armounts roiate 1o cematnes used

tor wisch hedge account ng as defined
under IAS 39 s not apoad

The spirt by maturities
of notional amounts
of forward exchange
contracts at

31 December 2014 1s,
for the main foreign
currenctes, as follows

The split by matunties
of notronal amounts
of forward exchange
contracts at

31 December 2013 1s,
for the main foreign
currencies, as follows

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

the corresponding hedging ratios A specific report
showing the global currency exposures {manly USD)
15 provided to RTL Group management on a month-
ly basis

Accounting

The foretgn currency cash flow hedge accounting
mcedel defined under 1AS 39 1s applied by those com-
panies which account for the maonty of the Group's
foreign currency exposure, when

s Hedged foreign currency exposures relate to
programme nghts transactions which have not yet
been recognised on the statement of financial
position (such as forecast or firm purchases of

the amount of ineffectiveness {see note 65) that
has been recognised in the iIncome statement i1s
€{4) million (€ il mullion in 2013)

For ecogrised foreign currency monetary assets
and liabilities there 1s a natural offset of gains and
losses in the income statement between the revalu-
aton of the denvative and the exposure There-
{ore, hedge accounting as defined under IAS 39S
not appled

Foreign exchange derivative contracts
The impact of forward foreign exchange contracts s
detailed as follows

A
programme rights far which the licence period has 2:: 51;:
not yet begun), and

® Amounts are sufficiently materal to justify the need  Net far value of foreign exchange
for hedge accounting denvative assets

(seanotes 78 and 7 12) . 62 (15)
Operating foreign exchange

When hedge accounting is applied, the effective gans/llosses)' 13 1)

pertion of the changes in the far value of the hedaiNg  caan fiow hedges ineffectivenass

instrument is recognised net of deferred tax In the  gans/({losses} (see note 6 5 ) {4} -

hedging reserve as presented in the "Consolidated

statement of changes in equity” (see note 7 154} It me o

15 added to the carrying value of the hedged item

when such an item is recognised in the statemert | o< han 3 months - 10 ®

of financiat positon The ineffectve portion of the | oo ihan year 24 )

change w1 far value of the hedging nstrumenmt | ooypang years T 28 )

(including swap points) 1s recogrised directly In prof- ot far value of dervative assets

it or loss For the year ended 31 December 2014, {seencies 78 and7 12} 62 (15)

2005 206 2017 2018 > 2018 Total
£m £m £m Em £m fm

Buy 138 19 9 4 3 173

Sell (282 (10) @) - 2 {296)

Total {144) 9 7 4 1 (123)

2015 2018 2017 2018 >2018 Tota)
sm $m 5m m $m m

Buy 900 233 124 61 13 133

Sell i (ar2) (39) (14) (10} n (436)

Total 528 194 110 51 12 885

2014 28 2016 2m7 > 2017 Total
£m £ £m £m fm Em

Buy 208 a5 7 2 1 253

Sell R (303) (42) @3 {1) m (350)

Total (95) {7 4 1 - 97}

2014 2013 2016 27 »2017 Toal
sm sm £m $m $m $m

Buy 899 268 180 98 58 1531

Sef ] (316) {82 e W W o)

236 166 95 54 1134
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Sensitivity analysis to foreign exchange rates
Management estimate that

a [fthe USD had been 10 per cent stronger compared
to the € [respectively weaker), with all other
vanables held constant, this would have had no
matenal impact on the Group profit or loss (2013
no matenal impact), and an additional pre-tax
€62 mikon income (respectively expense} (2013 an
income of €68 million) recognised in equity,

» |f the GBP had been 10 per cent stronger com-
pared to the € {respectively weaker), with all cther
varables held constant, this would have had no
matsnal mpact on the Group profit or loss {2013
no matenal impact), and an addshonal pre-tax
€2 million expense (respectively income) {2013 an
expense of €3 million) recogrised In eguity,

= [f other currencies had been 10 per cent stronger
compared 1o € {respectively weaker), with all other
varables held constant, thes would have had no
matenal impact on profit or loss and equity (2013
no matenal Impact)

This sensitivity analysis does not include the mpact
of translation into € of foreign operations

interest rate nsk

The Group interest rate nsk anses pnmanty from loans
payable, financing agreements with Bertelsmann SE
& Co KGaA (see note @ 1) and from cash and cash
equivalents

The objective of the interest rate nsk management
policy 1s to mintmise the interest rate funding cost
over the long-term and to maxmise the excess cash
return

The Group entered in 2013 into a 10-year-tarm lozan
faciity in the amount of €500 milhon with a fixed
interest rate of 2 713 per cent per year The term loan
matures on 7 March 2023 The far valug of the
10-year-term facility — calculated as i1he present
value of the payments associated with the debt and
based on the applicable yield curve and RTL Group
credit spread — amounts to €555 milion (2013
€494 mihon) Thig s a Level 2 far value measure-
ment (see note 3 3 2} Under the same shareholder
loan agreement, the Group also has access to a
revoiving and swing kne faciity of up to €1 billon
The revohang and swing bne facility matures on
24 February 2018 The interest rates for lpans under
the revohving and swing line facility are EURIBOR plus
a margin of 0 60 per cent per year and EONIA plus a
margin of 0 60 per cent per year, respectively The
balance between the fixed versus floating rate ratio
might change substantially following the loan
agreements descrbed above Managsment intend
to maintain a suitable fixed versus floating rate ratio,

taking into account interest rate yield curves This
percentage can be reviewed at the discretion of the
Treasury Committes untl the optimum mix between
fixed and fleating rates has been achieved

In order to maximise the excess cash return on cash
balances, cross border cash pooling has been set up
for mest of the entities of the Group  The interest rate
strategy defined by RTL Group depends on the net
cash position of each company

When RTL Group has excess cash, the Treasury
Committee defines the appropnate average tenor of
the short-term placements based on business sea-
sonality and regularly reviewed cash flow forecasts
Interest income depends on the evolution of flvating
interest rates and can potentially, in a low interest
rate environment, generate a shortfall of ncome
against interest expense

Group Treasury uses vanous indicators to monitor
interest rate nsk, such as a targeted net fixed/
floating rate debt ratio, duration, basis pont value
{increase In Interest rate costs resulting from a basis
point increase I Interest rate) and interest cover ratio
(e adusted EBITA over net interest expense as
defined by ratting agencies)

If the interest rates achieved would have been lower
(respectively tugher) by 100 basis points, and assum-
ing the current amount of floating net cash available
remamns constant, the net interest Income/ (expense}
at 31 December 2014 would have been decreased
{respectively ncreased} by €1 million (2013 €6 million)

The following table indicates the effective interest
rate of interest-earning financial assets and interest-
beanng financial babilites at 31 December and the
penods in which they re-price
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Etfecive Totat & months §-12 1-2 2-5 Over 5
Inferest rate amaunt’ o i%s menths years years years
Notes % £€m £€m €m €m €m £m
Loans to investments
accounted for using the equity method - fixed rate 54 1 - - - 1 -
Loans to investments
accounted for using the equity method — floating rate 13 3 - 3 - - -
Other loans - fixed rate 34 39 20 1 8 - -
Other Igans - floating rate 06 5 4 1 - - -
{Cash and cash equwvalents — earning assets 03 483 483 - - - -
Bank loans — fixed rate 52 19 - 1 (8 - -
Bank loans — fleating rate 7,11 14 2 2 - - - -
Term loan facilty due to shareholder — fixed rate 7. 11 27 (500 - - - - (5000
Revohling lean faciity due to shareholder — floating rate 07 (536) (536) - - - -
Loans due to investments
accounted for using the equity method - floating rate 7.11. o2 {5) (5) - - - -
o1 () (4} - - - -
Leasing habilities - fixed rate 56 {1) (1} - - - -
Leasing habilites — floating rate 7,11 03 {2 - {2) - - -
Loans payable - not beanng interest 711, - 15) - - {1 (1) 3
Loans payable - floating rate 18 (15) (15) - - - -
At 31 December 2014 {558) (56) 2 (1) - {503}
Leans to investments
accounted for using the equity method - fixed rate eo 1 - 1 - - -
Loans to investments
accounted for using the eguity method - floating rate 04 3 2 1 - - -
Other loans — fixed rate 37 48 - 10 37 1 -
Other loans — floating rate os 7 5 2 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents — earning assets 0g 542 542 - - - -
Bank loans - fixed rate 52 (28) - (10} (17 {1 -
Bank loans - floating rate 7. 41 61 ) (1) 3 - - -
Term loan facility due to sharehalder — fixed rate 7.11 27 {500) - - - - {500)
Loans dug to nvestments
accourtted for using the equity method - fixed rate 7. 11 20 [G)] - (4) - - -
717 03 1] (2 - - - -
Leasing habilities - fixed rate 59 (1) - - nm - -
Loans payable - not bearing interest - {4) - - - m (3
Loans payahte - floating rate 7. 11 3z (Y B8) - - - -
At 31 Decemnber 2013 50 538 %] 19 1) (503)

(1) Exchudng accrued mierests

3. 1. 2.
Credit nsk

RTL Group's exposure to credit nisk pnmarly anses
through sales made to custormers {trade recevables),
Investments in money market funds classified in cash
and cash eguwvalents, and deposits made with
banks and the shareholder

Credit nsk 1s managed on a Group basis, except for
credit nsk relating to accounts recevable balances
that are managed by indvidual subsidiaries

The Group's television and radic operations incur
exposure to credit nsk when making transactions
with advertising agencies or dwect custormers In
2014, the combined television and radio advertising
revenue contnbuted 59 per cent of the Group's
revenue (2013 58 per cent) Due to s business
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model, RTL Group's exposure to credtt nisk i1s directly
linked to the final chent However the nsks are
considered as low due to the size of the indwvidual
companies or agency groups

RTL Group produces programmes that are sold or
licensed to state-owned and commercial television
channels In 2014, these activities contributed 28 per
cent of the Group's revenue (2013 29 per cent)
Given the IImited number of television broadcasters
in different countries, there 1s a hugh degree of con-
centration of credit nsk However, gven the long-
standing relationships between content provider
and broadcasters and the fact that the customers
are large businesses with sold financral posrtions,
the level of credt nsk is significantly miigated
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Ageing of financial
assets (excluding
available-for-sale and
fair value through profit
or loss invesiments for
respectively €58 million
and € mi mithon) at

31 December 2014

Agerng of financial
assets (excluding
available-for-sale and
fair value through profit
or loss investments for
respectively €65 milflion
and € nif million) at

31 December 2013

{1} A131 Decernber 2014 cumulated
vakation alowsnces amount to
€83 milhon of which €4 milkon ona
colactive bass Tha latter are nat
taken Mita account 11 the table above

{21 Az 31 Dacember 2013 cumuiated
vakation abowances smount to
€93 miton of which €4 midkon on a
colective basis. The fatter are not
taken o account in the tabla above
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RTL Group alse has policies in place to ensure that
sales of products and services are made to custom-
ers with an appropnate credit history

According to the banking policy of the Group, denv-
ative instruments and cash transactions {(including
bank depcsits and investments in money market
funds) are operated only with high credt gualty
financial institutions sc as to mitigate counterparty
nsk {only Independently rated parties with a minimum
ratng of ‘A are accepted for bank deposits) The
Group’s bank relationship policy sets forth stnngent
cntena for the selection of banking partners and
money market funds (such as applicable supervisory
authonties, investment policy, maximum volatility,

track record, rating, cash and cash equivalents
status under IAS 7) In order to miigate settlement
nsk, the Group has policies that imit the amount of
credit exposure to any one financial Institution on any
single day Stanstics (such as the percentage of
the business allocated to each bank over the year
compared to a target defined by management, or
such as the summary of the highest intraday expo-
sures by bank and by matunty date) are computed
and used on a daly basis so as to ensure credit nsk
15 mitigated in practice at any time

The carrying amount of financial assets represents
therr maxamum credit exposure

Neither Neot impaired as of the reporting date and past due by
Gross  impared nor Gross
carryng pasi due on the <=1 2-3 3-6 6-12 QOver amount
amount' 2 reporting date month months manths months 1 year impared
€m €m €m £m £€m €m €m £€m
Loans and other non current
financiat assets 74 47 - - - - - 27
Trade accounts recevable 1,085 757 162 5% 38 17 12 52
Accounts recevable
and loans recewable to
investment accountad
for using the equity method 33 H 2 - - - - -
Other accounts recevable
and current financial assets 488 477 3 - - - - 8
{Cash and cash equivalents 483 483 - - - - - -
At 31 December 2014 2,173 1,795 167 59 36 17 12 87
Loans and cther non-gurrent
financial assets g1 54 - - - - - 27
Trade accounts recevable 1128 796 149 54 30 17 23 59
Accounts receivable
and loans recewvable to
investment accounted
for using the eguity method 37 37 - - - - - -
Other accounts recenvable
and current financial assets 478 465 4 - - - - 7
Cash and ¢ash equivalents 542 542 - - - - - -
At 31 December 2013 2,264 1,894 153 54 30 17 23 93

The top ten trade accounts recewable represent
€102 milion {2013 €113 milion) while the top 50
trade accounts recewable represent €275 millon
(2013 €318 mifon}

The top ten counterpartes for cash and cash equiv-
alents represent €219 milion {2013 €364 million)

The Group has a significant concentration of credit
nsk due 1o its relationship with Bertelsmann Never-
theless, credit nsk ansintg from transactions with
shareholders 1s significantly mitigated (see note 9 1)
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1) Actounts payalie exchudd amployed
Deref! habxity defermd Ncome
80l secunty and cther taxes payable
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.

Liquidity nsk

Prudent iquidity nsk management implies maintan-
ing sufficient cash, the availability of funding through
an adequate amount of committed credit facilites
and the ability to close out market positons Due to
the dynamic nature of the undertying business, man-
agement am to mamntan flexbiity in funding by
keeping commutted credit ines available despite the
total net cash situation Cash flow forecasting 1s
performed In the cperating entities of the Group and
aggregated by Group Treasury Group Treasury mon-
rtors rolling forecasts on the Group's quidity require-
ments to ensure It has sufficient headroom to meet
operatonal needs Management monitor, on a
moenthly basis, the level of the “Liquidity Head Room”
(total committed faciities minus current utiisation
through bank loans and guarantees)

Under 1 1-5 Over 5
year Years years

2013 €m em Em £€m
Gredit ’
facihties -
banks ) ;
Committed
tacites 234 233 1 -
Headroom 43 42 1 -

Surplus cash held by the operating entities over and
above batances required for working capital man-
agement 1s transferred to Group Treasury Group
Treasury Invests surplus cash In nterest beanng cur-
rent accounts, tme deposits, money market funds
or deposits with Bertelsmann SE & Co KGaA (see
note 9 1} choosing nstruments with appropnate
matunties ar sufficient hiquidty to provide sufficient
headroom as determined by the above-menticned

Under 1 1-5 Over 5
year years yas  forecasts
2014 €m €m €m €m
The table below analyses the Groups financial
far;ﬂ:as_ habiities Into relevant maturity groupings based on
banks the remaining penod at the closing date to the con-
Committed tractual matunty date The amounts disclosed In
faciities 295 295 - - the table below are the contractual undiscounted
Headroom 85 B5 - - cash flows
Under 1 1-5 Over 5

year years years Total

£€m £m €m €m
Non-denvative financial habilities
Loars and bank overdrafts 597 71 551 1,219
Accounts payable' 1,960 142 22 2,124
At 31 Decamber 2014 2,557 213 573 3,343
Derivative financial habilties
Forward exchange contracts used for hedging
- Qutflow 654 &2 - 716
- Inflow (840) {60) - (700}
At 31 December 2014 14 2 - 16

Under 1 1-5 Over 5

year years years Total

Em €m €m £em
Non-derivative financial habiliies
Loans and bank overdrafts 50 4] 585 694
Accounts payablg’ 1986 113 23 2,122
At 31 December 2013 2,036 192 588 2,816
Denvative financral hiabithes }
Forward exchange contracts used for hedging
- Qutflow . B_?l ..........91.1 _ _ - __1._1_82
= Inflow (848) (297) - {1,145)
At 31 December 2013 23 14 - w7
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(1) Out of winch €24 milion are demvatves
usad fo cffset cumency exposue reiatng
to recognised manetary assets and
Tahiites for which hediga acCounting as
defred under IAS 39 s not applied (sea
neted )

2} Accounts recenabla mciuca prepad
expensas other tax recenvables
and olher ron financal recevables

(1) Out of wivch €13 milion are camvatves
usoed 10 offsat CLTancy eXPOSUIe reatng
10 rBCOgNUEEd monatary assets and
labvines for which hedga accouning as
defined under IAS 39 15 not appled (see
nota311)

2) At amorhsed cost

@) Accounts payabie exclude smpioyea
benefits lability deferred mcome
socul secunty and othar axes payable
advance paymants and other non
financial kapdties
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Capital management

The Group monitors capitai on the basis of its gear-
ing ratta This ratio 1s calculated as the Group’s net
financial debt dwided by the reported EBITDA

Net financial cash/(debt} 1s calculated as net cash
ncluding cash and cash eguwalents, marketable
secunties, other short-terminvestments, cash deposit
and others minus financial debt EBITDA represents
EBIT excluding amortisation and impairment of nen-
current programme and other nghts, of goodwill and
disposal group, of other intangible assets, deprecia-
tion and impairment of property, plant and equip-
ment, imparrment of investments accounted for
using the eguity method, re-measurement of earn-
out arrangements, and gain or loss from sale of
subsidianes, other iInvestments and re-measurement
to farr value of pre-existing interest in acquiree

The Group targets a canservative net financial debt
to EBITDA of between 0 5 and 1 0 times

The Group's ability and intention to pay dividends in
the future will depend on its financial condition,
results of operations, capital requirements, invest-

ment alternatives and other factors that the manage-
ment may deern relevant Management expect that
the principal source of funds for the payment of div-
idends will be the cash flow and dvidends received
from tts current and future subsidianes

The Group intends tc pay dividends in the future tar-
geting a dividend ratio of between 50 and 75 per
cent of the adjusted net profit attnbutable to
RTL Group shareholdars

The adjusted net profit takes into agcount one-off/
non-recurrng items, both positive and negative,
mpactng the reported net result atinbutable to
RTL Group shareholdars

Accounting classiHications
and fair value hierarchy

Financral mstruments by category
The far value of each class of financial assets and
habilities are equivalent to their carrying amount

Assets at far Denvatves Loans and BAailable
velue through usad for accounts for sale
prafit or loss hedging* recenable invesiments Total
HNates €m Em £m €m €m
Assets
Loans and other financial assets
{surplus of the defined benefit plans excluded! - - 18 58 76
Accounts recevable and other financial assets? - 78 1581 - 1,669
Cash and cash equwvaents - - 483 - 483
At 31 December 2014 - 78 2,082 50 2,228
Liabibnes at farr Dermvzlives Cther
vatue through used for financaal
profitor loss hedging' habyiktes? Total
Notes Em Em Em £m
Lrabilities
Loans and bank overdrafts 7.1, - - 1104 1,104
Accounts payable® 7. 32, 30 16 2,069 2,115
At 31 December 2014 30 16 3,173 3,219
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(2 Aramonsed cost
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socal secunty and cthes faxaa payable
edvance payments and other non-
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Assets al far Dervatves Lpars and Available-

vake tuough used for accounts for sale
profit o loss hedging’ fecevable  ivestments Total
Notes €m £m £m €m €m
Assets .
Loans and other financial assets
{surphus of the defined benefit plans excluded) - .- 45 65 110
Accounts recenvable and other financial assets? - 22 1,584 - 1,606
Cash and cash equivalents - - 542 - 542
At 31 December 2013 - 22 2171 65 2,258
Liabilibes at fair Denvatves Other
vahs through used for financial
oolil of loss hedging' labibies? Tota)
Notes €m Em £m €m
Liabiities B i
Loans and bank overdrafts ) - - 565 565
Accounts payable® - a7 2,076 2,113
At 31 December 2013 - a7 2,641 2,678

The above mentioned financial assets and liabilittes
are not subject to offsetting, enforceable master net-
ting arrangements and similar agreements

Fair value hierarchy

The followang table presents the Group’s financial as-
sets and liabilties measured at fair value The differ-
ent lavels have been defined as follows

= Level 1 guoted pnces (unadjusted) in active mar-
kets for identical assets (or labilties),

= Level 2 inputs other than quoted pnces included
within Level 1 that are cbservable for the asset or
Irability, ether directly (e pnces) or ndirectly (e
denved from pnces), and

= Level 3 inputs for the asset or the kabidity that are
not based on observable market data (unobserva-
ble inputs)

Total Level 1 Level 2 Levei 3
€m €m €m €m

Assats

Available for sala investments 58 8 - 50

Denvatives used for hedgmg (seenote 3 1 1) 78 - 78 -

At 31 December 2014 136 8 78 50

Liabilies

Denvatives used for hedging (see note 3 1 1) 16 - 18 -

Liabilities v relation to put options on non-controling interests

(seenote 5 2) 30 - - 30

At 31 December 2014 46 - 16 3o

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

€m €m £m £m

Assats }

Avalable for sale investments 65 14 - 51

Denvatives used for hedaging (seenote 31 1) 22 - 22 -

At 31 December 2013 87 14 22 51

Liabiithes

Denvatives used for hedging (seenote 31 1} ar - 37 -

At 31 December 2013 37 - a7 -
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There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3
durmng the years 2014 and 2013
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The following table
presents the change
in Leve! 3 instruments
for the year ended

31 December 2014

The following table
presents the change
in Level 3 mmstruments
for the year ended

31 December 2013
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The farr value of financial instruments traded in active
markets 15 based on quoted market pnces at the bal-
ance sheet date A market 1s regarded as active if
quoted pnces are readily and regularly avalable from
an exchange, dealer, broker, Industry group, pncing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices repre-
sent actual and regularly occurnng market transac-
fions on an arm'’s length basis These instruments are
included in Leve!l 1 The quoted market price used for
financial assets by the Group is the current bid pnce

The far value of financial instruments that are not
traded In an active market 1s determined by using
valuation techniques These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data where
& s avallable and rety as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates If all ssgmificant inputs required to
far value an instrument are observable, the instru-
ment 1s iIncluded in Level 2

IT one or more of the significant inputs 18 not based
on observable market data, the nstrument 1s includ-
edn Level 3

The Group's finance department, which includes
Group Treasury and Controling teams, perform the

recumng and non-recurnng valuations of items (o be
valued at far value for financial purposes, including
Level 3 far values These teams report directly to the
Chief Financial Officer, who reports to the Audit
Commuttee at least once every quarter, in ine with
the Group's quarterly reporting dates The main Level
3 related inputs used by RTL Group relate to the
determination of the expected discounted cash flows
as well as the discount rates used In the different
valuatrons

Specific valuation techniques used tc value financtal
nstruments INclude

= Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for simifar
instruments (Level 2),

» The far value of forward foreign exchange contracts
classified under Level 2 1s determined using forward
exchange rates at the balance sheet date, with the
resulting value discounted back to present valus,

a For instruments classified under Level 3, other
techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis,
based for the main Instruments on the significant
unobservable inputs (e g forecast revenue growth
rates and market multiple, are used to determine
fair value for the remamning financial instruments)

Financial assets Labdires

at far value Avaiable at fair value

thiough for salg Total through

pofit or boss Rvesinents assats pofit or loss

£m €£m €m £m

Balance at 1 January - 51 51 -

Acquisitions and additions - 1 1 30

Gains and losses recognised in other comprehensive income - 2} (2) -

Gans and losses recognised in profit or loss

{*Financial results other than merest”, seenote 65 5) - - - -

Balance at 31 December - 50 50 30
Total gains/{losses) for the penod mncluded in profit or loss

for assets held at the end of the reporting penod - - - -

Financial assets. Labiities

at far value Available at far value

through for sala Total through

prehit o koss amvestments asyety profit of loss

£m €m €m €mn

Balance at 1 January 79 57 136 -

Disposal 81} - 1)) -

Gains and losses recognised in other comprehensive ncoma - (6) (6) -

Gains and losses recognisad in profit or loss

(“Financial results other than interest”, see note 6 5 ) 2 - 2 -

Batance at 31 December - 51 51 -
Total gains/ (losses) for the penad included in profit or loss

for assets held at the end of the reporting penod 2 - 2 -
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K3 SEGMENT REPORTING

The deterrmination of the Group's operating segments
1S based on the operational and management-relat-
ed entites for which information 1s reported to the
Executive Committee

The Group has 17 business units (of which Atresmedia
and Radical Media accounted for using the equity
method), each one led by a CEQ They manage
operations in telewision, rado, content production,
digtal and diversificaton businesses The Group
owns interests n 49 TV channels and 29 radio
stations In eght Eurcpean countries and across
South East Asia, of which four TV channels and three
radio stations are held by Atresmedia as associate
BroadbandTV, FremantieMedia, Radical Media (as an
associate), SpotXchange, Style Haul and UFA Sports
operate an international netwerk In the content and
digital businesses

All the reported segments meet the quantitative
thresnolds required by IFRS 8

® Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland this segment
encompasses all of the Group’s German television
actvities These include the leading commercial
channel RTL Television, free-to-ar channels Vox,
Super RTL {through RTL Disney Fernsehen GmbH
& Co KG, joint-venture accounted for using the
equity method), RTL Nitro and N-TV, thematic pay
channels RTL Crme, RTL lLmng, Passion and
the newly launched Geo Telewston, and an equity
participation in the free-to-ar channel RTL I This
segment also includes an array of drersification
activites such as new media and content,

Groupe M6 pnmarly composed of the commercial

free-tc-ar TV channel M6 This segment also

includes two other free-to-ar television channels,

W9 and 6ter, plus a number of smaller thematic pay

channels This segment also includes significant

other actmvities such as new meda, home shop-
ping, nghts distnbution and a football club,

= FremantleMedia pnncipally a worldwide produc-
tion business but other activities Include a signifi-
cant distnbution and hcensing business Its man
business units are based in the United States,
Germany, the United Kingdom and Australia,

w HTL Nederand this segment covers television,
racko and a wide range of new media and diversr-
fication actwties The segment’s telewision chan-
nels cover RTL 4, RTL 5, RTL 7, RTL 8, RTL Lounge,
RTL Cnme and RTL Telekids, and are the leading
family of channels in the Netherlands,
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= RTL Belgium this segment ncludes both telewision
and radio actmties pnmanly focused on the French-
speaking {southern) part of Belgium The tefevision
actvities are the leading family of channels and
include RTL-TV, Plug RTL and Club RTL, while the
radio actmties are made up of the number one and
number two stations, Radio Contact and Bel RTL,

= ATL Radio (France) this 1s the leading radio family
in France and includes the stations RTL Radio,
RTL 2 and Fun Radio

RTL Hungary (2014 €102 million, 2013 €100 million)
and German radio (2014 €50 milton, 2013 €52 mil-
lion) are the major contributors towards the revenue
of “Other segments” Group headquarter, which pro-
vides services and intiates development projects, 1S
also reported in “Cther segments”

RTL Group’s Executive Cormmittee assesses the per-
formance of the operating segments based on EBITA
Interest income, interest expense, financial results
other than interest and income tax are not allocated
to segments, as these are centrally driven Inter-
segment pncing 1s determined on an arm’s length
bass RTL Group's Executive Comimittee will also
dedicate more management attention towards a new
key performance indicator, EBITDA EBITDA wilt be
reported on a segmental basis both internally, via the
management financial information, and externally

The Executive Commuttee also reviews, on a regular
basis, the amount of the invested capital of each
profit centre Only the assets and labilities directly
managed by the profit centres are considered
Reportable segment assets and liabilities are recon-
ciled to total assets and kabilities, respectively

All management financtal information reported to
RTL Group's Executive Committee 1s fully compliant
and consistent with the Group's accounting policies
and pnmary statements
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Segment information

Revenue from external customens
Inter segmaent revenue
Total revenue

Mediengrepoe
ATL Dextschband

mm4
€m

2,044

2,047

2m3
€m

1,953
2
1,855

2014
&m

1,289
6
1,295

Profit/ (loss) from operating activities
Share of results of nvestments accounted for using the equity method
EBIT

615

649

587
35
622

207
)
206

EBITDA

Depreciation and amortisation
{amortisation and iImpairment of fair value adjustments on acguisitions of subsidianes excluded)

EBITA

665

{15)
650

634

(18}
619

az7

(118)
209

Impairment of goodwill of subsidanes

Impairment of disposal

Impairment of mvestments accounted for using the equity method

Amortisation and imparment of farr value adjustments on acguisitions of subsidianes
Re measurement of eam-out arrangements

Gan/(loss) from sale of subsidianes other investments
and re-measurernent to far value of pra-exstng intarast n acquires

EBIT

6822

Interest ncome

Intarest expansa

Financial results other than interest
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Segment assets (assets classified as held for sale ang investments
accounted for using the equity method excludad)

Investments accounted for using the equity mathod
Assets classified as held for sale
Segment assets

1,561
75

1,636

1,494
76

1570

1477
6

1,483

1,416

22
1440

Segrment labiities (abiities directly associated with non-current assets classified as held for sale excluded)
Liabities directly associated with non-current assets classified as held for sale

Segment kabilities

Invested capital

950

950
686

872

g72
698

643
643
B840

633

24
657
783

Segment assets

Deferred tax assets
income tax recerabie
Other assets®

Cash and cash equwvalents
Total assets

Segment liabilties
Deferred tax liabiities
Income tax payable
Crher labilites

Total habilities

Capital expenditure?
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment losses exciuding gooawll

Impairment of goedwill of subsidanes and of disposal groug
(1) Inchuchng cash and cash equevatents dlassied as held for sale

43
(16)

12
(18]

1
[122)

) Caprtal axpenditung Ncicos SAGHONS N Programmea and othar agita® "Cther intangibis assats and "Property plant and scument  naw goodwill Iohawng acassitions of subscianes ond ncramental far vake

on wenthable asssta tollowing purchasa accountng
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RTL ATL 118 Cther Tatal
FremantieMedta Nederiand Beigum Rado (France) segments Eliminations Group
2014 2013 14 2013 2014 2013 204 2013 2013 2013 w014 213 2014 2013
€m €m €m €m €m €m €m €m €m £m €m €m €m €m

1,241 1370 457 448 197 208 163 172 317 308 - - 5,808 5824
145 155 - - 2 1 3 3 43 41 {202) 211) - -
1,486 1525 457 448 199 209 166 175 360 349 (202} 211} 5,808 5824
85 134 104 103 47 46 21 29 [egg] (4) - - 1,002 1,085
6 3 n - - - - - 9 79 - - 47 17
9 137 103 103 47 46 21 29 (68) 75 - - 1,049 1,202
145 156 10 110 50 51 25 33 22 25 - - 1,348 1328
(36} o) @ ) @ 5) 4 o) n9) (7 - - (2039 (180)
113 136 103 103 46 46 21 29 3 8 - - 1145 1,148
© - - - - - - - @9 - - - ) -
- - - - - - - - - - - - - {10
4 - - - - - - - - 53] - - 4 <]

- - - - - - - - (10) @ - - s (o)

2 1 - - - - - - - - - - 2 1
(19) - - - 1 - - - 18 1 - - t 5
M 137 103 103 47 46 2 29 (68) 75 - - 1,049 1202

10 8

33 80

4 70

{288} {302)

734 948

1,678 1,755 388 380 165 167 168 167 632 416 33 (123) 5,936 5682
16 - 7 4 - - - - 277 277 - - 381 359

4 - - - - - - - - - - - 4 22
1,698 1755 395 304 165 167 168 167 809 693 (133} (123 6,321 6,063
456 496 118 144 110 115 &1 g8 as7 304 [133) (123) 2,562 2509

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 24

456 496 118 144 110 1186 61 €8 as7 304 133) (123} 2,562 2533
1,242 1,258 277 250 85 52 107 99 552 389 - - 3,759 3,530
6,321 6063

395 389

56 42

483 501

483 542

7,738 7,537

2,562 2,533

i 55 58

42 80

1,803 1263

4,462 3,844

32 26 12 24 6 2 3 3 243 38 - - 460 227
(35) (19} @ ®) @) {5) @) {4) (18) (19 - - (206) (188
(1) 1 - 1) - - - - {11} - - - {12) 2)

- - - - - - - - - - - - - [}

Restructunng cost amounted to €5 millon {2013 € 6 milion)
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Geographical information

Geographical areas are based on where customers
{revenue) and the Group's non-current assets are
located Goodwill has been allocated te a geograph-
ical area based on whether the Group’s nsks and
returns are affected predominantly by the products
and services it produces

Germarty Franca UsSA The Natheriands Belgum UK
204 2013 2014 203 24 203 2004 2013 04 03 2014 2003
€m €m €m £m £€m €m £m €m €m £m €m £€m
Revenue from extemal customers 2,186 2086 1427 1537 599 604 476 450 230 231 218 236
Non-curent assets 1011 1002 920 925 679 441 303 300 48 47 409 41i
Assets dassified as held for sale - - - 27 - - - - - - - -
Capitat expenditure 50 17 124 15 2 7 12 25 6 2 1 5

The revenue generated In Luxembourg amounts to
€47 milkon (2013 €60 millon) The total of non-cur-
rent assets other than financial instruments, deferred
tax assets and post-employment benefit assets lo-
cated in Luxemnbourg amounts to €47 milllon (2013

€25 mithon}
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Other regions Total

2014
€m

704
117-
a
@

203 e 2012
€m £€m €m

720 5808 5824
219 3487 335
S 4 e

46 480 227
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B ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Acquisitions and increases In interests

hetd in subsidiaries

Acguisitions have been consolidated using the
purchase method of accounting with goodwill being
recogrused as an asset The acguisitions have been
inciuded in the consoldated financiat statements
from the date that the control was obtamned by
the Group

In aggregate, the acguired businesses contnbuted
revenue of €97 milllon and profit attnbutable to
RTL Group shareholders of €{1) milion for the post
acquisition period to 31 December 2014 Had the
business comtunations been at the beginring of the
year, the revenue and the profit attnbutable to
RTL Group sharehclders would have amounted to
€5,877 milten and €652 mition, respectively

Details of man acquisitions and disposals,
increases in interests held in subsidianes

2014

Best of TV

Cn 7 January 2014, Groupe M6 acquired 51 per cent
of Best of TV SAS and Best of TV Benelux SPRL
{“Best of TV"} Best of TV has developed a leading
position in France in distributing infomercial and tele-
shopping products through major French retail
chans This acquisiion enabfes Groupe M6 to
strengthen the position of its subsidiary, Home Shop-
ping Service, n the home shopping and infomercial
business The transaction qualified as a business
combination since RTL Group ganed the contral of
Best of TV A contingent consideraton has been
recognised for €5 million at the acguisition date and
re-measured through the profit or loss {“Other oper-
ating expense”) for €07 milicn at 31 December
2014 The purchase consideration amounted to
€9 million, net of cash acqguired, and resulted in the
recognition of a provisional goodwill of €8 million
Goodwill in connection with the transaction will not
be tax deductble Best of TV 15 allocated to the
Groupe M6 cash generating unit
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The remaining 49 per cent interest 1s subject to put
and call options based on the farr value of the entity
at the exercise date between 2017 and 2025 The
amount of the option 1s capped at €19 milion The
put option has been recognised at the acquisition
date for € 16 milion through equity as a hability for the
present value of the redermption amount The finan-
cial habiity 1s subsequently measured at fairr vaiue
through profit or loss This 15 a Level 3 far value
measurament

The transaction-related costs are insignificant

Fam vaiyg
atdate of
gan of control
£m
Cash and cash equivalents 3
Property, plant and equipment 1
Cther inventanes 3
Accounts recevable and other financial assets 7
Accounts payable . 4)
Loans 2)
Non controlling nterests _ {4)
Neat assots acquired 4
Goodwill 8
Total purchase consideration 12
Contingent consideration (5}
Cash and cash equvalents
In operations acquired (3}
Cash outilow on acquisition a4

495 Productions

On 28 March 2014, RTL Group acquired 75 per cent
of 495 Productions Holdings LLC and its 100 per
cent affiates ("495 Productions™ 485 Productions
15 a US-based production entity specialsing in
unscnpted, female-skewed docu-series for cable
networks This acquisition enables FremantleMedia
to expand and diversify its core TV production busi-
ness iInternationally 495 Productions 1s allocated to
the FremantleMedia cash generatingunit The trans-
action qualfied as a business combination since
RTL Group gained the control of 485 Productions
The purchase consideration, net of cash acquired,
amounted to €18 millon The purchase accounting
did not tead to the recognition of additional identi-
fiable assets and llabidities This resulted in the recog-
niton of a goodwill of €26 mikon The goodwill
15 attnbutable mamnly to the skills ang talent of
495 Productions’ workforce and the synerges
expected to be achieved from the integration of
495 Producticns into the FremantieMedia business
Goodwill in connection with the transaction will be
tax deductible
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The remaining 25 per cent nterest 1s subject to put
and call options based on a performance-related
component The put ophion hability has been recog-
nised through equity for the present value of the
redemption amount of €7 milion

The transaction refated costs amount to €0 6 million,
mainly consisting of legal fees and due diligence
costs reported i “Other operating expenses”

Far value

atdate of

gam of control

€m

Cash and cash equivalents 2

Current programme nghts 10

Accounts recevable and other financial assets 1

Accounts payable X (12

Net assets acquired -

Goodwil A 20

Tota! purchase consideration 20

Deferred consideration {1
Cash and cash equivalants

N operations acquired h @

Cash outflow on acquisition 17

SpotXchange

On 1 September 2014, RTL Group acquired 70 79 per
cent of SpotXchange Inc (85 21 per cent on a fully
ciluted per share basis) and its 100 per cent affilates
{"SpotXchange™} SpotXchange I1s a leading program-
matic video advertising platform With the acquisition
of SpotXchange, RTL Group enters a significantly
growing, but still evolving, market and further enhanc-
es Its global pesition i online video, especially with
regard to monetisation skills and technological com-
petencies Thus, the iInvestment supports the digital
transformation of RTL Group The transaction quali-
fied as a business combination since RTL Group
ganed the control over SpotXchange

The purchase consideration, partly contnbuted to
SpotXchange, amounts to €104 milkon, net of cash
acquired and contingent on a cash-and-debt free
posion adjusted for normalised working capital, and
resulted in the recognition of a provisional gocdwill of
€96 millon A deferred tax asset of €8 millon related
to losses camed forward and share-based arrange-
ments has been recorded, the farr values have been
measured on a prowsional basis The goodwill 1s
attnbutable manlty to the skils and talent of
SpotXchange workforce and the synergies expect-
ed The goodwill ansting from the acquisition wall not
be tax deductible

The purchase agreement ncludes an earn-out
mechamsm based on a vanable performance com-
ponent and up to a maxmum and undiscounted
amount of €21 million The contingent constderation
has been estmated and recogrised for nil at 31 De-
cember 2014

RTL Group holds a call option for the remaining non-
controlling interests exercisable in 2017 The stnke
price 1s based on two varable components and not
capped The uncdiscounted amount of the expected
exercise pnce of the call option 1s USD 164 mulion
No far value has been recognised at 31 December
2014 Further, the deal terms include a capped put
option against RTL Group However, the exercise of
the put option s N the full control of RTL Group and
no hability has therefore been recognised

The transacton-related costs amount to €4 1 millon,
manly consisting of legal and success fees and due
diigence costs These are reported in “Other operat-
ing expenses”

Fawr vajue

at date of

gam of contral

£€m

Cash and cash equivalents 4

Property plant and equpment 3

Net deferred tax assets N 9

Accounts recervable and other financial assels 32

Accounts payable . (29

Loans ) ()]

Non-controling interests (5)

Net assats acquired 12

Goodwll } 06

Total purchase consideration 108
Cash and cash equivalents ’

n operatans acguired A )

Cash outflow on acquisihon 104

Sparwelt

On 19 September 2014, Medengruppe
RTL Deutschland acquired 100 per cent interest in
Econa Shopping GmbH, renamed SPARWELT GrmbH
{"Sparwelt") after acquisition, the leading operator of
online coupening portals In Germany for €27 5million
on a cash-and-debt free basis adjusted for normal-
1sed working capital The online couponing business
I8 2 growing and large B2C market with country-wide
and potentially internanonal reach and synergies
with Gutscheine de, an existing Mediengruppe RTL
Deutschiand business The transaction and the gain
of control were sutyect to the approval of the German
Federal Cartel Office, which was obtained on 29 Oc-
tober 2014 The transaction qualfied as a business
combination snce RTL Group ganed control over
Sparwelt
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The intial purchase price has been adjusted to €30
milllon on the basis of the level of working capital at
30 September 2014 In addition, the purchase agree-
ment includes an earn-out mechamsm based on a
vanable performance component and up to a maxi-
mum and undiscounted amount of €27 S millon The
related amount has been racogrised as a financial
liabihity for €6 milion at 31 December 2014

The far value of the brand names and nternet
doman names has been measured for €1 million
and €15 milion, respectively A corresponding
deferred tax lhability has been recognised for
€08 millon As a result, a goodwill of €31 milkon has
been recogrised The latter 15 attributable manly to
the skills and talent of Sparwelt workforce and the
synergies to Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland’s core
husiness The goodwill will not be tax deductible

The transaction-related costs are nsignificant

Fair value

at date of
gan of control
€m
Cash and cash equivalents i 1
Cther intangible assets i 3
Accounts receivable and other financial assels 5
Accounts payable (3)
Net geferred tax labilities L {1}
Net assets acquired 5
Goodwill )
Total purchase consideration ’ B
Contingent consideration (6)
Cash and cash equivalents
in operations acquired (1)
Cash outflow on acquisition | 29
BeProcurement

0On 29 Cctober 2014, the Board of RTL Group SA
approved the disposal of 90 per cent, out of its 100
per cent holding, in BeProcurement SA (“BeProcure-
ment"), previously named FremantleMedia SA, to
Bertelsmann Luxembourg Sarl This transaction is
part of a project intiated by the Bertelsrmann Group
to bundle ts IT procurement actmties tn a single
company based in Luxembourg The sale proceeds
amounted to € 12 millilon correspending to the share
of the net assets transferred (€ 12 milion of cash and
cash equwvalents) BeProcurement has tax losses
camed forward amounting to €1 1 billion at 30 Sep-
tember 2014, for which no deferred tax assets had
been recognised in the past by RTL Group following
a consistent application of IAS 12 A 25-year share-
holders agreement has been concluded between
Bertelsmann and RTL Group The shareholders’
agreement stipulates that 50 per cent of the aggre-
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gate amount of corporate and trade tax that, in the
absence of existng tax losses carned forward by Be-
Procurement, if any, would have otherwise been
owed by the company, will be pad to RTL Group SA
as a preferred dwdend with a minmum amount
of €1 millon per year The minimum dividend of
€1 mithon will be payable from 2016 onwards The
10 per cent interest held by RTL Group SA 15 not
transferable to a third party RTL Group SA may ter-
minate this agreement at certain conditions and this
would result in the unused tax losses carned forward
being transferred back to RTL Group The 10 per cent
Interest retained by 8TL Group in BeProcurement has
been accounted for as an avallable-for-sale asset
The minimum dndend has been accounted for as a
financial asset and represents the guaranteed part of
future dwidends The related discounted amount of
€17 milhon s reported in “Other operating Income”

Style Haul

On 1 December 2014, RTL Group ganed the full
controt of Style Haul Inc through RTL US Holding, Inc
{collectively called “Style Haul) From that date,
RTL Group holds 97 per cent (94 per cant on a fully
diuted per share basis) In Style Hau Style Haul is
the jeading mutti-channel network on Youtube for
fashion, beauty and hfestyle With this agreement,
RTL Group further accelerates its rapedly growing
prasence in the online video space and its position In
North America - the largest and most innovative me-
dia market worlowide The transaction qualfied as a
business combination

Before 1 December 2014, Style Haul was accounted
for using the equity method The Group has recog-
nised a gain of €17 mifion as a result of measunng
at far value i1s 286 per cent eguity interest previousty
held in Style Haul The farr value was measured by
reference to the purchase pnce of the 70 per cent
newly acquired The related gain s reported in "Gain/
{loss) from sale of subsidianes, other investments
and re-measurement to farr value of pre-existing in-
terest In acquireg”

All outstanding convertible notes were converted at
the date of the business combinaticn prowding
RTL Group with one additional per cent in the share
capital of Style Haui RTL Group has acquired all the
shares held by the non-employee shareholders

The employees benefited from share-based arrange-
ments before the business combination  All unvest-
ed stock options were accelerated The employees
agreed to sell 70 per cent of ther shares as well as
their stock options Some urwested stock options
were accelerated while a portion was replaced by
new stock options representing 3 per cent of the
capital of RTL US Holding, Inc on a fully diluted basis
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The far value of all accelerated options has been
measured by reference to the purchase pnge and
recognised as a post-business combination for
€6 millon in Employee benefits expenses” ("Share
opticns granted to employee”) reported in “Other
operating expenses” The related amount has been
recognised as a financial hability as the transaction
qualifies in substance as a cash settled share-based
payment

The purchase consideration, partly contributed to
Style Haul, amounts to €115 midlion, net of cash
acqurred and centingent on a cash-and-debt free
position adjusted for normahised working capital
RTL Group has prowisionally recognised identifiable
intangible assets for a far value of €3 million and a
deferred tax asset of €12 million related to both tax
losses carmed forward and stock option plans since
Style Haul belongs to the US tax group of RTL Group
As arasult, a provisional goodwill of €105 milion has
been recognised The latter 1s attnbutable mainly to
the skills and talent of Style Haul's workforce 1t will
not be tax deductible

The parties have also agreed on earn-out mecha-
risms that might increase the inimal consideration by
a maximum of USD 45 mithen, subject to the future
performance of the business The related hability has
been intially recoegnised for €8 millon and remamns
unchanged at 31 December 2014

RTL Group granfed to the employee sellers put
options exercisable In the first halt of 2017 based on
the farr value at the date of exercise of these options,
the far value of Style Haul shall not exceed USD 500
millon on a 100 per cent basis The put options
related to outstanding non-controlling shares have
bean recogrised as a deducton in the Group's
equity with a corresponding lability of €5 million
representing the present value of the redemption
amount Both financal kabilities (e the put option
abiity and the cash settled share-based arrange-
ment iability) are subsequentty measured at farr value
through profit or less This 1s a Level 3 far value
measurement If the put options are not exercised
dunng the exercise wandow, RTL Group has the nght
to acquire the remaming shares

The acquisition-related costs of €1 4 millon manly
compnse legal and due diigence costs and are re-
ported in “Cther operating expenses”

Faw value
at date of
gam of control
£Em
Cash and cash equivalents 1
Other intangible assets N 3
MNet deferred tax assets ) 12
Accounts recglvabie and ather financial assets_ 5
Accounts payable A {5}
Loans ) ) {4}
Non-controlling interests ) (1
Net assets acquired 11
Goodwill 105
Total purchase consideration 116
Far value of previously h(_eld equity interasts - (21}
Net assets contributed ) 2
Contingent consideration {8}
Cash and cash equivalents ’
n operations acquired {1}
Cash outflow on acquisition | 84
Radical Media

On 30 December 2014, RTL Group lost control over
@racdical media LLC and its 100 per cent affiliates
(“Radical Media"} and derecognised all related assets
and habitties The existing put and call options have
been terminated RTL Group continues to hold 34 5
per cent of the outstanding membership interests of
the company and exercises a significant influence
over Radical Media Radical Media 1s accounted for
using the equity method as from 31 December 2014
The purchaser bensfits from a call option effective at
the greater of a floor or a multiple of a vanable
performance comperent This call option s vald for
18 months following the closing of the change of
control RTL Group has the nght to sell its stake from
30 December 2019 at the greater of a fioor or a
multiple of a vanable performance component
These options have been valued for € nil million at
31 December 2014

The far value of the investment In associate has
been measured by reference to the stnke pnce of the
put option The sale proceeds received, net of cash
disposed of, amounts to below €1 milon The Im-
pact of the measurement and the capial loss s re-
ported for €(18} milion in “Gain/{oss) from sale of
subsidiaries, other investments and ra-measurement
to farr value of pre-existing interest in acquiree”

A goodwill impairment loss of €9 milion was record-
ed at 30 June 2014
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2014
€m
Far value of consideration receved ’ 17
Net assets disposed of i {35)
Net loss disposal ’ 18)
2014
€m
Cash and cash equivalents i (4)
Goodwil ) (29)
Property plant and equipment N (2}
Other inventories 1))
Accounts recervable and other financial assets: (43}
Accounts payable 38
Loans ) 5
Cther comprehensive income 1
Net assets disposed of {as5)
Fawr value of consideration receved 5
Termination of existing put and call options 5
Fair value of residual interests 7
Total disposal proceeds 17
Less A
Termination of existing put and call options (5)
Far value of residuat interests 7
Gash and cash equivalents ’ (4}
Cash inflow on disposal 1

Other acquisitions and disposals, Increases Iin

interest held in subsidianes

= On 16 September 2014, Groupe MB acquired 80
per cent of Printic SAS (“Printic™) The company de-
velops smartphone applications that enable users
to arder prints of photos from a mobile device The
acquisition strengthens the position of Monalbum-
photo SAS The transaction gualfies as 2 business
combination since Groupe M6 gained the control
of Printic The purchase consideration, net of cash
acquired, amounted to below €1 millon The trans-
action resulted in the recogmtion of a provisional
goodwill of €0 8 milion The remaining 20 per cent
are subject to put and call options  The put option
in the hand of the sellers has been recognised as a
deduction to the Group's equity with a correspond-
ing financial habilty for the present value of the re-
demption amount of €2 2 milion at 31 December
2014 The financial hability will be re-measured at
fair value through profit or loss This is a Level 3 farr
value measurement,

® The contingent consideration related to the earn-
out arrangement of Smart Shopping and Saving
GmbH (formerty Gutscheine de HSS GmbH) ac-
gured on 2 January 2012, has been re-measured
for €0 5 million in 2014 through “Other operating in-
come” and subsequently paid for €0 7 million
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2013 (updated at 31 December 2014)

BroadbandTV

Cn 20 June 2013, RTL Group acquired 57 5 per cent
of BroadbandTV Corp (51 per cent on a fully diluted
per share basis) BroadbandTV is the third largest
rulti-channel network on Youtube The transaction
accelerated RTL Group’s expansion strategy n the
onlirne video market, especially In the new genera-
tton of video channels, networks and aggregators
distnbuted via internet and requinng the ability to
aggregate, manage and monetise audiences across
a large number of channels The transaction qualfied
as a business combnation since RTL Group ganed
the control of BroadbandTv

The purchase consideration, partly contrnbuted to
BroadbandTV, amounted to €23 million, net of cash
acquired, and resulted in the recognition of a good-
will of €22 mulion

The following icdentfiable assets and habiities had
been recognised for the technology and trade names
and a related deferred tax abilty for an amount of
€2 3 milion and €0 6 mulien, respectvely

At 31 December 2013, the contingent consideration
based on a varable performance component that
INncludes earn-out mechanisms up to a maximum
and undiscounted amount of €11 milhon, had been
recognised for €2 million and have been re-measured
to €11 milion at 31 December 2014 The related
impact is reported in “Other operating income” An
amount of below €0 5 million related to the earn-out
mechanism was paid in 2014 The goodwili ansing
from the acquisition was not tax deductibie

The transaction-related costs amounting to €1 5 mil-
lion, mainly consisting of legal fees and due dilgence
costs, were reported in “Cther operating expenses”

Far value
at date of
gain of control
€m
Cash and cash equivalents 7
Other mtangible assets ) 3
Accounts recervable and other financal assets 5
Accounts payable 2)
Deferred tax labiites {1}
Non-controlling interests {4}
Net assets acquired 8
Goodwill 22
Total purchase consideration 30
Contingent consideration (2
Cash and cash equivalents
In operations acquired 7
Cash outflow on acquisition ’ 21
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The Entertainment Group

On 22 July 2013, RTL Group acquired 85 per cent of
The Entertainment Group BV (*TEG"), the number
one Transaction Video-on-Demand company In the
Netherlands TEG, under the brand name Videcland,
complements RTL Nederland's offer of non-lnear
video viewing The remairung 35 per cent interest 1S
subject to a put/call optron based on a vanable
compenent The far value of the put option has been
recognised as a hability

The transaction qualfied as a business combination
since RTL Group gained the control of TEG for a con-
sideration, net of cash acquired, of €13 millon The
purchase accounting did not lead to recognition of
additional identifiable assets and habilites

The transaction resulted in the recegrition of a good-
will of €13 milion At 31 December 2013, a contingent
consideration had been recognised for €6 milhort and
has been re-measured to €3 millon at 31 December
2014 The related impact 15 reported in “Financial
results other than interest” Goodwill in conrection
with this transaction was not tax deductible

The acquistion-related costs of €0 2 miion, mainly
consisting of legal fees and due dilkgence costs, were
reported in “Cther operating expenses”

Far value

1 dats of

gain of control

£m

Cash and cash eguwalents 1

Accounts recewvable and other financial assets 4

Accounts payable (4}

Net assets acquired 1

Goodwil 13

Total purchase cons.deration 14

Contingent consideration (6}
Cash and cash equvalents

In operations acguired th

Cash outflow on acquisition 7

Miso Film

On 25 Novernber 2013, RTL Group acguired 51 per
cent In Miso Holding ApS With the acquisition of
Miso Film - a leading Danish scnpted independent
production entity — FremantieMedia strengthens both
its scripted business and its Nordic presence The
transaction qualfied as a business comixnation
since RTL Group gained the controt of Miso Fim The
purchase consideration, net of cash acquired and
contingent on net debt and working capital, amount-
ed to €7 milllon and resulted n the recognition of a
goodwill of €7 millicn The purchase accounting did
not lead to recogniion of additional identifiable
assets and labiites The goodwill represents the
business's growth and synergy potential, and the
expertise of Miso Film's workdforce RTL Group holds
call options exercisable n 2018 with a vendors’
contingent put option exercisable In the event of the
occurrence of uncertan future events that are
beyond the control of both the 1ssuer and the holder
for a minimum of five years after the completion date
The discounted put option hability amounted to
€10 millon at the acquisition date The total consid-
eration which the Group might pay for 100 per cent
of Miso Film i1s capped to an undiscounted amount
of €30 millon The goodwill ansing from the acquist-
tion was not tax deductible

The acquisition-related costs of €0 4 milion, mainky
compnsing legal fees and due dligence costs, were
reported In “Other operating expenses”

Fawr valus

at date of

gam of control

€m

Property, plant and equipment ) 1

Net deferred tax assets_ ) 1

Current programme nghts L 16

%cm“.lgts recevable and other financal assets 3

Accounts payable ) {20)

Loans ()

Net assets acquired i -

Goodwill

Total purchase consideration ’

Cash outflow on acqusition i 7
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Other acquisitions and disposals,
Increases in interest held in subsidianes Assets and habilihes acquired

8 On 11 July 2013, Groupe M6 acquired 69 49 per  Detalls of the net assets acquired and goodwill are
cent of Luxview SAS and increased its share to  as follows
95 56 per cent on 30 September 2013 Luxview
SAS holds 100 per cent of the Belgian company, o o3
Optilens SPRL Through this acquisition, Groupe M6
increased its presence in e-commerce The trans-
action gualfied as a business combination since
Groupe M6 gained the control of both companies

Purchase consideration
— Cash pad 257 86
— Payments on prior years

The purchase consderation amounted to below acquisitions (8) (44)
€1 milken, net of cash acqured The purchase - Far value of previously held

accounting, finahsed in 2014, did nat lead to recog- equily nterests 2 -
nition of addiional identifiable assets and liapiites ~ — 'Net assats controuted 2 -
As a result, the transaction resulted in the recog- ~ — “entingent consderation 20 9
nition of a goodwill of €1 5 milion An amount of ~ — Defered consideration 1 -
below €0 5 milion was pad in 2014, Total purchase consideration 293 51

wThe full amount of the eam-out mecharsm
granted to the seliers of Onginal FMM LLC (Onginat ~ Less

Productions) on 20 February 2009 had been paig ~ Far value of net assets acquired (@2) o
by RTL Group In January 2013 for an amount of ~ Goodwll (see note 52} 261 44
€38 million,

= The put option on Ludia Inc of 9 5 per cent, con-
cluded on 1 Cctober 2010 at the time of the acgui-  Gash outflow on acquisitions
sition, was exercised and paid In May 2013 by The net assets and labilites ansing from the acqui-
RTL Group for an amount of €4 5 milbon The re-  sihions are as follows
mairng put options corresponding to 8 7 per cent

of the share capital of Ludia have been paid in 2014 far f;ﬂ: Fa"fgﬁ
by RTL Group for €5 3 millon The hability related €m €m
to the put options was re-measured for €1 million
In 2014 prior to its setlement The related mpact ~ Cash and cash eguvalents 1 9
15 reported in “Financial results other than interest” Other intangible assets 6 3
Property, plant and equipment 4 t
Net deferred tax assets 21 -
Current programme nghts 10 16
Cther inventones 3 -
Accounts recenvable
and other financial assets 50 12
Accounts payable (54) 128)
Loans {8) @
Not deferred tax liabiities (1) -
Non controling interests (19 {4)
Net assets acquired 32 7
Goodwill 261 a4
Total purchase consideration 293 51
Less
Far vaiue of previousty held
equity interests (21} -
Net assets conirbuted 2 -
Contingent consideration (20} [i¢)]
Deferred consideration 1) -
Payments on prior years
acquistions 8 44
Cash and cash equivalents
N operations acquired 11) @
Cash outflow on acquisitions
(seencte 6 2) 246 77
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B DETAILS ON CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Revenue

Other operating
expenses

(1 Feas related 10 PricowaterouseCoopera
{ PwC } tha Group's autrdor and
Iher affilares regardmng the continung
oparatons are sel oul beiow

Employee
benefits expenses

148

2014 2013
€m % €m %
Spot advertising sales 311 54 3083 53
Bartenng advertising revenue 55 1 58 1
Other advertising sales 266 4 221 4
Adverhising sales, net of agency commissions 3,432 59 3362 58
Fims, programmes and other nghis - sold or licensed 1,688 29 1638 29
Sales of merchandise and consumer services 418 7 504 9
Professional services 270 5 260 4
5,808 100 5,824 100
2014 2013
€m 3]
Employee benefits expenses 77 952
Intellectual property expenses nz 329
Expenses related to live programmes 287 270
Consumption of other inventones 20m 250
Production subcontracting expenses 182 145
Transmission expenses including leased satellte capacity 121 17
Marketing and promoticn expenses 115 125
Rentals and other cperating lease expenses 84 84
Operating taxes 76 70
Audit and consulting fees’ 58 51
Repars and mantenance 65 58
Marketing and promotion expenses ncluding barters 48 53
Distribution expenses 26 33
Commissions on sales 13 13
Administration and sundry expenses 121 113

2,681 2,663

2014 2013

€m €m

Audtt services pursuant to legislation 27 27
Audtt-related services 05 08
Services relating to taxanon - 01
{Other services 07 05
39 41

014 2013

£m £m

Wages ang salanes 7 725
Termination benefits 23 13
Social security costs 155 156
Share options granted to employees 12 5
Pension costs 17 12
Other employee expensas ag 41
a77 952

Of which restructunng costs 4 5

The amounts set out above exclude personnel costs
of €211 milon (2013 €210 mition), that are capital-
1Ised and that represent costs of employees directly
allocated to the production of assets
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In addition to other short-term bonus schemes,
RTL Group has implemented for its senior manage-
ment a tong-term incentive plan {"LTP") which runs
for the term 2014 to 2016 The LTIP ams to reward
RTL Group’s senior management for entrepreneurnal
performance and to get therr long-term commitment
to the Group The performance targets of the LTIP
have been approved by the Nomination and Gom-
pensation Committee of RTL Group who gave au-
thorty to the Executive Committee to approve the
participation of the other Executives in the LTIP The
performance targets are based on financial metrics
as RTL Group's Value Added ("RVA"}, other RVA,
EBITA, EBITDA and, for FremanteMeda, also on
nan-financial metrics ke development and commer-
cial success of new formats

The RVA 1s the difference between net operating
nrofit after tax (NOPAT), and cost of capital

The NOPAT corresponds to the sum of (i) EBITA of fui-
ly consolidated entities minus amortisation of fair val-
ue adiustments on acquisitions of subsidianes and
ot ventures, adjusted for a unform tax rate of 33
per cent, and {1} share of result of investments ac-
counted for using the equity method minus farr value
adjustments on acquisitions of subsidiaries

The cost of capitat 1s the product of the weighted av-
erage cost of captal (a uniform 8 per cent after tax)
and the quarterly average nvested capital (operatng
assets less non-interest-bearing operating habilities
as reported In note 4 1) The present value of oper-
ating leases 1s also taken into account when calcu-
lating the invested capital

As at 31 December 2014, the Jability related to this
LTIP has been assessed on the basis of the achieve-
ment of performance targets and amounts to €11 5
millon {2013 €33 millon} Groupe M6 operates a
specific long-term incentive plan based on free
shares plans (see note 7 15 7))

Pension costs relate to defined contributions for €10
million (2013 €10 milion} and defined benefit plans
for €7 milton (2013 €2 milion) (see note 7 14 )

The average number of employees for undertakings
held by the Group 15 set out below

2014 2012

Employees of fully consoldated

undertakings 9,804 8,625
9,804 9,625
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Gain/(loss) from sale of subsidianes,

other nvestments and re-measurement to fair
value of pre-existing interest in acquiree
“Gam/{loss) from sale of subsidianes, other invest-
ments and re-measurermnent to far value of pre-exist-
INg intarest in acguiree” mainly relates to the followng

2014

Subsidianes (see note 5 2)

= | oss on partial disposal of @radical media LLC and
its 100 per cent affilates €(18} milion

= (Gan on re-measurement of farr value of the Group’s
existing 26 per cent interest In Style Haul, inc
€17 milkon

Associates (seenote 74 1)

= | oss on dilution in Atresmedia €(5)million

® Gain on disposal of Asia Sports Ventures Pte Ltd
€3 millon

s Gan on ligudaton of Contact Viaanderen NV
€1 millon

Joint vantures (see note 74 2)
m | 0ss on disposal of BIG RTL Broadcast Private
bimited €{1) millon

Assets classified as held for sale and Labilities

directly associated with non-current assets

classified as held for sale (seenote 7 10)

& Gan on disposal of Mistergooddeal SA €1 mifion

= Gain on disposal of AVE | Vermogensverwal-
tungsgeselischaft mbH & Co KG and its parent
company, AVE VI Vermogensverwaltungsgesells-
chaft mbH & Co KG €3 millon

23

Associates (seenote 74 1)

u Gan on disposal of arvato systerns S4M Gmb
€4 milhon

= Gain on disposal of Radio Regenbogen Horfunk in
Baden GmbH & Co G and AVE V Vermogensver-
wallungsgeselschaft mbH €1 milior

“
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Net interest
income/{expense)

(1) Of whech (900 note 7 14}
= Iniarest nCome on plan aseets
€4 miion {2013 £4 milord
® Urrvard of d scourt o~ cefined
bere®1 chkzations €{8) rmulkion
2013 €(7 milior)

Financial results other
than interest

Income tax expense

The ncome tax on

the Group profit before
tax differs from tha
theoretical amount that
would arise using

the Luxembourg tax
rate as follows
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2014 2013

€m £m

Interest Income on loans and accounts recevabie ) . 10 8
Interest income 10 8
Interest expense on financial labiites (24} (22}
Tax-related interest expense (1} 2
Interest on defined benefit obligations' (4} 3
Interest expense on other amployee benefit labdites (4} 1<)
Interest expense (33} [klu)]
Net interest expense (23} (22}

“Interest iIncome on loans and accounts recewvable”
includes an amount of € nil millon (2013 €0 3 million)
In respect of deposits to Bertelsmann SE & Co
KGaA({sesnote 9 1)

“Interest expense on financial habihtes™ includes an
amount of €16 millon (2013 €12 mullion) in respect
of the loans from Berelsmarnn SE & Co KGaA
(seenote 9 1)

2014 2013
€em £m
Net gan/{loss) on disposal and impairment on avalable for-sale investments {see note 7 5) 1} 43
Cash flow hedges ineffectivaness (see note 3) (4) -
Net gain on other financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (see note 7 5) - 21
Other financial results 1 6
(4} 70
2014 2013
£m €m
Current tax expense (281) {308)
Deferred tax expense (rg} 4
(288) {302)
204 613
€m % €m %
Profit before taxes 1,022 1250
Income tax r:;te applcable n Luxembourg 2922 2622
Tax calculated at domestic tax rate apphicable to profits in Luxembourg 299 365
Effects of tax rate in foreign junsdichons and German trade tax &5 52
Tax calculated at domaestic tax rate applicable to profits
n the respective countnes 354 34 60 417 3340
Non deductible expenses 44 38
Tax exempt revenue (60} {132)
Commission received in relation to the Compensation Agresment
(seenote9 1) (52} (52
Tax incentives not recognised in the income statemant (10} [ie}]
Effect of tax losses for which no deferred tax assets ane recognised 18 49
Tax expense before adjustments on prior years 294 28 80 34 2490
Current tax adjustments on pnor years (1) 5
Deferred tax adustments on pnor years {5} (14)
Income tax expense 288 2820 302 2420
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Effect of tax rates in foreign junsdichons mainly re-
sults from the differentated rates applicable in the
following countnes

= Garmany, where the offical tax rate 18 325 per
cent, representing an impact of €20 million (2013
€20 million),

® France, where several tax rates apply, depending
on the size of the business The rates of 38, 34 43
and 33 33 per cent apply respectively, representing
an impact of €25 millon (2013 €26 rmllion)

In 2014, non deductible expenses include exception-
al contnbution on damdends, withholding taxes for €7
million (2013 € 12 million) and impairment of goodwill
for €18 milicn

Tax exempt revenue manly relates in 2014 to an im-
parment charge, recorded in the statutory accounts
of the Company towards a fully consolidated entity,
resulting in a tax exempt revenue of €22 million,
to capital gains and far value changes for € 16 million
and to the share of resuits of iInvestments accounted
for using the equity method for €13 milkon

Profit attnbutable to RTL Group shareholders {(n € million)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January Inote 7 15 1}

Effect of treasury shares held (note 7 15 2)

Effect of igudity programme (ncte 7 152)

Werghted average number of ordinary shares

Tax exempt revenue mainly related in 2013 to an im-
pasrment charge, recorded in the statutory accounts
of the Company towards a fully consclidated entity,
resulting in a tax exempt revenue of €73 milion, the
reversal of the imparrment on Atresmedia for €22
millon (see note 7 4 ), to caprtal gains and farr value
changes for €8 millon and to the share of results of
investments accounted for using the equity method
tor €10 mulkon

Tax incentives not recognised In the income state-
mert relate to & permanent difference generated by
the amortisation of tax goodwill in Germany

In 2013, the tax adjustments on pnor years related
sclely to changes In the amortisation policy of certain
film nghts following the finalsation of a tax audit n
Germany

Earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share I1s based
on the profit attnbutable to RTL Group shareholders
of €653 rmilhon (2013 €870 millon) and a weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding dur-
ing the year of 153,584,102 (2013 153,618,853}, cai-

014 2013

653 870

154,787,554 154 787 554:
{1,168,701) (1,168,701)
(34,751) -
153,584,102 153 518 853

Basic earnings per share (in €) 425 567
Diluted earnings per share (in €) 425 567
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DETAILS ON CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Programme and other
rights, goodwill and
other intangible assets

{1) Soancte 52
) Seenate 7 10

152

Avance
Destribution payments Total
ang andloo)  programme Othet
(Co) broadcastng  productons and wiher wtangibie
MOAUCHONS nghis 1N progress rights Googwilt assets
€£m €m £em €m €m €m
Cost i . o
Batance at 1 January 2013 i 642 994 4T 1683 4993 402
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (15) 6] - {20) (15) i)
Addions 3 41 a7 93 - 32
Disposals (2 (20) {n (23) - {10
Subsidianes acquired’ - - - - 44 a
Transfar to assets classfisd as held for sale? - - - - - {16
Transfers and other changes 52 53 (80 45 @ 6
Balance at 31 December 2013 680 1,063 33 1,776 5,019 414
Effact of movemnents in foreign exchange 36 12 - 48 19 -
Additons 2 52 a1 a5 - 26
Disposals - (78) - (78 - 19
Subsidianes acquired’ - - - - 261 6
Subsidiaries disposed of! - - - - (29 -
Transfers and other changes 25 33 51 7 Q) {7)
Balance at 31 December 2014 743 1,082 23 1,848 5,261 422
Amortisation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 January 2013 621) (039) @ (1,564} (2,315) (200)
Effects of movernents in foreign exchange 15 5 - 20 - 1
Amortisation charge for the year {14) 80 - 04) - (28}
Impairment losses recogrised for the year (1) - - m - m
Disposals 1 19 - 20 - 9
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale? - - - - - e]
Transfers and other ¢changes {25) (22) (1) (48) 3 6
Batance at 31 December 2013 (645}  (1.017) 5 (1,667 (2312} (218)
Effects of movements in foreign exchange (35) (12} - 47} (%) -
Amartisation charge for the year (36) a1 - {117) - (25)
Imparment losses recognised for the year - §H - (1) 88) {11}
Disposals - 77 - 77 - 15
Transfers and other changes - - - - 10 2
Balance at 31 December 2014 (716} (1,034) (5) (1,755) (2,391) (235)
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2013 a5 46 28 109 2707 198
At 31 December 2014 27 48 18 93 2,870 187

Other intangible assets include mamnly brands for an
amount of €122 millon (2013 €123 milion), primar-
ily related to the Groupe M6

imparrment losses have been recognised for €11
milion 1n 2014 regarding ntangible assets of the
Hunganan language channels (see note 7 2) and
recognised at far value at the time of the gain of con-
trol by RTL Group {2013 € nil mithon, Mistergooddeal
disposal group excluded, see note 7 10)

The M6 brand 15 ¢onsidered to have an indefinite
useful Iife and was recegnised for an amount of €120
milion At 31 December 2014, an imparrment test
was performed and did not tead to any impairment

In determining that the M6 brand has an ndefinte
useful Iife, management have considered vanous
factors such as the past and expected longemty of
the brand, the impact of possible changes in broad-
casting technologies, the impact of possible evolu-
tions of the regutatory environment in the French
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television industry, the current and expected audi-
ence share of the M6 channel, and M6 manage-
ment's strategy to mantan and strengthen the
trademark “Mg&” Based on the analysis of these fac-
tors, management have determined and confirmed
at 31 Decermnber 2014 that there 15 no foreseeable
limit to the penod of time over which the brand M61s
expected to generate cash inflows for the Group

Impairment test for goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash-generating
units (“CGLI") on the basis of the business units (see
note 4 ) and at the levet at which cash flows are gen-
erated Ludia, part of the business unit FremantieMe-
dia, conduct specific and separate businesses that
generate Independent cash flows and therefore qual-
ify as separate cash generating units Radical Media
18 accounted for using the equity method at 31 De-
cember 2014 since the Group lost the control (see
note 5 2) The goodwill related to Radical Media was
impaired by €9 millon at 30 June 2014, the mpair-
ment remans unchanged for the 12-month-penod

All business units and cash-generating units mainly
operate In one country, except BroadbandTV (see
note 52 ), FremantieMedia, Ludia, SpotXchange,
Style Haul and UFA Sports, which are multi-territory /
worldwide operations Goodwilt is allocated by cash-
generating untt as follows

31 December 31 December

2014 2013
€m £m
Medengruppe RTL Deutschland 914 883
Groupe M6 429 421
FremantieMeda 1,001 971
Ludia 31 31
Radical Media - 35
RTL Nederiand 151 151
RTL Belgium 32 32
RTL Radio (France) B5 65
Other segments
— Style Haul 105 -
- BpotXchange 103 -
- Hunganan language
cable channels and M RTL - 78
- BroadbandTV 22 21
- German racio 17 17
— UFA Sports - 2
Total goodwill
on cash-generating units 2,870 2707

Goodwill 1s tested for impairment annually, as of
31 Decembaer or whenever changes in circumstanc-
es indicate that the carrying amount may not be re-
coverable

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2014

The recoverable amount of a CGU has been deter-
mined on the basis of the higher of its value In use
and 43 far value less costs of disposal

u The value In use 1s determined on the basis of cash
flows excluding estmated future cash inflows or
outflaws expected to anse from future restructur-
ings and from mproving or enhancing the CGU's
performance unless the cash-generating unit s
commutted at year end to the restructunng, ang re-
lated provisicns have been made Furthermore,
the discount rate is closely inked to Group param-
eters {manly crecit premium, gearing ratic and
specific risk),

u Far value less costs of disposal I1s the amount ob-
tainable from the sale of a CGU in an arm'’s length
transaction between knowledgeable, willing par-
ties, less the costs of disposal

The Group supports its far values less costs of dis-
posal on the basis of a discounted cash flow (*“DCF")
model to the extent that it would reflect the value that
“any market participant” would be ready to pay tnh an
arm'’s length transaction Differently from the “value
N use™ approach, which reflects the perspective of
the Group for a long-term use of the CGU, a “farr val-
ue tess costs of disposal” madel would include future
cash flows expected to anse from restructuring plans
and future investments, as all rational market partic-
pants would be expected to undertake these re-
structunngs and investments N order to extract the
best value from the acquisition Furthermore, the dis-
count rate in a “far value less costs of disposal”
model 15 calculated based on a market approach
and mast of the parameters used are denved from
market sources The latter approach was not used
by the Group In determining the recoverable amount
of cash-generating units at 31 December 2014

Cash ftow projections are based on financial budg-
ets approved by management covering a three-year
penod Cash flows beyond the three-year period for
up to ten years are prepared using the estimated
growth rates and other key drivers including audi-
ence and adverising market shares, the EBITA mar-
gin, and cash conversion rates based on past per-
formance and expectations of market development
Cash flows beyond the ten-year penod are extrapo-
lated using the estmated perpetual growth rates and
the discount rates stated below
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The perpetual growth rates used are consistent with
the forecasts Included in industry reports The
discount rates have been determined, CGU by CGU,
in arder to reflect, where appropnate, the following
factors

Cash-generating units
Medengruppe RTL Deutschland
Groupe M6

FremantleMedia

Ludia

Radical Meda

RTL Nedertand

RTL Belgum

RTL Racto {France)

Other segments

- Style Hau!

- SpotXchange

— Hunganan language cable channels and M-RTL
— BroadbandTV

- German radio

— UFA Sports

= Country nsk,

& Spectfic firm prermum,

® Credit spread due to the financial situatien, and
a Gearing ratio of the CGLU

214 203
Pememal Peretual

growth rate  Discount ratgy gnwdh refe  Discount @te
% a year % % ayear %
20 76 20 76
25 76 25 76
25 77 30 77
20 125 20 121
- - 20 80
20 76 20 76
20 76 20 76
20 67 20 67
20 139 - -
20 109 - -
20 128 20 129
20 139 20 137
20 87 20 67
- 79 25 77

Hunganan language cable channels and M-RTL
On 2 Jure 2014, anew advertising tax was submitted
to the Hunganan Parament and was subsequently
adopted via an accelerated procedure on 11 June
2014 On 4 July 2014, the Hunganan Parlament
adopted several amendments to the tax The new
revised tax came inte force on 15 August 2014 with
the first payments, In two equal instalments, made
on 20 August and 20 November 2014 respectively

The tax s steeply progresswve, with rates between nil
and 40 per cent, and 1s calculated, in general, on the
net revenues denved from advertising plus the mar-
gins which the sales houses affilated to the taxpay-
ers charge fo therr customers The tax base s calcu-
lated by aggregating the tax bases of affiliated
undertakings As a result, entities belonging to a
group of companies ara taxed at higher tax rates
than independent legal entities

RTL Group's management have started to pursue
all options to protect the Hunganan assets against
the effects of this new regulation Nevertheless, in
accordance with IFRS gudance, the Group has
assumed that the mpact of this new advertising
tax on RTL Group's Hunganan business contnues
throughout the planning period RTL Group has
also assurmed that the Hunganan business 1s a going
cencern
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The recoverable amount of the Hunganan language
cable channels and M-RTL was determined at a non-
significant amount at 30 June 2014 on the basis of
the value in use

On 18 Novermber 2014, the Hunganan government
adepted an amendment by which the highest appli-
cable tax rate was increased from 40 to 50 per cent
This amendment entered in force on 1 January 2015

RTL Group's management mantained the following
imparment loss already recognised at 30 June 2014
in its consciidated annual report

= the full imparment of the goodwill for an amount of
€77 milion,

# additional mpairment losses an non-current intan-
gible assets for €11 milhon, of which €3 milion re-
lated to assets identfied in connection with the in-
wal purchase price allocations

In the second half of the year, a valuation allowance
on current programme nghts has been addiionally
recorded for an amount of €7 milion at 31 Decem-
ber 2014

The carrying amount of the cash-generating unit 1s
€55 millon at 31 December 2014 The remamning
non-current assets, manly composed of property
plant and eguipment and software licenses and
amounting to €10 millon, have not been mpared as
therr far value less costs of disposal was considered
as being above or at least equal to therr carrying val-
ue The other current assets (€77 milion), manly
composed of mventones and financial assets, have
been valued in accordance with the relevant applca-
ble standard and accordingly no addtional impair-
ment was required
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Other cash generating units

Management consider that, at 31 December 2014,
no reascnably possible change in the market shares,
EBITA margin and cash corwersion rates would
reduce the headroom between the recoverable
amounts and the camrying values of the cash-gener-
ating units, FremantleMedia excepted

Following continuing pressure on the production and
distnbution business, due to reduced volumes and
prncing, management have updated the business
plan to take nto account the latest avaltable informa-
tion, pnmanty on the US FremantleMedia will man-
tain strength of its show franchises and develop new
formats organically while diversifying its portfolio in
new genres and maxmising its worldwide network
FremantieMedia i1s thus expecting to shightly increase
its EBITA margin compared to the actual Based on
this revised 10 year plan, the headroom that existed
at the level of FremantleMedia has been reduced to
€124 milllon (31 December 2013 €190 milion) The
value In use on the basis of a discounted cash flow
model was retaned for determining the recoverable
amount

For FremantleMedia, if, for 2015 and each of the fol-
lowsng years, the estimated revenue growth and the
EBITA margin had been reduced by 1 per cent and
the discount rate had been increased by 1 per cent,
the sum of these corresponding effects would have
resulted n an impairment loss against goodwill of
€330 million (€414 millon at 31 December 2013)

When taken indmidually, the following changes inthe
key assumptions would reduce the recoverable
amount of the CGU FremantleMeadia as follows

31 Decemnber 31 December
2014 23

€m £€m
Vanation in
Revenua growth by (1) per cent
on each pencd {146) (184)
EBITA margin by {1) per cent
on each penod {163) (194)
Discount rate by 1 paint !205) (226)

2013
No imparment loss on goodwill was recorded in
2013
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Property, plant and
equipment

(1) Follkowirg the receipt of he *nal
adminsirative approva regarding
odCional Bropertvs contruted

n October 2014 te Group compenies

RIL Croup has recogresed 8 capdtal

gan of €32 rmillion folowing the coase

of contral according 10 IFRS orena

[ Other operatng incoma € 19 milion

" 2013)
2} Seancte52 and53
131 Seancte7 10
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Land
buikdings ankt Technical
improvernents equipment Cther Total
€m £m €m €m

Cost
Balance at 1 January 2013 373 299 191 853
Effect of movernents in foreign exchange (1 @ (2 (6
Additions 5 19 34 58
Disposals' (i) ) (10 (16)
Subsidianies acquired? - 1 - 1
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale® 3 - {1} 4)
Transfers and other changes 7 2 2 1"
Balance at 31 December 2013 379 314 214 207
Effect of movernents in foreign exchange 1 - 2 3
Adctions 2 14 56 72
Disposals' (55) @ 13 (71
Subsidianes acguired? - - 4 4
Transter to assets classified as held for sale® (o) - (1) @
Transfers and other changes 7 11 125) {7)
Balance at 31 Degcember 2014 333 336 237 906
Depreciation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 January 2013 {166) (223) {128) 517)
Effect of moverments in foreign exchange 1 2 1 4
Depreciation charge for the year (19) 30 21} {66)
Imparment losses recognised for the year - - (1 M
Disposals! - 4 a 12
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale? 2 - 1 3
Transfers and other changes ] 3 8 {11)
Balance at 31 December 2013 (184) (244) (148) {576)
Effect of movernaents in foreign exchange n - (1 2
Deprectation charge for the year (15 (28) (20) 83)
Disposals® 50 3 12 65
Transfers and other changes 4 2) 5 7
Balance at 31 December 2014 {146) @71) (152} (569)
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2013 195 70 66 33
At 31 December 2014 o 1% 65 85 337

Net tangble assets held under finance leases at
31 December 2014 amount to €3 million (2013 €1

million)
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1) Ahhough tha Group holds less than
20 par cant of tha aquity shares of
Alresmedia management consider that
the Group exercises a significa-t
rfluence n Aresmeqia i view of the
represantation of ATL Group to the
Board of Droctors and other govemwig
boches of Atresmacia

(2] Atresimeqia 18 lstad on tha Madnd Slack
Exchange Based on the published
shara pnce at 31 December 2014 the
market capitaksaton of 100 per cent
of Atresmedia amounts ta €2 828 mikon
18 €11 54 per share (2013
€2 713mikcn 18 €12 02 par share)

{31 RTL 2 Fernsehen GMbH & CoKGw &
prvata company and there 15 no quoted
market prce avalabla for s shares

The summanised
financtal information

for the main associates
of the Group, ona

100 per cent bas!s and
adjusted for differences
in accounting pohcies
between the Group

and its associates is

as follows-

The reconcifiation of the
summansed financial
information presented to
the carrying amount of
its interest it associates
i1s presented as follows

{t] Other imenatenal associa g3 represent
20gregate less 1han 12 per cant of tha
1otal amount of imveatments In assoca’es
at 31 Decamber 2014 {11 per cent at
3 Decamber 2013) and none of
them has a amount exceadng
€11 mibon at 3t Decernbor 2008
(€11 mibort at 31 December 2013)

NOTES TO THE CONSQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

investments accounted for using the

equity method
The amounts recogrised in the balance sheetareas  The amounts recognised in the income statement
follows are as follows
2014 2013 2014 2013
€m £m €m £m
Associates 353 336 Associates 3 34
Joint ventures 28 23 Imparrment of iInvestments
Balance at 31 December 3s ase  'nassocates 4 &8
Jont ventures 12 15
47 117
Investments in associates
Set out below are the assocates of the Group as at
31 December 2014, which in the opimion of the man-
agement, are matenal to the Group
Country of Prncipal % voting power Measurement
Mama of entity NCOMoralion Attty field by the Group metheod
204 2013
Atresmedia'? Span Broadcasting TV 193 206 Equity
RTL 2 Fernsehen GmbH & Co KG2 Germany Broadcasting TV 359 359 Equity
Atresmedia ATL 2 GmbH & Co KG
2014 2013 2014 m3
MNon-cument assets 842 648 M4 48
Current assets 565 574 93 90
Current liabilties (561) (579) (44} {60]
Non-current habilities (204) (298) {1} -
Net assets 442 345 89 76
Ravenue 883 830 332 3c8
Profit before tax 95 48 46 40
Income tax expense 53) 2) - -
Profit for the year 42 46 46 40
Dmidends received from associates 9 - 15 13
Atresmedia RATL 2 GmbH & Co KG Qther immatenal assoxsates’ Total
204 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Net assets at 1 January 345 297 76 73 48 52 469 422
Prafit for the year 42 46 46 40 24 37 12 123
Other
comprehensive income 1 1 - - - - 1 1
Distrbution (47 - (33) (a7 {38) {40y {118 7N
Transachons
on treasury shares 79 - - - - - 79 -
Change in ownership
interest and other changes 22 1 - - 15 (1) a7 -
Net assets 442 345 89 78 49 48 580 469
Interest n associates . 85 . 71 32 27 17 14 134 112
Goodwill 17 178 24 24 28 26 223 228
Impairment on investments o
In associates o - . - - - @ L (4) (4}
Carrying value 256 249 56 51 41 36 353 338

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REFPORT 2014

167




168

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Main changes in the Group’s ownership

interest in associates

The ownership of RTL Group in Atresmedia de-
creased from 20 5 per cent at 31 December 2013 to
19 2 per cent at 30 June 2014 following the partal
novation, on 19 February 2014, of the Integraton
Agreernent executed on 14 December 2011 with the
shareholders of La Sexta and the reduction of the
number of treasury shares Ths transachon resulted
in a diutien of RTL Group's interest generating a
capital loss of €5 milllon reported in “Gain/ (toss) from
sale of subsidianies, other nvestments and re-
measurement to far value of pre-existing nterest in
acquiree”

On 21 February 2014, RTL Group disposed of s
ownership in Asia Sports Ventures Pte Ltd and rec-
ognised a caprtal gan of €3 millon presented In
“Gain/ {loss) from sale of subsidianes, other invest-
ments and re-measurement to far value of pre-exist-
Ing Interest In acquires”

On 15 Aprit 2014, Contact Viaanderen NV was qui-
dated generating a capital gain of €1 millon present-
ed In “Gain/{loss) from sale of subsicharies, other in-
vestments and re-measurement to far value of
pre-existing interest in acquiree”

On 28 November 2014, Groupe M6 acquired 49 per
cent of Stéphane Plaza Franchise SAS and s affill-
ate, which are actve in property development
Stéphane Plaza hosts real estate reality shows The
related carrying amont 1s €3 6 millien, including the
recognition of a financial derivative instrument for
€1 million

On 19 December 2014, RTL Group increased its
shareholding in Divmove GmbH to 51 per cent with-
out gaining control RTL Group holds a call option on
the remaning share capital The related carrying
amount 13 €3 8 mmullion

On 1 December 2014, RTL Group ganed full control
of Style Haul Inc (see note 5 2 )

Impaiment testing

Investments In associates are tested for impawment
according to the same methodology applied for the
impairment test of goodwill (see note 7 2)

The perpetual growth and discount rates used are as
follows

2014 013
Perpetual Discount Perpetuzl Desoourr
growth rte rats  growth rate rate
% 3 year % % a year %
Main associates
Atresmedia 20 111 20 1m2
RTL 2 Fernsehen
GmbH & Co KG 20 76 20 76

The reversal of iImpairment recognised in 2014 relates
to an associate, which 1s presented as an asset held
for sale since 31 December 2013 (see note 7 10)

No impairment loss on investments 0 associates
was recorded in 2014

The recoverable amount of Atresmedia has been
determined on the basis of the far value less costs
of disposal at 31 December 2014 Followmng the
increase of the share price of Atresmedia on the
Madnd Stock Exchange, management had conse-
quentiy recorded in 2013 the full reversal of impair-
ment of nvestment in assogiates of €72 million
recognised at 31 December 2012 agamnst the
carrying amount of Atresmedia (€249 millon at
31 December 2013) This 1s a Level 1 measurement
{seenote332)

An imparment loss of €4 million, related to RTL 9,
was recognised in 2013

RTL 2 Fernsehen GmbH & Co KGis a party in legal
proceedmngs with a subsidiary of RTL Group

Contingencies
There are no contingent habilities relating to the
Group's interest in the associates
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(1) RTL Drgney Fernsahen GrmibH A Co <G
B BUUGIUed a3 3 separate vahcka
and ta Group has a resioual sxeest n
e it assets

(2] ATL Dwney Farmaehen GmoH & Co <G
8 8 prveEra cormparny and thard i
NG quoted market pnce availabie for ¢s
sharas

The recenciliation of the
summarised financial
information presented to
the carrying amount

aof RTL Group’'s interest
in joint ventures

is presented as follows

(1) Othar anmateral it ventures represent
N aQQrega. lass than 50 per cent of the
1o1a) amount of IMves*ments N Nt
vonituag at 31 December 2014 (23 per
cent al 31 Cecomber 2013) and none of
therm has a carmyng amount xceedng
€5 milicon a1 31 December 2014
(€2 rillon at 3t December 2013

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Investments n joint ventures
The main joint venture 1s as follows

Country of Prncipa: %wvohng power  Measuremen
nComorahon actvey held by the Group method
2014 2043
RTL Disney Femsehien GmoH & Co KG'2 Germany Broadcasting TV 500 500  Equiy
RTL Disney Fernsehen GmbH & Co KG s set up as
a jont venture with the control shared by Disney and
RTL Group Nether of the shareholders have the abil-
ity to direct the relevant activities unilaterally
The summansed financial Information for the man
Jjoint venture of the Group, on a 100 per cent basis
and adjusted for differences i accounting policies
between the Group and the jomt venture, 1S as
follows
204 2013
€m £m
Non-current
Assets 9 4
Current
Cash and cash eguvalents 45 61
Other current assets } 12 11
Total current assets 57 72
Current habilities (38) (42}
Total current habilities (38} (42}
Net assets 28 34
Revenus 124 131
Deprecation ancg amortisation N (5)
Profit before tax 27 34
Income tax expense (4 (6)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 23 28
Group’s share of profit and total comprehensive income for the year 11 14
Dividends recewed from joint venture 15 15
ATL Cvsney Fernsehen Other immateriat
GmbH & Co KG font ventures’ Total
24 2m3 014 013 2014 2013
Net assets at 1 January B 34 36 7 8 11 44
Profit/(loss) for the year 23 28 {t) 2 22 30
Distnbution ) (29) {30) @ @ (3s) (an
Capital increase - - 8 4 8 a4
Other changes } - - 2 - 2 -
Net assets at 31 December 28 34 9 7 37 41
Intergst n _|0|nt~ ventures R . i 14 17 4 i 3 18 20
Goodwill - - 10 3 10 3
Carrying value 14 17 14 6 28 23
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Main changes in the Group’s ownership interest
in joint ventures

On 6 February 2014, Vice Media, Inc and RTL Group
entered nto a jcint-venture agreement through the
creation of Vice Food LLC, held at 70 and 30 per
cent, respectively The venture was set up to cper-
ate, commission, develop and produce digital con-
tent for a new online dgtal vertical known as
‘Munchies, Food by Vice’, across multiple platforms
Vice Media and FremantieMedia are also indmdually
providing content to the venture

On 25 Apnl 2014, the management of TFB anncunced
the channel will cease s operations at the end of
2014 following a significant drop in revenue The re-
lated carrying armount 1s nil at 31 December 2014

On 12 June 2014, RTL Group dsposed of all the
shares held n BIG RTL Broadcast Private Limited
(“BIG RATL" to the other shareholder, the Relance
Group The captal loss related to the exit by
ATL Group of the jont venture and previously held at
50 per cent, amounts to €1 million The capital loss 1s
presented 1n *Gain/(loss) from sale of subsidiares,
other nvestments and re-measurement to far value of
pre-existng interest in acquiree” The disposal result-
ed in an cutflow, net of transaction costs, of €1 rmilion

On 18 Apnl 2013, RTL Groug acquired 20 per cent of
FutureWniz Media BV through a contnbution to the
share capital and share premium and an ar-tme
contributicrs Jontly controlled, the company manag-
es a subscrption-based educational online platform
in the Netherlands, Sgula The acquisition 15 10 Iine
with the strategy of the Group to expand online The
purchase constderation amounted to €1 5 millon,
net of cash acqured The purchase accounting did
not lead to the recognition of additonal dentifiatle
assets and labiites On 26 November 2014,
RTL Group increased its interest to 29 7 per cent and
its night to dvidends to 37 3 per cent

Impairment testing

Investments i joint ventures are tested for smpair-
ment according to the same methodolegy applied
for the mparrrment test of goodwill {see note 7 2 )

The perpetual growth and discount rates used are as
follows

2014 2013
Perpetual Descount Pemetual Discount
growth rate rate  growth rate rate
% 2 year % % a year %
Matn joint venture
RTL Drsney
Fernsehen
GmiH & Co KG 20 76 20 76

No imparment loss on investments In joint ventures
was recorded in 2014 {2013 € nit million)

Commitments and contingencies
There are no commitments and contingent labiites
refating to the Group’s interest in the jont ventures

The transactions with the associates and joint ven-
tures are reported in note 9 2

Loans and other financial assets

2014 M3
€m €m
Avalable for-sale investments
[seenote 7 155) 58 65
Surplus of the defined benefit plans
(see note 7 14) - 7
Loan recevable 1o investments
accounted for using the equity
method (seenotes 331 and 7 4) 4 2
Loans and other financial assets 14 43
76 117

RTL Group holds 19 per cent of the share capitat of
Beyond International Limited, a company listed on
the Australian Stock Exchange This 1s a Level 1 far
value measurement In 2014, RTL Group recorded a
decrease in far value of this avalable-for sale invest-
ment for €7 milhon

The 10 per cent interest retaned by RTL Group In
BeProcurement has been accounted for as an avail-
able-for-sale asset (see note 5 2)

In March 2014, FremantleMedia Group Ltd entered
Into an insurance arrangement related to the defined
benefit plan (“buy-in policy”} leading to a deficit of the
defined pension plan (see note 7 14}

At 31 December 2013, “Loans and other financial as-
sets” (ncluded €20 milion deposited during the first
half of 2012 under an escrow account by the Foot-
ball Club Girondins de Bordeaux for the bensfit of the
city of Bordeaux This amount bears interest of 16
per cent per annum until the delivery of the new sta-
dium, which 1s expected In 2015 The €20 million will
be released to the city of Bordeaux n return for re-
duced future rentat payments for the use of the new
stacium by Grondins de Bordeaux The amount has
been reclassified in current "Accounts recevable and
other financial assets” at 31 December 2014

Since Aprii 2000, FremantleMedia has arrangements
in relation to sale and lease back transactons (see
note 84) At 31 December 2014, three banks did
not satisfy the required credit ratings The related
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amounts are recogrised for €20 milion n the
consclidated statement of financial position (2013
€28 millien}, of which €12 millon with a matunty of
less than one year (2013 €10 mdion} The restricted
bank accounts are reported in other financial assets
with counterpart in bank loans payable {see note
711)

Dunng 2013, Groupe M6 had disposed of all the
shares held in Licns Gate for € 11 milion and recog-
nised a capital gain of €8 millon

During the second half of 2013, RTL Group disposed
of non-current and current non-monetary nvest-
ments classified in avalable-for-sale investments and
In other financial assets generating a capital gain of
€49 milon and a cash inflow of €147 miltion

An imparment loss of €1 milion was recognised in
2014 No reversal of imparment loss has been re-
corded in 2014 (2013 €1 milion)

The movements in avallable-for-sale Investments are
as follows

014 2013

€m Em

Balance at 1 January 65 116

Net acquisitions and disposals 1 (45)

Change in far value (9) (4)
Imparrment losses and other

changes 1 @

Balance at 31 December 58 65

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Deferred tax assets and habilihes

2014 2043

€m £m

Detferred tax assets 395 389

Deferred tax l:abities {55} (58)

340 331

2014 3

€m Em

Balance at 1 January an 33

Income tax expense @ 4
Income tax credited/(charged)

1o equity’ 8) 14

Change in consoligation scope 20 -

Transters and other changes a4 -

Balance at 3% December 340 331

The Group has deductible temporary differences
onginating froman intra-group transaction which wall
mainly reverse dunng the next five years

Unrecognised deferred tax assets amount to €1,327
million at 31 December 2014 (2013 €1,603 miflion)
Deferred tax assets are recognised on tax losses
carry forwards to the extent that realisation of the re-
lated tax benefit through the future taxable profits 1s
probable The Group has unrecogrised tax l0sses of
€4,511 millon {2013 €5,522 million, seenote 5 2 ) to
carry forward against future taxable ncome which
relate to Luxembourg and Hungary (2013 Luxemn-
bourg and Hungary) and have no expiry date
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The movement in
deferred tax assets
and hrabtiities during
the year 1s as folfows
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Balance st (Chargec)/ credied Charged Change n Transfers ang Balance m
1 January 2014 10 Incorme stalemenl o equity  conschidaion scope other changes 31 December 2014
€m £&m €m €m €m €m
Getorodtaxsssets - -
Intangibie assets 118 {(18) - - o 2 98
Programme nghts ) 184 3 - - 4 191
Property, plant and equpmen{ 2 1 - - (1) 2
Provisions ’ a7 12 12 o — - 11
Tax losses (see note 66 ) 35 (5) . i3 - 43
Others 35 4 (18) 8 2 31
Sat off of tax ) 72 - - - ] @
389 {3) (6) 21 {6} 395
Deferred tax habilities ’
Intangible assets ) {74 6 - 0] )] (67}
Property, plant and equipment (15) 1 - - - (14)
Prowisions ) ) @ @ - - (14)
Qthers ) {3s) (8) - - 2 {a1)
Set off of tax A 72 - - - 9 81
(56} (4) 2) {1) 10 {55)
Balance at  (Charged)/credited Charged Translers and Balance at
1 January 2013 to ncome statement 10 equuty other changes 3% December 2013
€m €m €m €m £em
Deferred tax assets
Intangible assets 139 {19 - 2 18
Programme rights 152 30 - 2 184
Property plant anc equipment } 2 - - - 2
Prov.sions 8a a (1} - a7
Tax losses {see note 6 6) 39 EH - - eto]
Others 37 2 - - 35
Set off of tax 78) - - 5] (72)
375 9 (1} -] 389
Deferred tax habilities ) |
Intangible assets : (71) - - - {71)
Property, plant and equipment 16 ] - - (19)
Provisions ) ()] {1) - - 9
Others ) (a5) {5) 15 - {35)
Set off of tax B 78 - - 6] 72
(62) (s) 15 (6) (58)

Deferred tax assets and habiities are ofiset aganst
each other if they relate to the same tax authonty
and meet the cntena of offsetting The term of the
deferred taxes on temporary differences 15 mostly
expected to be recovered or settled more than
12 months from the balance sheet date
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Current programme
nghts

Accounts recetvable and
other financial assets

NOTES TQ THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2014 2013

Gross Valuation Net Gross Valualon Net

vatue allowance value valug allowance value

€m €m €m €m €m €m

{Co-)productions 346 (318} 28 346 (317 29

TV programmes 99 (3} 98 o2 {1 g1

Orther distnbuton and broadcasting nghts 885 (276} 609 812 (256) 556

Sub-total programme rights 4,330 (595) 735 1250 (574) 676

(Co-Jproductions and programmaes in progress 167 (si Ty 61 167 (5) 182
Advance payments on {co Jproductions,

programmes and nghts 133 (1) 132 118 m "7

Sub-total programme rights in prograss 300 {7} 293 285 6 279

1,630 (602) 1,028 1,535 {580) 955

Trade accounts recavabie

Accounts recevable from investments accounted
for using the equity method

Loan recervable to Investments accounted for using
the equity methad (seenotes 33 1,7 4)

Prepad expenses
Faur value of dervative assets
Other currant financial assets (see note 33 1)

Account recevable from shareholder
In refation with PLP Agreement (see note 9 1)

Cther accounts recevable

Additons and reversals of valuation allowance have
been recorded for €(94) milion and €65 million
respectively in 2014 (2013 €(85) million and €74
mullion, respectively)

a4 203

Under Over Under
1 year 1 year Tatal 1 year 1 year Total
€m €m €m €m £€m €m
1,048 1 1,049 1,069 3 1072
29 - 29 a3 - 33
- - - 2 - 2
82 - B2 86 - 86
48 30 78 16 6 22
32 - az 10 - 10
326 - 326 3490 - 390
132 85 217 15 16 131
1,697 116 1,813 1,721 25 1,746

Following the exercise of its put option and the dis-
posal of its 7 5 per cent stake held in Natonal Media
Group ("NMG"), RTL Group had recenved, on 19 Sep-
tember 2013, €81 millior for thus financial nstrument
whuch had been designated at far value through
profit orloss RTL Group also disposed of some non-
monetary financial Investmeants dunng the third quar-
ter 2013 (see note 7 5 )

Additions and reversals of valuation allowance have
been recorded for €(18) millon and €18 mullion
respectively n 2014 (2013 €{27) milion and € 20 mil-
lion, respectively)
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Cash and cash equivalents
014 203
€m £m
{Cash in hand and at bank 260 164
Fixed term deposits
{funder three months} 189 327
Other cash equivalents 34 51
Cash ana cash equvalents
{excluding bank overdrafts) 483 542
2014 2013
€m €m
Cash anc cash equivalents
{excluding bank overdrafts} 483 542
Bank overdrafts {see note 7 11 ) 4 [r-]]
Cash and cash equvalents 479 540

“Other cash equivalents” include money market
funds for €34 mifton (2013 €51 mlion)

Assets classified as held for sale and

habilities directly associated with non-current
assets classifred as held for sale

At 31 March 2014, Groupe M6 disposed of 100 per
cent of its interests held in Mistergooddeal SA The
sale proceeds and the capital gain amounted to €2
rnillion and €1 mition respectively

At 30 June 2014, AVE | Vermogensverwaltungsge-
sellschaft mbH & Co KG and its parent company,
AVE VI Vermogensverwaltungsgesellschaft mbk &
Co K@, previously accounted for using the equity
method and classified as assets held for sale at 31
December 2013, merged into RTL Radio Deutschland
GmbH The capital gain amounted to €3 millon

The investment in the Chinese associate AdSociety
had been presented in 2013 as held for sale follow-
ing the decision of the Group's management to dis-
pose of this asset AdScciety had been fully impaired
as at 31 December 2012 for €(18) midlicn The finan-
cial liability related to the initial acquisition of AdSoci-
ety has been pad to arvato services Munchen Gm-
bH, a related party, for €15 millon in 2014 On the
basis of a binding sale agreement with a thire party,
the recoverable amount of this associate has been
revalued at 31 December 2014 and a reversal of the
previously recognised imparment has been record-
ed for €3 6 million accordingly

At 31 Decernber 2014 and 31 December 2013, the
assets held for sale and the disposal groups are/
were stated at farr value less costs of disposal and
compnsed the following assets and liabilities There
1s/was no significant cumulative income or expens-
es included in OC! relating to the assets held for sale
and disposal groups

014 2013
€m €m

MNon-current assets classified
as held for sale, disposal group

Non-curremt assets

Other intangible assets - 7
Property, plant and equipment - 1
Investment in investments

accounied for using
the equity method 4 -

Current assets

Other wventones i - 1M

Accounts recewvable

and ather financial assets - 13

Cash and cash equivalents - 5

Impairment of disposal group! - (10
4 27

Liabilties directly associated
with non-current assets
classified as held for sale

Current habiliires

Accounts payable - 23
Provisions - 1
- 24
Loans and bank overdrafts
2014 2013
€m €m
Current habilrhes ’ : -
Bank overdrafts
Bank loans payable {seenote 7 5) 13 14
Loans due to investments
accourtted for using the
equity method 5 4
Leasing habiities 1 1
Term loan facility due to
shareholder (seenote 9 1) 547 12
Other current loans payable 13 3
583 36
Non-current habilities i
Bank loans payable {seenote 7 5} 9 18
Leasing habilities 2 -
Term loan facility due to
shareholder (seenote 9 ¥ ) 500 500
Qther non-current loans payable 10 11
s21 529
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Term and debt repayment schedule

Total
Under ¥ 1-5  Over§ camying
year years  years  amount
204 €m €m £€m €m
Bank overdrafis i _ ' 4
Bank loans payable (see note 7 5) L . 12 9 - 22
Loans due to nvestments accounted for using the equity method q - - §
Leasing kabilites 1 2 - 8
Term loan facility due to shareholder {see note 9 1) 547 - 500 1,047
Cther loans payable 13 4 B 23
’ 583 15 506 1,104
Tota)
tndes 1 -5 Owr5 campng
2013 e e em
Bank overdrafts oz - - 2
Bank loans payable {see note 7 5) ) 14 18 - 32
Loans due to investments accounted for using the equity method 4 . Z 4
Leasng labilites 1 - - 1
Term loan faciity dus to sharsholder (see note 8 1) 12 - 500 512
Cther loans payable 3 5 <] 14
36 23 506 565
Accounts payable
Current accounts payable
2014 M3
€m €m
Trade accounts upayable 1,384 1361
Amaounts cue to associates 3 5
Ermployee benefits habiity 155 183
Deferred ncome 116 100
Social secunty and other faxes payabie 69 76
Fair value of denvative labilties 14 23
Account payable to sharsholder in relation with PLP agreement (seenote @ 1) 432 481
Other accounts payable 280 284
2,453 2513
Non-cumrent accounts payable
2014 2013
1-5  Over5 1-5  OverS
years years Total years years Total
€m €m €m £m £m £m
Trade accounts payable 53 7 60 50: 6 56
Emplovee_beneﬁts lability 13 221_ 234 3 197 200
Deferr;ad ncome 2 - 2 2 1 3
Far value of dervative liabiitres - 2 14 Z 14
Other accounts payable 80 14 84 42 16 5B
150 242 392 111 220 33
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Provisions

7.13. 1.
Provisions other than post-employment
benefits

Balance at 1 January 20‘i 4

Provisions charged/(credited)
to the income staterneant

- Additicns

- Reversals . L .
Provisions used dunng the year
Other changes

Balance at 31 December 2014

Restruciunng
€m

STATEMENTS

Lbgations  Onerous contracts Qther provisions Total
€m £m £m €em

101 113 13 228

18 66 7 o4

® . (5} (1) 12

)] (64} - 68)

| 1 m i

111 11 18 243

The provisicns mainly relate to the foliowing

m Provisions for htigations correspond to the Group's

best estimate of the expected future cash outflow
refated to disputes ansing from the Group's
activities

RTL Group 1s party to legal proceedings in the nor-
mal course of its business, both as defendant and
clamant The man legal proceedings to which
RTL Group s a party are disclosed below

Several subsidianes of the Group are being sued
by broadcaster RTL 2 Fernsehen GmbH & Co KG
and tts sales house El Cartel Media GmbH & Co
KG before the regional court in Dusseldorf In
Germany seeking disclosure of information n
order to substantate a possible clam  for
damages The proceedings succeed the imposi-
tion of a fine In 2007 by the German Federal Cartel
Cffice for the abuse of market dominance with
regard to discount scheme agreements (“share
deals” P Deutschland GmbH and SevenOne
Media GmbH granted tc meda agencies The
German Federal Cartel Office argued that these
discounts would foreclose the advertising market
for small broadcasters The proceedings involve
IP Deutschland GmbH, RTL Television GmbM,
Vox Televiston GrmobH, RTL Disney Fernsehen
GmbH & Co KG and N-TV Nachnchten GmbH
Broadcasters MTV Networks Germany GmbH and
TeleMunchen-TV GmbH had intated similar
proceedings before the regional court In Murich
TeleMunchen-Tv GmbH was unsuccesshi n the
first and second instance, the judgrnent beng now
final and non-appealable MTV Networks Germany
GmbH withdrew its lawsuit in September 2013
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Brandi Cochran was employed as a model on the
television senes The Pnce Is Right from Juty 2002
untl February 2010 and 1s claming wrongful
termination and other allegations due 1o her gender
and pregnancy Her clam was brought against
FremantleMedia North Amenca ("FMNA") The court
entered judgment In January 2013 and awarded
her damages in the amount of USD 9 milion {(com-
pensatory damages of USD t milllon and punitive
damages of USD 8 millon, subject to interest at the
rate of 10 per cent per annum until paid) plus attor-
ney’s fees FMNA appealed the verdict FMNA filed
post-trial motions for (i} a new tral and {i) judgment
notwithstanding the verdict (“UNOVT In March
2013, the motion for a new tnal was granted (and
the verdict was vacated), but the motion for JNOV
was denied FMNA filed an appeal on the denial of
the motion for JNOV, while Brand: Cochran ap-
pealed the granting of a new tnal In December
2014, the Appellate Court remanded the parties for
a new tnal and allowed Brand Cochran to ntro-
duce new arguments The tnalis expected to com-
mence 1 late spring/early summer 2015
“Onerous contracts” mainly comprise provisions
made by Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland for €67
milon (2013 €63 milion) and €42 milion by
Groupe M8 (2013 €49 million) in relation to the
supply of programmes, of which sport events
(2014 €186 milion, 2013 €28 milhon) Qut of €66
million of provisions recorded dunng the year €64
milion refate to pregrammes such as movies and
senes and €2 milhon to sport events

014 2013
€m £€m

Current 164 192
Non-current 79 35
243 228
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Post-employment benefits

2014 2013

€m €m

Balance at 1 January 135 133
Provisions charged/ (credited)
1o the income statement } :
— Additions! 22 22
— Heversals - -
Provisions used dunng the year' 2n {17
Actuanai losses direclly recogrised
inequity (see note 7 14} 50 [t¢)]
Other changes (i) -
Balance at 31 December 173 135

“Post-employment benefits” compnse provision for
definec benefit obligations (see note 7 14 } for €170
millkon {2013 €132 million) and provision for other
employee benefits for €3 million (2013 €3 milhon}

2014 2013
£m £€m

Current 2 2
Non current 171 133
173 135

Defined benefit obligations

RTL Group operates or participates in a number of
defined benefit and defined contnbution plans
throughout Eurcpe FremantleMedia North Amenca
in the United States also operates a medical care
plan which 1s not further disclosed given its matenal-
ity to the consolidated financial statements

These plans have been set up and are operated In
accordance with natronal laws and regulations A
descnption of the principal defined benefit plans of
the Group and nsks associated are given below

Belgium

Employees of RTL Belgium participate in a defined
benefit plan msured with the msurance company
AXA, which provides pension benefits to members
and ther dependants on retirement and death It
concemns a closed plan in run-off From 1 January
2004, a new defined contribution scheme has been
open for all new employees The assets of the insur-
ance contract are not segregated but mutuahsed
within the global assets of the Company (“Branche
21" A guaranteed interest rate 1s prowded by AXA
and the plan should not be affected by financial
market development
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Furthermore, the pension plan prowvides a lump sum
at retirement and therefore, will not be affected by
the expected increase of the future life expectancy of
retirees Other nsks manly relate to minimum fund-
Ing requirements when vested nghts are not funding
enough

France

Groupe M8, Ediradic, ID and IP France operate re-
tiremenit Indemnity plans which, by law, prowde lump
sums to employees on retirement The lump sums
are based on service and salary at the date of termi-
nation of employment In accordance with the apph-
cable collective agreement The Edwadio and 1D re-
trement indemnity pfan i1s partly funded by an
insurance contract with AXA Ediradio also partici-
pates in a defined benefit plan which provides pen-
sion benefits to members on retirement This plan 1s
partly funded by an insurance contract wath AXA The
assets of the Insurance contract are not segregated
but mutualised within the global assets of the insur-
ance company A guaranteed interest rate 1s provid-
ed by AXA and the plan should not be affected by §i-
nancial market development By nature, the lability
15 not influenced by the expected increase of the fu-
ture Ife expectancy of a retiree

Germany

Employees of UFA Berin Group {(Inciuding UFA Fiction
GmbH, UFA Factual GmbH, UFA GmbH, UFA Show
GmbH}, AVE Gesellschaft fur Horfunkbetedigungen
GmbH, UFA Film & Fernsehen, RTL Group Beutsch-
land GmibH and Universurm Film GmbH participate in
an unfunded common group retirement plan and
defined benefit n nature In case of nsolvency, there
1S a comprehensive protection system (“Pensions-
sicherungsverein”} operated by the German Pension
Protection Fund The company UFA Senal Drama
{former Grundy UFA TV Produktions GmibH) has a
partly funded plan

Related obligations and plan assets are subject to
demographic, fegal and econormic risks  The pnmanly
nsks relates to longewity nsk for pension recipients

Each employer that participates in this plan has sep-
arately identfiable babilites

RTL Telewsion and IP Deutschland operate ther
own retrement arrangements [P Deutschland spon-
sors individual plans for five former employees,
providing defined pension benefits to each employee
at retirement

RTL Television sponsors ndmdual plans for two
employees and two former employees, providing
defined pension benefits to each employee at retire-
ment Inaddition, a number of employees participate

in a support fund providing penston benefits to mem-
bers and ther dependants on retrement and death

The plan of RTL Telewsion 1s partly funded by a Iife
Insurance contract with AXA The assets of the insur-
ance contract are not segregated but mutualised
within the giobal assets of the insurance company A
guaranteed interest rate 1s provided by AXA and the
plan should not be affected by financal market
development Both companies are exposed to certain
nsks associated with defined benefits plans such as
longewvity, inflation and increase of wages and salanes

Luxembourg

CLT-UFA, RTL Group and Broadcasting Center
Europe spensor a post-employment defined benefit
plan in favour of ther employees The occupational
pension plan provides benefits to the affikates (mem-
bers and ther dependants) in case of retirement,
death in service and disability The pension benefits
are financed through an internal bock reserve, as
one of the allowed funding vehicles descnbed In the
Jaw of 8 June 1999 on occupational pension plans in
Luxembourg Therefore CLT-UFA, RTL Group and
BCE set up provsion for the unfunded retirement
benefit plan MNevertheless 1in such case, the law
requires the company to subscnbe to insolvency
insurance with the German Pension Protection
Fund {“Pensionssicherungsverein’t The CLT-UFA,
RTL Group and Broadcasting Center Europe occu-
pattonal pension scheme 1s a defined benefit plan
final pay with integraton of the state pension
Consequently, the Company 1s exposed to certan
risks associated with defined benefits plans such as
longewty, inflation, effect of compensation increases
and of the State pensicn legislation

Death and disability are insured with Cardif Lux Vie

Umited Kingdom

FremantleMedia Group Limited 1s the prnincipal em-
ployer of the Fremantle Group Pension Plan (“the
Fremantle Plan"), which was established on 29 De-
cember 2000 and was, pror to 1 September 2005,
known as the RTL Group UK Pension Plan The
Fremantle Plan prowdes benefits through two
sections, one providng defined benefits and the
other prowiding defined contnbution benefits with a
defined benefit underpin Plan assets are held for
both sections of the Fremantle Plan - the assets in
the defined benefit section compnse a qualfying
insurance (buy-in) policy and UK corporate bonds,
the assets 1n the defined contnbution section
comprise manly equities The Planis funded through
a trust administered by a trustee company, the
assets of which are held separatety from the assets
of the particpating employers FremantleMedia
Group Lrimited 15 ultimately llable for any deficit in
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1) Ma nly nchude the defined sertrbubicn
sacuon of tha Framante Plan

(2] Docnpnms maenly dut 1o The diaposal
o Maragoodcenl (2013 148 actve
rerDers)
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the Plan Funding requirements are under section 3
of the Pensions Act 2004 (UK} This requires

= Three-yearly formal actuanal valuations, with
annual moritonng,

® Trustees to maintan a Statement of Funding
Principles,

» Trustees and empiloyers to agree the approach
to each actuanal vatuation,

= Funding deficits to be elminated in accordance
with a schedule of deficit funding contributions

The Company has been managing and reducing
the nsks associated with the Fremantle Plan The
Company closed the Plan to all further benefit accrual
with effect from 31 March 2013 From 18 March
2014, the Company decided to secure benefits by
insunng the Plan’s liabiliies through a buy-in policy

The main nsk related to the defined benefit section 1s
that the insurance provider (Pension insurance
Corporation} defaults on the buy-in policy and the
Trustees are unable to recover the full value This
event 1s extremely unlikely given the regulatory capital
requirements for insurance companies and other
protections In place (&g the Fnanctal Services
Compensation Scheme)

Future pension prowsion for members of the
Fremantle Plan still employed by the Company 1s now
through a Group Personal Pension plan with Scottish
Widows, which commenced on 1 Apnl 2013

Legislaton regarding introducing employers’ pen-
sions 'auto-enrolment’ cbligations, requires contribu-
tions to be made for employees /workers who were
previously not members of Company schemes or
who previously had no pension entitlemert This
affected the Company from 1 September 2013
onwards An employee must now choose to ‘opt
out’ if they do not wish to contrnibute to the pension
scheme

Information about the nature of the present value of
the defined benefit habiites are detaled as follows

014 2013

£€m Em

Final salary plans 219 174

Carear average plans 6 4
Flat salary plans -

plans with fixed amounts 17 15

Others! 43 39

Total 285 232

Thereof capital commutment for €112 milion at
31 December 2014 (2013 €98 milon) Under the
Fremantle Plan Rules, in the defined benefit sections
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a member may opt to exchange up to around 25 per
cent of their penston benefit for a cash lump sum

Information about the plan members 1s as follows

214 23
Actve members? 2,721 2831
Deferred members _ 1,008 1072
Pensicners 3058 315
Total 4,125 4218

The breakdown ¢f the present value of the defined
benefit labilties by the plan members Is as follows

2014 m3a

€m €m

Active mambers i 105
Deferred members 92 76
Pensioners 62 51
Total 285 232

Thereof beneficianes with vested nghts for €242
milion {2013 €197 milion) and beneficianies with
unvested nghts for €43 millon (2013 €36 milion)

The amounts recegnised in the statement of financial
postion are determined as follows

2014 2013

€m £m

Present value of funded obligations 165 139

Fair value of plan assets {115) (1an

Deficit of funded plans 50 32
Present value of unfunded

oblgations 120 a3

Net defined benefit habilty 170 125

Assets (see note 7 5) - 7

Provisions (see note 7 13) 170 132

1689




01} In connection with tha closure of the
Framantia Plan 1 tura acenal 8 past
Sanach Crackt Nas Dean recognised n
the Ncome sta.ement for an amount of
€3 mifion

{2} The cermographic losses ams manly due
10 the plan N Luxambourg In connecton
with the Increass of the expectanon of i
for tha valued membors 1t has been
Goddan 10 repvenate the pooukanon of
5 voar 3 ldoing 10 an ncraase of €5 milion

13! 0 connection with the fall N tho dacount
rata for ot 20068

) 2014 the axpenenca gans manly relate
tor the plan N Luxembourg. for an amourt
of €12) mdon tue to a final inflauen affect
lass than expeciad (he plan n Balgum
fx an @mount of €111 milon U 10 satary
NCoase Kas than axpacied
2013 the axponance k0asos Mandy rolate
10 1ha pisn  Luxembourg for an amount
of €4 millon manly dua 10 the decrease
of the state penson N LLoxembouy ad
tre plan s @ cefined benefit plan final
pay with ntagration of the stale penson
Tha Fremantia Plan for an amoun: o
€5 millon (so0 Delow]

(5) 2014 w1 coNNECtoN with tha ewanco
trangacton buy in pokcyl for the
Fremantle Plan leading 1o an attounbng
loas for an amocnt of €11 millkon
2013 tha s marly dus o the Fremantie
Pian i an amount of €5 milion cue 10
strong parformance by the Consensus
and squrty funds which averal retumned
around +20 par Cont over the vees in
tre dzhnad corrbution plan 1he value of
tre banehls 13 equal 1o the assels sa
thers 3.2 ComaspOonNCInNg xXpancecs s
of €5 milion on the Kabiivas and a net
rmpact on OC! of zero

{8) Tris s manly cue 1o the Fremantia Plan

CONnbution ratating 15 tha buy < oKy
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The amounts recognised In comprehensive INncome
are determined as foltows

2014 2013

€m £€m
Service costs .
~ Current service cost [see note 621} 7 7
- Past service gain from pian amendments anc/or curtaiments (see note 62 1) - {4)
- Settiements (see ncte 62 1) - {0
- Net nterest expense {see note 6 4 ) 4 3
Compaonents of defined benefit costs recorded in profit or loss 1 5
Re measurements
- {Qains)/losses from change N demograghic assumptions 6 1
- {Gans)/losses from change In financial assumptions 37 ic)]
- Expenence adjustments (gains)/losses ) 8
- Less return on plan assets {excluding amounits included in net interest expanse) {10 6
Components of defined benefit costs recorded in Other Comprehensive Income (“OCI7} 50 -
Total of components of defined benefit costs 61 5
The movement in the present value of funded/un-
funced defined benefit obligatrons over the year i1s as
follows

2014 2013

€m £m
Balance at 1 January 232 224
Current service cost 7 7
Past service credit from plan amendments and/or curtaiments' - (4)
Interest cost 8 7
Re measurements
- (Gains)/losses from change In demographic assumptions? 6 1
- [Gains)/losses from change in financial assumptions? 37 k)]
- Expenence adjustments {gains)/losses* (3} 8
Qbligations extinguished on settlements (non cash effect) - (1)
Benefits paid by emplayer (5) ()
Benefits paid out of the plan assets B (2 2
Foreign exchange differences 5 @
Others - 2
Balance at 31 December 285 232
The movement in the far value of plan assets of the
year 15 as follows

014 2013

£m £&m
Balance at 1 January 107 101
Interest Income on plan assets 4 4
Return on plan assets {excluding amounts nciuded i net nterest expensel (10) 6
Empioyer contnbutions® 1 2
Benefits pad out of the plan assets @ {2)
Settlemnents - (1)
Foraign exchange diferences o 5 [ie]]
B—a!anca at 31 December 15 107
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{1) Dunng tme first quartar of 2014 the
Trusiee smplamentec a buy-n tansacton
16 huly wieara the fabiibes of the Fral
Pey and Thames Sactions The nek rans
feurea 10 the Nsuror Penson nsurance
Gorpocaton Lig (PCT) waa from 21
March A total nsumnea pramm of
£57 mion was calcuied by the PG
based on manket conamens et 24 Febru
ary An nikal premaam has been trans
feimed from axstng plan axseta lecuty
and oelbt nstrumenta) 1o he PC for
an amount of £47 milion The smplemen-
1at0n INCluNed 8 CotemRo sTUCtLre
whorglyy €5 rmilion way et on 2 Apnik
2014 and a further expectad €1 2 milkon
oua 1 2015 ONCY the Newance
has compisted the date vanhcaian
procass The buy n pokcy 8 reated as a.
quakiyng nsurance porcy Tha afference
betwean tha premum pad for the buy-n
pokGy and the far vakus hes bean teated
&% 2 ro measurTmont koss on plan assets.
iox €11 mdion
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Expected contributions to post-employment benefit
plans for the year endng 31 December 2015 are
€4 million

Plan assets are compnsed as follows

Quoted
marked  No quoted

€m  prcg€m

Equrty instruments
(including equity funds)'

Company size large cap 19 -
Company size rmid cap 19 -

Debt instruments
{including debt funds)

Queted  No quatea
Total 2014 marked prce marked pnce  Total 2013
€m % £&m £m €m %

a8 a3 53 50
19 27 - 27
19 26 - 26

Government bonds investments grade
Corporate bonds investments grade 1 -
Qualifying insurance policies’ - 75
Total 40 75

75 65 - 26 26 24
115 100 81 26 107 100

Other equity and debt instruments mainly relate to
the Fremantle Plan The policy asset allocation re-
flects a balance between mnvestments n bonds
{which are sensitive to Interest rates) and equities
{which are expected to provide hugher retums and in-
flaton protection over the long term} The primarily
nsks inherent in the investment strategy are the nsks
that the market returns will not be In (ne with expec-
tations and the risk of annual volatiity in returns,
which means that in any one year the actual return
may be very different from the expected return {such
may also be negatve)

The qualifying insurance policy relates to the Fremantle
Plan and other plans for €28 millon The main rnsks
related to the qualfying insurance policy for the
Fremantle Plan is that the insurance prowider defaults
on the buy-in policy, and the Trustees are unable to
recover the full value This event 1s extremely unhike-
ly given the regulatory capital requirements for insur-
ance companes and other protections iIn place e g
the Financial Services Compensation Scheme)

The pnncipal actuanal assumptions used were as
follows

2014 2013

% a year
Other Eurogean
countnes uK

Germany

Discount rate 210
Long-term inflation rate 150-180
Future salary increases

Future pension INCreases 1 00-1 70_
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225 202-450 -

% a year
Other European

Germany countes UK

180 arn 370 300 445
200 210 180 200 240
) 225 214-450 Z
100 325 180 100 azs

At 31 December 2014, the weighted-average dura-
tion of the defined benefit liability was 17 years (2013
17 years)
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The breakdown of the weighted-average duration by
geographical areas is as follows

w4 13
Germany 18 7 17 .C.;
Other European countnes 118 122
UK 230 250

At 31 December 2014, the sensitvity of the defined
benefit labiities to changes in the weighted pancipal
assumptions is as follows

24 2013
Increase  Decrezse  Increase  Decrease
£m €m £m £m
Eiscount rate | ’ ’
{effect of O 5%) (18} 21 (19) 18
Future salary growth
(effect of O 5%} 15 (13) 12 01
Future pension growth
{effect of 0 5%) 7 (6) 6 5]

The above sensitivity analysis 1s based on a change
in an assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant

At 31 December 2014, expected matunty analyss of
undiscounted pension {future cash flows} are as fol-
lows

Less than 1-4  Less than
1 year years 10vears
Em £m £€m Total
Defined berefit liablity e 38 S5 102

Equity

Share capital

At 31 December 2014, the subscnbed capital
amounts to €192 milion (2013 € 192 milion) and 1S
represented by 154,787,554 (2013 154,787,554) ful-
ly paid-up ordinary shares, without nominal vatue All
shares have the same nghts and entitements

Treasury shares

The Company's General Meeting held on 16 Apri
2014 has authonsed the Board of Directors to ac-
quire a total number of shares of the Company not
exceeding 150,000 in additten to the own shares al-
ready held { & 1,168,701 own shares) as of the date
of the General Mesting This authonsation s valid for
five years and the purchase price per share s fixed
at a mimum of 90 per cent and a maximum of 110
per cent of the average closing price of the
RTL Group share over the last five trading days pre-
ceaing the acquisition

Following the shareholders’ meeting resolution and
n order to foster the lquidity and regutar trading of
its shares that are isted on the stock market in Brus-
sels and Luxembourg and the stability of the pnce of
its shares, the Company entered, on 28 Apnl 2014,
inte a hquicity agreement {the “Liquidity Agreement”)
with Kepler Capital Markets SA (the "Liguidity Prowid-
er”) Durng the year ended 31 December 2014, un-
der the Liguidity Agreement, the Liguidity Provider
has

® purchased 637,788 shares at an average pnce of
€76 86, and

» sold 626,832 shares at an average pnce cof €76 85,
1 the name and on behalf of the Company

At 31 Decemnber 2014, a total of 10,956 RTL Group
shares are held by the Company and €9 6 milien are
In deposit with the Liguidity Provider under the terms
of the Liquidity Agreement

Currency transiation reserve

The currency translation reserve comprises all for-
eign exchange differences ansing from the transla-
tion of the financial statements of foreign operations,
reserves on nvestments accounted for using the eg-
uity methoed for foreign exchange translation differ-
ences and cash flow hedging, as well as loans des-
ignated to form part of the Group's net Investment in
specific undertakings as repayment of those loans i1s
not anticipated within the foreseeable future
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Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve {equity attrnbutable to non-con-
troling interests Included) compnses the effective
portion of the cumulative net change in the farr value
of cash flow hedging instruments related to hedged
transactions that have not yet occurred

Between 31 December 2013 and 31 December
2014, the hedgming reserve increased by €71 milion
before tax effect This consists of

s Increase by €54 milion due to foreign exchange
contracts that existed at 2013 year end and which
were still hedging off-balance sheet commitments
at 31 Decemnber 2014,

® Decrease by € nit milllon due to foreign exchange
contracts that existed at 2013 year end but which
were incorporated in the cost of the hedged item
and subsegquently consumed and released n 2014
from the hedging reserve to ncome statement,

u |ncrease by €17 millon due to foreign exchange
contracts entered into in 2014 hedging new ofi-bal-
ance sheet commitments

Between 31 December 2012 and 31 December
2013, the hedging reserve decreased by €41 millon
before tax effect This consists of

u Decrease by €20 millon due to foreign exchange
contracts that existed at 2012 year end and which
were stll hedging off-balance sheet commitments
at 31 December 2013,

» Decrease by €15 milion due to foreign exchange
contracts that existed at 2012 year end but which
were incorporated in the cost of the hedged tem
and subsequently consumed and released in 2013
from the hedging reserve to Income statement,

» Decrease by €6 millon due to foreign exchange
contracts entered into IN 2013 hedging new off-bal-
ance sheet commitments
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7. 15. 5,
Revatuation reserve
The revaluation reserve includes

= The curmulative change net of tax in the far value
of avalable-for-sale Investments (see note 7 5 Jun-
til the investment 1s derecogmsed or impaired for
€22 miihon {2013 €30 milion) The amount of OCI
recycled 1o profit or loss and related to avalable-
for-sale iInvestments disposed of I 2014 15 € nikmil-
llon (2013 €11 milion {net of tax €10 millon)),

a The cumulative increase i the far value of the In-
tangible assets and property, plant and equipment
following the gains of control of Groupe M6 and M-
RTL and the acquisition of investments accounted
for using the equity method achieved in stages
(2014 €55 million, 2013 €55 mulion}

Dwvidends

On 16 Apnl 2014, the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders decided on the payment of a dividend
of €4 50 per share (€691 milion)

Cn 20 August 2014, RTL Group's Board of Directors
authonsed the distribution of an extraordinary
intenm dividend of €2 00 per share The paymenton
4 September 2014 amounted to €307 million
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(1) Conrraciual ¥a of optiona comasponds to
the vasting penod (e four yaars) pius
throe yaarg (which raprosants the tma
frame dumng whech tha ootons can be
exerczec)

{2) The maxmim numbor of free shares
granted 1f the perfommance canditiona are
sgyrrfica~'ly exceaded Suc “umbar
oould ba reducad to nd i obyectivos org:
not ma
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Share-based payment plans

Groupe M6 Share-based payment plans

Groupe M6 has established employee share option
plans open to drectors and certain employees The
number of optons granted to participants IS ap-
proved by the Supervisory Board of Métropole Télé-
vision SA In accerdance with the authonsation given
by the General Meeting of Shareholders

The terms and conditions of the grants are as fol-
lows, whereby all options are setiled by physical de-
Iivery of shares

MNumber of options Contractual
intalty granted  Rermainmyg oplions Vesting hte of
Gaant date {in thoosancs) {in ihousands) concibons opbons'
Stack options plans
05-2007 827 50 - 4 years of sarvice 7 years
05-2008 88383 23306 4 years of service 7 years
Total 1,711 33 233 06
Maxmum number of
free shares granted  Remaining optons Vesing
Gran! date {in thousanas¥ {in thousands) coRCIDONS:
Free shares plans
2 years of service +
07-2012 487 75 - performance conditions
2 years of serice +
07-2013 642 50 57898 performance conditions
04-2014 149 55 142 68 2 years of serwice
2 years of service +
10-214 51315 51315 perffarmance conditions
Total 1,792 95 1,234 81

The Free Shares Plans are subject to performance
concditions A descnpton by plan is given below

a The plans at 27 July 2012, 26 July 2013 and 13 Oc-
tober 2014 are subject to Groupe M8 achieving its
target growth in net consohdated resuit over the
penods 2012, 2013 and 2014 respectively,

u The plan at 14 Aprl 2014 1s only subject to the pres-
ence in Groupe M6

Approximately 1,235,000 free shares are still exercis-
able at the end of the year aganst 1,084,000 at the
begnning of the year 663,000 free shares were
granted dunng the year with 464,000 being exercised
and 48,000 being forfaited

The pnce to be pad to exercise each of the remain-
ng options 18 the average pnce of shares in
Métropole Télévision on the Pans Stock Exchange
over the 20 trading days preceding the date of grant
with the excephon of the management free share
allocation plan
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Moverents in the
number of share options
are as follows

Share options
outstanding

(in thousands)

at the end of

the year have the
following terms

(1) Heswoncal volathly rolanad was.
cetammned on the basts of 4 pencd acuas
ta tha maturty of each plan
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Average Awerage
expise prce Exeroise pnce

in thousands of options € per shara 014 € pershare 013
OCptions cutstanding at the beginning of the year 21 1,029 21 1554
Cptions exercised dunng the year 15 {297) 15 81}
Options expired/ cancelled durng the year 27 (499) 24 (444)
Options outstanding at the end of the year 15 233 21 1029
Number of Nurrber of
Erercne prce opbons/shares ephonsfshares
Bxory catle € Faal] 2013

Stock options plans
2014 27 52 - 488
2016 1473 2323 541
233 1029

Free shares plans

2014 - 468
2015 579 616
20186 656 -
1,235 1084
Total 1,468 2,113
Out of which exercisable 233 1029

The market prce of Métropole Téléwision shares on
the Paris Stock Exchange was € 15 58 at 31 Decem-
ber 2014 (€16 65 at 31 December 2013)

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted 1s measured by reference to the far

value of the share options granted The estmate of
farr value of the services receved 1s measured based
on a binomial model Free shares are valued at the
share pnce at the date they are granted less the dis-
counted future expected dwidends that employees
cannot receive durning the vesting pencd

Histoncal Frsk free Expected e
Share prce Strika pnce volatdity' nteres! At retom 2014 M3
Gramt date [3 £ % % a year % ayear Opbon lifa €m £m
Stock options plans
02/05/2007 ) 2655 27 52 s 440 399 7 years - -
06/05/2008 R 1522 1473 400 439 630 7 years - -
oo oo
Free shares plans i )
26/07/2011 A 1575 N/A N/A 156 635 2 years - 12
22hzr2011 ) 1140 N/A N/A 102 960  2years - -
2770712012 : 11 51 N/A N/A 024 950 2 years 10 18
26/07/72013 R 1479 N/A N/A 058 “610 2 years 32 14
14/04/2014 N 16405 N/A N/A Q53 563 2 years a6 -
13/10/2014 } 1203 N/A N/A Q23 760 2 years o4 -
52 44
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SpotXchange Inc Share-based payment plan
Seenote 52

Style Haul Inc Share-based payment plan

Some employees of Style Haul Inc benefit from a
share-based payment plan n RTL US Holding, Inc,
its parent company, the plan qualifies as a cash-set-
tled share-based payment transaction This pian i1s
fully vested as of 31 December 2014 {see note 5 2)
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Other plans
There are other insignificant share option plans with-
i the Group

Non-controlling interests

The Group owns 48 4 per cent In Métropole Téléw-
sion SA, which has material non-controlling interests
Métropole Télévision SA and its subsidiary (see note
11 ) represent Groupe M8, which 1s listed on the Par-
15 Stock Exchanges

The total non-controling interests for the year s
€447 million (2013 €434 milion), of which €405 mil-
lion (2013 €389 million), 15 for Groupe M6

Non-controlling interests in other subsidianes are in-
dividually immatenal

The following tables summanse the restated informa-
tion relating to Groupe M6, before any intra-group

elimination

Summarised financial information

Groupe Mé
2018 013
€m £m

Nan-gurrent assets i 500 516
Current assets 1.000 958
Current labilities 652) {661}
Non-current habiities (66) (ac
Net assets 782 773
Revenue 1,295 1374
Profit before tax 210 207
Income tax expense (87) (k)]
Profit for the year 123 114
Cther comprehensive income 1 @
Total comprehensive ncome 124 111
Total comprehensive income
allecated to non-controliing
Interests 64 57
Diwvidends paid
to non-controlkng interests (56) {119)
Net cash from/(used in)
operating activities 197 288
Net cash from/{used in)
nvesting actvities (111} 77
Net cash from/{used in)
financing astvities (110} {235)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents (24} (24)

Transactions on non-controlling interests
These transactons mainly relate to

2014
Transactions on non-controlling interests without a
change in control

» CBS Studios International contrbuted €3 million n
a number of capital Increases in RTL CBS Asia En-
tertainment Network LLP, proportionally to ts 30
per cent share,

» Groupe M6 has granted, acquired and disposed of
own shares In respect to the employee share op-
tion plans {see note 7 15 7 ), the forward purchase
contract (see note 7 15 9) and the hgquidity pro-
gramme

The transactions an nan-controling interests with a
change in control relate to Best of TV, 495 Produc-
tions, SpotXchange, Printic and Styfe Haul {see note
52)

2013
Transactions on non-controling interests without a
change in control

a On 1 January 2013, RTL Group acquired the re-
maining non-controling interests in Phomx Ailm
Karhenz Brunnemann GmbH and Co Produk-
tions KG (merged into UFA Fiction GmbH in the
second half of 2013) The transaction resulted In a
cash-out of below €1 milion The contingent con-
sideration based on a vanable performance com-
ponent Inciudes an earn-ocut mecharsm fully rec-
ognised for an amount of €5 milllon The financial
habiity has been re-measured at 31 December
2014 for €2 million reported in “Cther operating
income”,

= On 13 August 2013, CBS Studios International and
RTL Group agreed to establish a partnership to
launch two thematic channels in the fast-growing
South East Asian markets The venture 1s held 70
per cent and 30 per cent by RTL Group and CBS
Studios International respectively

The transactions on non-controlling interests with a
change in control relate to BroadbandTV and Miso
(seenote 52)

Denvatives on equity instruments
Denvative iInstruments relate to forward transactions
by Groupe M8 on Métropole Teléwsion SA shares
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EA COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

2014 203
(2] €m

Guarantees and endorsements gven 20 21
Contracts for purchasing aghts {co-Jproductions and programmes 2,297 2402
Operating leases 461 518
Purchase obhgations in respect of transmission and distnbution 138 189
Other long-term contracts and commitmants 150 185

The Group has investments in unlimited hability enti-
tes In the event these entites make losses, the
Group may have to participate to the entire amount
of losses, even if these entities are not wholly owned

Certain UK comparnies in the FremantleMedia Group
have elected to make use of the audit exemption, for
non-dormant subsichanes, under section 479A of the
Companies Act 2006 1n order to fulfil the conditions
set out In the regulations, the Company has given a
statutory guarantee of all outstanding liabilities to
which the subsidianes are subject at the end of the
financial year to 31 December 2014 A full ist of the
companies which have made use of the audit ex-
emption 1s presented in note 11

In the course of therr actvities, several Group com-
panies benefit from licence frequency agreements,
which commmit the Group in varous ways depending
upon the legal regulation »n force n the countres
concerned

Guarantees and endorsements given

On 23 July 2010, Five Group was sold to Northern &
Shell, a Group domiciled in the United Kingdom The
terms of the sale agreement stiputated that
RTL Group continues to provide guarantees to third
parties on behalf of Five Group Northern & Shell has
provided back-tc-back guarantees to RTL Group
The related amounts stand at € ml milion at 31 De-
cember 2014 (2013 €1 million)

8. 2.
Operating leases
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are as folows

2014 2013
Under 1 1-5 Over § Uncer 1 1=5 Over 5

year years years Totat year years years Total
€m £m €m €m €m €m €m €m

Leasing of satelite
fransponders " 60 az 103

Other operating leases 64 181 113 358

75 241 145 461

67 27 96
185 161 422
262 188 518

28w

“Other operating leases” mainly refates to the rental
of offices, buldings and eguwpment in Germany,
France and the United Kingdom
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B

Purchase obhgations in respect of transmission
and distnbution

These obligations result from agreements with pro-
viders of services related 1o the terrestnial and cable
transmission and distnbution of the signals of the
ATL Group TV channels and radio stations

Other long-term contracts and commitments
The Group has “Other long-term contracts and com-
miments” amounting to €150 rmilkon at 31 Decemn-
per 2014 (2013 €185 milon}

Long-term contracts include contracts for senices,
agreements to purchase assets or goods, and com-
mitments to acquire icences other than audiovisual
nghts and television programming that are enforcea-
ble and legally binding and that specify all significant
terms

FremantleMedia has arrangements for a remamning
penod of four years in relation to sale and lease back
transactions for an amount of €4 milion (2013 €8
million} Under these arrangements, FremantleMedia
has sold programme nghts to a special purpose ve-
nicle and simultaneously leased back the assets un-
der a hinance lease arrangement The cash recerved
is placed in a “restncted bank account” at A-rated
banks in order to satisfy the lease payments, and Is
not considered as an asset in accordance with SIC
27 Income recewved by FremantleMedia was recog-
nised in the income statement when entenng nto
these arrangements
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EA RELATED PARTIES

Identity of related parties

At 31 December 2014, the principa’ shareholder of the
Group 15 Bertelsmann Captal Holding GmbH {*BCH")
{75 1 per cent) The remainder of the Group's shares
are publicly hsted on the Brussels, Frankfurt and Lux-
embourg stock exchanges The Group also has a re-
lated party relationship with its associates, jont ven-
tures and with ts directors and executive officers

Transactions with sharehelders

Sales and purchases of goods and services
Dunng the year the Group made sales of goods and
services, purchases of goods and services to Ber-
telsmann Group amounting to €9 milion (2013 €8
milhon) and €22 mulion (2013 €20 millien), respec-
tively At the year-end, the Group had trade accounts
receivable and payable due from/to Bertelsmann
Group amounting to €5 rmilion (2013 €7 milhon) and
€6 million {2013 €4 mifion), respectively

Deposits Bertelsmann SE & Co KGaA

With a view to Investing its cash surplus, RTL Group
SA entered in 2006 with Bertelsmann SE & Co KGaA
(previously Bertelsmann AG) into a Deposit Agree-
ment, the main terms of which are

® |nterest rates are based on an overnight basis on
ECNIA plus 10 basis points, or on a one to
six month basis, EURIBOR plus 10 basis points,
& Bertelsmann SE & Co KGaA grants to RTL Group
as secunty for all payments due by Bertelsmann SE
& Co KGaA a pledge on
= All shares of its wholly owned French subsidiary
Média Communication SAS,

» All shares of its wholly owned Spanish subsidiary
Media Finance Holding St,

= Allits interests in the German tmited hability part-
nership Gruner + Jahr GmbH & Co KG,

e Al shares of its wholly owned Englsh subsidiary
Bertelsmann UK Ltd

At 31 December, RTL Group SA did not hold any de-
posit with Bertelsmann SE & Co KGaA (2013 € nil
millien on a one to three months basis and € nil mil-
lion on an overnight basis} The interest ncome for
the period 1s € nil (2013 €0 2 million)

The interests in Gruner + Jahr GmbH & Co KG and
shares of Bertelsmann UK Ltd have also been grant-
ed as pledge by Bertelsmann SE & Co KGaA to CLT-
UFA SA, a subsidiary of RTL Group, in connection
with the accounts recewvable refated to PLP and
Compensation Agreements as defined below
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On 22 December 2011, RTL Group Deutschiand
GmbH, a Group company, and Bertelsmann SE &
Co KGaA entered into an agreement related to the
deposit of surplus cash by RTL Group Deutschland
GmbH with the shareholder To secure the deposit,
Bertelsmann pledged to RTL Group Deutschland
GmbH its aggregate current partnership interest in
Gruner + Jahr GmbH & Co KG

At 31 Decernber, RTL Group Deutschland GmbH did
not hold any deposit with Bertelsmann SE & Co
KGaA (2013 €ni milion The interest income for the
period 15 insignficant {2013 insignificant}

RTL Group SA has additionally entered nto a Treas-
ury Agreement n North Amenca with Bertelsmann
inc interest rates are based on US Libor plus 10 ba-
sis ponts At 31 December 2014, the balance of the
cash pocling accounts recawvable and payable
amounts to € nil millon (2013 € nilmilkon} The inter-
est mcome/ expense for the year s € nil milkon (2013
below €1 mithon)

Loans from Bertelsmann SE & Co KGaA

On 7 March 2013, RTL Group Deutschland GmbH, a
Group company, and Bertelsmann SE & Co KGaA
entered into a sharsholder loan agreement pursuant
tc which Bertelsmann makes available a term loan
facility in the amount of €500 millen and a revolving
and swinglne facility in the amount of up to €1 bil-
llon The main terms of these facilities are

= Term loan faciity of €500 milhon until 7 March 2023
bearnng Interest at 2713 per cent per annum,
RTL Group SA has the nght to early repay the loan
subject to break costs At 31 December 2014, the
term loan balance amounts to €500 million (2013
€500 milhan),

Revolving loans bear interest at the applicable
EURIBCR plus a margin of 0 60 per cent per an-
num, and swinghne loans bear ntarest at EONIA
plus a margin of 0 60 per cent per annum A com-
mitment fee of 35 per cent of the applicable margin
1S payable where for purposes of calculation of the
payable commitment fee the avallable commitment
under the revolving and swingline facilites will be
reduced by €200 millon At 31 December 2014,
the total of revolving and swingkne icans amounts
to €536 rmilhion {2013 € nil mullron}

The interest expense for the penod amounts to € 16
million (2013 €12 milion} The commitment fee
charge for the period amounts to €1 mullion {2013
€1 milion)
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Tax

On 26 June 2008, the Board of Directors of
RTL Group agreed to proceed with the tax poolfing of
its indirect subsidiary RTL Group Deutschland Gm-
bH (“RGD"} Into BCH, a direct subsidiary of Bertels-
marn SE & Co KGaA

To that effect, RGD entered into a Profit and Loss
Pooling Agreement (“PLP Agreement”) with BCH for
a six-year period starting 1 January 2008 Simultane-
ously, Bertelsmann SE & Co KGaA entered into a
Compensation Agreement with CLT-UFA, a drect
subsidiary of RTL Group, providing for the payment
to CLT-UFA of an amount compensating the above
profit transfer and an addtional cornmission (*Com-
mission”) amounting to 50 per cent of the tax saving
based upon the taxable profit of RGD

Through these agreements, as from 1 January 2008,
Bertelsmann SE 8§ Co KGaA and the RGD sub-group
of RTL Group are treated as a single entity for Ger-
man INcome tax purposes

As the PLP Agreement does not give any authorty to
BCH to instruct or contral RGD, 1t affects neither
RTL Group nor RGD's ability to manage ther busi-
ness, including ther responsitility to optimise their
tax structures as they deem fit After six years, both
PLP and Compensation Agreements are renewable
on a yearly basis RGD and CLT-UFA have the nght
to request the early termination of the PLP and Com-
pensation Agreements under certain conditions

On 15 May 2013, the Beard of Directors of RTL Group
agreed to the amendment of the Compensation
Agreement (n ight of the consumption of the trade
tax and corporate tax losses at the level of
Bertelsmann SE and Co KGaA and of the expected
level of Indebiness of RTL Group 0 the future

The PLP Agreement was slightly amended in 2014 on
the basis of a recent change to German corporate
tax law

In the absence of specfic guidance in IFRS,
RTL Group has elected to recogrise current ncome
taxes related to the RGD sub-group based on the
amounts payable to Bertelsmann SE & Co KGaA
and BCH as a result of the PLP and Compensation
Agreements descnbed above Deferred ncome tax-
es continue to be recognised, based upon the en-
acted tax rate, in the consolidated financial state-
ments based on the amounts expected to be settled
oy the Group 1n the future The Commission, being
economically and contractually closely refated to the
Compensation, 1s accounted for as a reduction of
the tax due under the Agreements

At 31 December 2014, the balance payable to BCH
amounts to €432 milion {2013 €481 milhon) and the
balance recevable from Bertelsmann SE & Co KGaA
amounts to €326 milkon (2013 €380 millkon)

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the German
Income tax In relation to the tax pooling with Bertels-
mann SE & Co KGaA amounts to € 158 mulion (2013
€142 mililon} The Commission amounts to €52 mil-
lion {2013 €52 milion}

The UK Group relief of FremantteMedia Group to
Bertelsmann Group resulted in a tax income of €4
milion {2013 €5 muilion)

Others

On 29 October 2014, RTL Group disposed of 90 per
cent, out of its 100 per cent holding, in BeProcure-
ment SA (see note 52)

Transactions with investments accounted for
using the equity method

The followng transactions were carrmed out with
investments accounted for using the equity method

2014 2013
€m €m

Sales of goods and services to - )
Associates B 21 18
Joint ventures 56 49
) 77 67

Purchase of goods and services from ’

Associates ) 10 8
Joint ventures N 18 17
28 25

Sales and purchases to and from nvestments ac-
counted for using the equsty method were carned out
on commercial terms and conditions, and at market
prices
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Year-end balances ansing from sales and purchases
of goods and services are as follows

04 2013
&m Em

Trade accounts recavable from R
Associaies 17 17
Joint ventures 8 11
25 28

Trade accounts payabie to

Associates 2 3
Jont ventures - 1
2 4

Transactions with key management personnel

In addition to ther salanes, the Group also provides
non-cash benefits to the members of the Executive
Committee and contributes to a post-employment
defined benefit plan on its behalf

K& SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 9 January 2015, Groupe M6 has acquired 100 per
cent of Oxygem SA and its subsidianes {“Oxygem”)
Oxygem operates vanous websites The acquisition
will boost the digital development of Groupe M6 and
generate many synergies

On 12 February 2015, FremantleMedia announced it
1s taking a 25 per cent non-controlling stake in Coro-
na TV, a newly created TV production company The
deal, which gives FremantieMedia a first look option
on all Corona TV output, furthers FremantlieMedia's
ambition to buid its scnipted pipeline

RTL Group management are contemplating different

strategic options regarding the sport rights business
UFA Sports One possibility might be the disposal
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The key management personnel compensation 1s as
follows and reflects benefits for the penod for which
the indmduals held the Executive Committee posi-
tion

24 2013

€m €m

Short-term benefits T 74 69
Post-employment benefits +3] o1
Long-term benefits 26 37
i " 101 w07

Directors’ fees

In 2014, a total of €06 milion (2013 €06 million}
was allocated in the form of attendance fees to the
non-exacutive members of the Board of Directors of
RTL Group SA and the committees that emanate
from it, with respect to ther functions within
RTL Group SA and other Group comparnies
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GROUP UNDERTAKINGS

Growp's  Coasob Gmoups  Coesoli- Group's  Consol Groug's  Consoh
owmership aateg owmetsho fatea ownershp cated owmership dated
2014 methad 23 methad 2014 method 2013 method
Note (o] {1 Note (restated ) m BROADCASTING TV Note -} (1} Note (restated ) ]
LUXEMBOURG* AUSTRIA-
RTL Group SA M M P Ostemech Vermuttiung fur Femseh
- - - - - werbung GmbH o ase F w8 F
BELGIUM"
Home Shopping Senace Belgxue SA {2} 571 572 F
RTL Balgum 54 ) 658 2 658 F
Socité Europdenna ce Tolvente ’ i
Belgique GIE {2} 48 2 F 2 485 F
Unté 15 Belgique SA S @ 42 F @ a5 F
CROATIA®
RTL Hrvatskad o o 297 F = Ir F
FRANCE*
33 FM SAS @ 458 F @ 461 F
Best of TV Berelux SPRL i (et 24 5- F- -: NC
Bast of TV SAS @ 248 F - N
C Productions SA @ a2 F @ 466 F
Edt TV/WQ SAS @ 42 F (@ 486 F
Footbll Club des Gronding de Bordeaux i ) ’
SASP @ 481 F @ 485 F
Girondins Expressions SASU T @ asz F @ <6 F
Grondins Honzons SASU T w a2 £ @ 86 F
GM6E SAS @ 36 2- l—: (bl 36 4- F
Home Shopping Service SA i 2 48 é F- (2 48 5 F
Immobiliére 460 SAS T @ 4z F @ 86 F
Immobilire M5 SA @ am2 F @ 486 F
Les Fims da la Suane Sad T F 3 486 F
Lve Stage SAS @ a8z F @ 486 F
Luxvew SAS T @ e F @ <62 F
MBE Bordeaux SAS ) 2 48 2. F. ) 43 6- F
M8 Cammunication SAS @ 482 F &) 486 F
M Gréatons SAS @ 48z F @ <86 F
MB Développameni SASU " @ 42 F @& 486 F
MS Diffusions SA 2 482 F @ 486 F
MB Dvertissement SAS & 48 £ F- {2} 48 E: F
M Ediions 5A T @ 2 F o <88 F
;‘IE E—vi:nemanls SA ) 2 48 £ F- 2 48 8- F
MB Fims SA @ 482 F @& 488 F
ME Foot SAS T F @ 488 F
ME Génération/6Ter SAS {2 48 2- F- 2 48 6- F
MB Interactions SAS Y F 2} <486 F
M6 Publcis SASU T @ a2 F @ 86 F
MB Récraalve SAS @ 482 F (@ 486 F
M8 Shop SAS T F @& 486 F
M6 Studeo SAS ) T 482 F @ 486 F
M6 Thématique SA T @ a2 F @ 488 F
MG Touiouse SAS T T F
M6 Web SAS @ w2 F @ a6 F
Métropole Produciion SA T @ ez F @ 486 F
Métronola Téévison - M6 SA T @ sz F @ 6 F
Mestergooddeal SA T2 - NC @ 486 F
MonAlbumProto SAS T @ 482 F o wet F
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Goup's  Consolr Gowps  Consolr- Gowp's  Gonsos Growps  Consolr
remershg dated ownership gated ownershp dated ovmershp tiated
2018 method 203 method 2014 method 2613 method
BROADCASTING TV Note ) %) Nots (restzleq ) 3] BROADCASTING TV Nota = (1) Note frestated 9 1]
HONG KONG®
Ootiens SPAL ) T 481 F @ 484 F  RTLCBS Asia Enferanment Netwark
Panora § sas - - - {HK) Limited 700 F - NG
fformer Panorabanque SAS) @2 a1 N 243 N
Pans Premibre SAS @ a2 F i@ 486 F HUNGARY*
Prntic SAS - @ s F T MG CATURA Magyarorsrdg Seolgalaté Kit 997 F S
Quoksgn SAS L@ e E @ 185 E  HomeShoppng Sevca HongneSA (@ 482 Fo@ e85 F
SClou 107 L@ a2 Fo@ 488 F Magyar RITL Talewass Zarthtiruan ’ )
SEDI TV/Téva SAS 2 482 F @& 4886 F Mukood Részvénytarsasag @ se7 F @ e97 F
Séna Club S4 T e W@ 23 N RTmekn @ 997 Fola o7 F
SND Fims LLC T @ eae F @ 486 F RIL Kabeltslevz Kt @ w7 F ol w7 F
SNDA 5AS T @ aaz F @ 86 F
Sociétd des agences pansiennes SAS [F]] s E - NC INDIA-
Socéts Nouvelle da Cinématographe SA  {2) 4832 F 2 48 E; F Big RTL Broadcast Pvi Lig a2 - NC 50Q W
Société Nouvella e Distnbution SA @ 82 F @ 488 F i i
Stéphane Plaza Franchse SAS @ 26 E - NC  LUXEMBOURG®
Studio 89 Productions 5AS S ez F o s F Eroedcastng Ganter Europe SA 97 = v ;
TCM Droits Autrmsuets SNC . 2k 432 @ 486 F RTL Balux SA 658 F 658 3
TFG Gestion SA @ 2 Vo 243 N RTL Belux SA & Cie SECS 658 £ 658 E
TF6 SCS @ 21 W @ 23 N grgea s € sa9 £
Unité 15 France SA @ 482 F o) 485 F  RTLOSA & Cie SECS 348 £ 348 E
GERMANY* THE NETHERLANDS*
CBC GmyH i w7 F 97 F Couverts Ressrveren BV 6 997 F 907 F
Clpfish GmbH & Co KG E - NC 87 F PepperBY ) . . )
Detta Advertising GmoH 997 F 997 F fomer RTL Nederiand Ventures 1 8V (1) 987 F 997 F
Bl Cartel Meda GmbH & Co KG i 358 E a8 E  RIL Mobie Venture BV
Guta Zerten - Schiechte Zeiten i i {former ATL Nederiand Vantures 3 V1 o) % ?" F- = ?- F
Vermarkiungsgesslischaft mbH 87 987 F RTL Nederiand BY 8 97 F 997 F
121 Muskproduktions und i ) i ) RTL Nederiand Hoiding BV e 97 F %07 F
Musikveriagsgesetschaft mbH 987 F 997 F RTL Nederand interactef BY e 987 F w7 F
Infongtwork GmbH ) kg F w7 F AT Nedertand Verturas BY e 997 F 997 3
IP Bevtschiand GmbH A 87 F 997 £ Wentink Evants BV nel a7 E 99 7 F
Medascore Gesellschaft fur Maden und
Kommunikatonsforschung mbH 987 F 997 F
Madengruppa RTL Deutschland GmbH ) a9 7~ l£ - NC ROMANIA-
Natzathlgten net GmbH 997 F 987 g Cable Channels SA N 97 F 997 F
Norddgrch TV ) ) i )
Produktonsgesellschaft mbH M%7 F g7 F
n tv Nachachtenfemsehen GmbH i 98 '.'- F— 99 ?— F
Passisn GmbH w7 F w7 F
ATL Creation GmbH @97 F 07 F
RTL Disney Femsehen GmbH & Co KG 48 N 498 N
RTL Group Cable & Satelite GmEH 997 F 997 F
RTL Group Deutsctland i i i
Markenverwattungs GmbH 997 F 97 F
RTL Hessen GmbH ) 997 F %07 F
RTL Hessen Programmienster GmoH 598 F 508 F
RTL Interactive GrmbH %7 F w7 F
RTL Nord GrmbH ) 997 F 957 F
ATL Tetlewision GmbH ) 99 7‘ Ig =2e] '.'- F
RTL WEST GmgH 748 F 7a8 F
ATL2 Fernsehen Geschaltsfihrung ) . . i
GmbH asa E 358 E
RTL2 Fernsenen GmbH & Co KG ) ass E as8 €
Smart Shoppng and Savog GmbH w7 F 007 F
Unwersum Fim GmbH i %07 F w07 £
VoxHoling GmbH i 997 F %7 F
Vo Televsion GmaH o _ws _F | wms F
wexkantwen GribH o w7 F w7 F
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Group 8 Gops Group's  Consob Group's
ownershp owmershp ownership gated avwmershp
2014 2013 2014 method 2013
BROADCASTING TV Nota (1] Note (restated 7 CONTENT Nate =) 1) Mote bestawe )
SINGAPORE" ANTIGUA"
ATL CBS Asia Entertainment Natwork Grundy International Oparations Lic 1000 F 1000
P 700 oo - - - N -
AUSTRALIAY
SPAIN®
Clark & Leroy Pty Ltd 112) - NC 1000
Antena 3 Eventos SLU {8 192 E {5 205 E Forum 5 Pty Lid ) 1000 F w0
Antena 3 fims SLU - o 9 ",. E. bl 2 5. E FremanileMeda Australa
Antena 3 Juegos SAU {5} 192 £ B 208 E Holdings Pty Ltg @ 1000 F 1000
Antena 3 Mutimed:a SLU ) 192 E {3 205 E FremantieMeadia Austraka Pty Lid R 9 1000 Fu 100 q
Antena 3 Noticias SLU (s 192 £ B 205 E Grundy Organization Pty Lid @ 1000 F 100 0
Antena 3 Telewision
Drgital Terestre de Cananas SAU 9 92 E {5l 205 E BELGIUM®
Atlants Global Sokitons St i8) -] E 6 69 E
- - FremantleMada Belgwm NV 1000 F 1000
Alres Adverusing SLU ) 192 E © 20 5“ E - - - -
Alresmedia Corporacion
de Machos de Comunicacon SA {5) 192 £ (5 205 E  BRAZIL®
Atresmadia Foto SL 5) 173 E 8 185 E FremantleMedia Brazil
Canal Med:a Radho SAU ) 192 E (5 205 E Producao de Televisdo Lida ; 1000 " a0
Cordina Planet SLU {8) 192 E © 205 E
Guadana Procucciones SAU & 192 E 8 208 g CANADA®
Hola TV Aménca SL (5} 96 E (5 103 E FremantleMedia Canada Inc 1900 F 1000 F
Holz TV Latam SL 5) 7£ E- - NC Luda Inc 1000 F 1000 F
Hola TV US LLG {5) 72: é - NC Miso Film Canada Inc 510 F 510 F
13 Televtsion SL &) 9 5_ E_ &) 10 3_ E
La Sexta Editorial Musical SLU &) 192 E B 205 E CHINA®
Musica Aparte SAL 51 192 E 5] 2085 E AdSocaty Daye Advertsng Co Lig 33 E 33
Publisas iniciativas Publicitarias SAU 1) - c & 205 E Radical Media Co Lid {14) M5 S 1000
Uniprex SAU 5) 192 5 205 E
Uriprex Television CROATIA*
Ogital Termestre de Andaiuca SL &) 142 [ 152 E ; p
- y lleMedia Hrvatska d 1000 1000
Uniprex Teiewsion SLU m 192 & 25 remantishiec Hruaiskado o . !
Uniprex Valencia Telewsion SLU (5) 192 5 205
= - DENMARK*
SWITZEALAND® Blu A/S 1000 £ 1000 F
1 - 1 F
Goldbach Madia (Switzeriand) AG 229 229 Msa Edit ApS ) N s10
- - Miso Estate ApS 510 F 530 F
USA* Miso Fim ApS 510 2 51 l:l F
Mo Holding ApS 510 F 510 F
SND USA g 2) 432 2) 486 - - - -
FINLAND*
FremantleMadia Fintand Oy 1000 F 1000
FRANCE*
1 2 3 Productions SAS 1000 F 1000
FremantleMeda France SAS 3000 F 1000
TV Presse Productions SAS 1000 F 1000
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Grougs  Consoll Groups  Consolt Group's  Consoh Grovps  Consoh
ownership dated ownership dated ownership dated ownership daled
014 method 2013 methoa 2014 method 2033 method
CONTENT Neta (&) (1) Notm esiaed ) W  CONTENT Note [ {1} Mote frestated ) [
GERMANY* THE NETHEALANDS®
Drmaove GmbH s08 E - NC Beretux Fim Irvestments BV 498 N 498 Y
Fremantia Loensing Germany GmoH w7 F 97 F BueCrdeBY 1000 F 1009 F
Radical Media GmbH na  as £ g 1000 F Four One Media BV @ 1000 F 1000 F
RTL Group Licensng Asia GmbH ) %67 F w7 F  FremantieMecia Netherlands BV i i )
RITL Group Services GmbH ) 997 F 997 g (omer FremanieMeda Operatons 8Y). &) 1009 F @ 1000 F
UFA Brand Communication GmbH ) {3) 99 7~ F. fic]] og 'n: F FramariigMeda Oversess Holdngs BY 1000 F 100 ¥
UFA Cinema GmbH - - 7‘ £ - ?' F Grundy Endemol Productions VOF . 50 0_ .J\c: 50 D_ v
UFA Giverna Verdah GmbH - o7 g 07 £ Grundy Intematanal Hokings (WBY 1000 £ w00 F
UFA Factual Gmbk Y 1 F o o7 g AL Nederand Fin Venture BY he e97 F w7 F
UFA Fiction GmbH @ 987 F @ o7 g RTLNededand Productions BY (e ee7 F 97 F
UFA GmbH T w7 F @ w7 F
UFA Seral Drama GmbH T ee7 F @ o7 ¢ NORWAY"
UFA Show GmbH 100 0 F 1000 F FremantleMedia Norge AS 1000 £ - NC
UFA Sporis Gmbk - 97 F W7 £ Misa Film Norge AS 510 F 510 F
GREECE* POLAND*
Fremantie Produchons SA 1000 F 1000 F  FremantleMeda Polska Sp Zo o e F 1000 F
HONG KONG* PORTUGAL"
Fremantie Productions Asa Lid 1000 F 1000 F  Fremantishedia Portugal SA . . oo F ot F
HUNGARY® RUSSIAN FEDERATION®
UFA Magyarorszag KFT Framantle Productons LLO ) 1080 F 100 F
(former Magyarorszag KF T} ~ 17 F @7 F
SINGAPORE®
INDIA Asia Sports Ventures Ple Lid (12 - NG 438 W
Fremantla india TV Productions Pt Lid 1000 F 1eoa F FremantieMedia Asa Ple Ltd 1000 F 1000 F
UFA Spons Asa Pla LTD ’ w7 F 873 F
INDONESIA®
T Duma Visiiama 100 0_ F_ 100 O_ F SLOVAKIA*
LFA Sports Siovakia 3 1o 858 F 658 F
ITALY"
FremantieMedia ltakz Spa 1000 F 1000 F SPAIN'
Fremantla ca Espafa SL ©® s F (6 996 F
LUXEMBOURG* FremantieMed:a Espana SA 1000 F 1000 F
BeProcurement SA ’ ’
{hormmer Frsrmantishlecta SA) i) - NG 000 F GWEDEN"
Duchy Digial S4 97 F 997 F
European News Exchange SA - - 78 5- FM - 5— £ FremantleMadia Svenge AB 1000 F_ 000 F
- - - Miso Film Svenge AB 510 F_ - NC
MEXICO*
uK*
FremantieMedia Mexico SA da GV 1000 F 1000 F
- - - Artye Productions Ltd (t5) 1000 F (15) 1000 F
Fremantie &I Productions Lid “usm 1000 £ 5 1000 F
FremantieMedia Group Lic “us 1000 £ 0st 1000 £
FramanileMeda Ltd i {155 1000 F- {15) 100 0— F
FremantiaMedia Overseas Lid “us 1000 F st 1000 F
FremantieMeda Servces Ltd i 1000 F 0st 1000 £
RTL Group Suppont Senvces Lid ’ 1000 3 1000 F
Select TV Lid 1000 F 1000 F
Takback Productns Lid e 1000 F U 1000 F
Tokoack Thames Lid Toa - NCUn 00 F
Talback Thames UK Ltd i 1000 F 1000 F
Thames Television Hokdings Lid ns) 1000 F (19 1000 F
Thames TekmsonLtd 1000 F 1000 f
UFA FctonLmisd I 11 F -
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Grop's  Cansoh Gops  Consolr Growp's  Cansoh Goups  Consob
fremershin oatet ownershp cated ownershp azxeq ownership dated
014 method 3 methoo e method 013 wetod
CONTENT Note [ ] {1) Nota (restted™) 1 BROADCASTING RADIO Nota (%) {1) Nats (restated ) [t}
usA- BELGIUM®
205 Produciions Holdings LLC 7} 750 F ~ NC Cobetfra SA 441 F 441 F
Al Amencan Music Group C @ 100 F i 100 £ Contact Viaanderen NV T n2) - N 21 N
Ahiad Communcatons ine 1000 F 1000 F InachSA a1 F 241 F
Astygdiala [LG “p® 100 F L3 1000 F 1P Prnméda 84 ) 658 F 658 F
Cathedral Technologies LLC “m me F Z NG Mow Contact SA : 498 N 98 N
Fremantia Goodson Inc N 1000 F 0 1000 F Rado Belgum Holding SA a1 F a1 F
Fremartie Licensing Inc T 1000 F B 1000 F ) i i
Fremantie Productions lng @ w0 F m 1m0 F FRANCE*
Fremantie Productions Music Inc M 1m0 F: n 100 F EdracoSA B9 7 E 997 3
Fremantle Productions North Amercalne (7). 1000 F (n 1000 F (D {nformanan et Difusion} Sarl ) 897 I o7 F
FremantleMadia Latn Amenca Inc 1000 F 1000 F P France SA ) 99-,; |5 09 7- F
FremantieMecia Nonih Amanca Inc M 1000 F ¢ 1000 F P Rsgons 5A ’ pa7 F 97 F
Good Games Live Inc 1000 F (w000 F AT NetSAs 07 f a7 F
LBS Communications inc @ 100 0: F: " 100 0: F RTL Specal Marketing Sar ) 997 F 97 F
Leroy 8 Morton Productions LLC (14) W5 E (14) 1000 F SCP Sarl 897 F 997 E
Max Post LLG “ua 1000 Faa  1wo0a F sercsa - 07 ¢ %7 .
Music Box tibrary Ing M 1000 F M 1000 F SoderaSA 997 F a7 F
Newlle LLG 13 1000 F a3 1000 ¢ - -
O March LLG 13 1000: F: (13 moci F GERMANY
Op Services LLC _ 3 o0 F 03} 1000 P Antenne Nedersachsen GmbH & Co KG 574 F 574 F
Onginal Fremante LLC 03 1000 F o3 1000 P AVE Gesslschaft fur Herfunkbsterligun i i i
Cnginal Praductions LLC (13 1000 F (13} 1000 F gan GmbH 997 F 97 F
Cutpost Digial LLC ) (12) 34 5; é n4) 100 (i F AVE | Vermbogensverwaliungsgeseltschatt ) i i i
Radical Media LLC 14 348 E 4 1000 g moH&Ca kG _an TN 487 E
Reg Grundy Productions Haolcings Inc 100 6 F: 7 100 0: F fnﬁIngg\?(gGen sverwaliungsgesetschait 997 97 E
Studic Production Services Inc 7y 100 9 F_ 7 000 F AVE VI Vermgensverwaliungsgesel 7 N b -
The Baywatch Produchons Comparny M 1000 F (M 1000 F schafi mbH & Co KG _ - NG 497 E
Thumbdance LLG 1000 F 1000 F  BCS Broadeast Sarhsen GmbH & Co
Vice Food LLG L I G y 474 E 73 E
- - Funkhaus Halle GmbH & Co KG 812 F B12 F
Futracho RTL Sachsen GrmbH ) 883 F 863 F
Madsack Horturk GmbH Uy sev F() 997 F
Mediengaselischafi Mitteistand ) ’ i i
Nisdereachsen GmbH = 230 E() 230 E
Neue Spreeradio Hixfunkgesefischat ’ ’ ’
emoH %7 F 997 F
Facho Center Berln GrbH ) ‘w97 F 07 F
Radio Hamburg GmbH & Co KG ) 291 £ 29 1 E
RTL Radio Berin GmbH i 907 F g7 F
RATL Racho Deutschiand GmbH ) 97 F w7 F
RTL Radwovermarktung GmbH ) 99 7- l-: 99 T- F
UFA Radie Programmgesalischatt ) i i )
in Bayern mbH _ 99 7_ 3 a9 ?_ F
LUXEMBOURG*
Luxradia Sar 748 F 148 F
THE NETHERLANOS®
RTL FM BY uer 97 F w7 F
SWITZERLAND*
Swiss Radoword AG 230 E 30 E
{ YAt 31 December 2012, the Graup lgally held 24 8% and 5 7 % v Madsack Hsunk
GmeH and Meciengesefischaft Mitelstang Niedersachsen GmbH respectively Tha
Group's ownership disclosed for bath entibes takes mto account an option agreement iIn
accordance with 1AS 32
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Groups  Consoi- Grougs  Consol Group's  Consob Groups  Consoh
aqwmershp 0alec owmership cated owTership cated ownership dated
2014 methac 2013 method 204 method 203 tirgthod
OTHERS Nots [} (1) Note {restated ) (m  OTHERS Nota ) () Note (restated ) U}
AUSTRALIA" ux*
Spob(change Ausiralia Pty Ltd 708 F - NC CLT UFA UK Radio Lid 897 F 97 F
CLT UFA UK Telewision Lid 897 F g97 ¥
AUSTRIA* SpoiXchange Limitec 708 F - NC
ATL Group Austna GmbH 897 F 997 F
usa-
BELGIUM* ATL US Holdng inc 4] @7 a F - NC
Audiomedia Investments Bruxslles SA 1000 F 1000 F SpotXchange Inc 78 F - NG
) ) ) Style Haul Inc 870 F 261 F
CANADA®
Broadband TV Corporation 575 F 575 F
RTL Canada Ltd 1000 F 100 ¢ F
FRANCE®
P Network SA 897 F 997 F
Socaté Immobikéne Bayard d Antn SA 897 F 2097 F
GERMANY*
Apareo Deutschlang GmbH 897 F K97 F
Aparec Holding GmbH 897 F 997 F
RTL Group Central & Eastern Europe
GmbH 897 F 997 F
RTL Group Deutschland GmbH 997 F 997 F
RTL Group Vermigensvarwaltungs
GmbH 1000 F 0G0 F
Sparwelt GmbH
{former Econg Shopping GmbH) 07 F - NC
UFA Fitm und Ferngeh GmbH - i g F 997 F
UFA Sports Ventures GmbH 087 F 937 F
LUXEMBQURG*
B &CE SA 997 £ 997 F
CLT UFA SA 7 F a7 F
Data Center Eurppe Sarl 97 F 987 F
I Luxernbourg Sarl 97 FL g87 F
IP Network Inteenational SA @7 F B7 F
Med:a Properties Sarl 997 F o987 F
MP E SA M7 F - NC
RTL Group Central & Eastern Europe SA 997 F 997 F
ATL Group Garmany SA 897 F =2 g F
THE NETHERLANDS*
Buseryradar BY (18) 997 F aa? F
Dutch Learmng Company BV azz SV - NC
Future Whiz Medka BV un 207 Jv 203 Y
NLaet Cobperatief LA ) 332 N ~ - NC o o
RTL Group Beheer BV 1000 F 1000 F
- - - {1} M parare company {12) Company sokd or iquacated
The Entertanment Group BV 997 F 97 E F  full consolcation {13 Ongnal Productons.
- - = N 10 Jont Oparataon (1) Raocal Media
Videosinp BY 87 F 87 F {proporionata consckaston) {15) Gompany has slectod 1o make use of tha
N font ventura {equity accounting) audit axemplicn N acCordanca wih
E equty accounng secuons 47SA of UK Companes Act 2008
SINGAPORE* NC  not consoicated (16 Company has slected to make wse of the
gﬁrmpemt‘a'a:'u conol mtmmmmm':nms
UFA Borin Group N accardance with Sacton 400(15) of e
RTLGmupAq:aPt‘.el:’Igu_m . oan F 100 F (4) h ATL Group Duteh G Cooe
(=) Aresmeca {17} The Gtoup holdy certficelss without vol ng
(&) Fremartie Licensng nghts prowcing a nght 10 7 5% of divigends

Grup
(14} Camparny atxscrbed by & company
of tha Group
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distrtnden f any

{ ) Tha Group's ownershy . basec on tha
10tad number of shares afer DeoUCIN
of treasury sharma hold by the company
aa piv 31 December
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AUDITORS’ REPORT
j

PrcewaterhouseCoopers, Socete cooperatve 2 Cabirst de rémsion egrée
rue Gerhard Mercator Expert comptable
BP 1443 (autorsaton gouvemamentale n*10028256)
L1014 Luxembowg ACS Luxembourg 8 85 477
T «352 494548 1 RCS Luxemboung B 65 477 — TVA LUZ5482518
F +352 494948 2900

waw oweG I

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF RTL GROUP S.A.

Report on the consohdated financtal statements

We have audited the accompanying conscohdated financial statements of
RTL Group SA and its subsidianes (the “Group”), which compnse the
consoldated staterment of financiat position as at 31 December 2014, and the
consolidated income statement, statement of comprehensive Income,
staterment of changes n equity and cash flow statement for the year then
anded and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information as set out on pages 106 to 187

Board of Directors’ responsibility for

the consoldated financial statements

The Board of Directors 1s responsible for the preparation and far presentation of
these consclidated financial statements n accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union, and for such
internal control as the Board of Directors determines 1s necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from matenal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

Responsibility of the “Réviseur d’entrepnses agréé”

Qur responsibility 15 to express an opivwon on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit We conducted our audit i accordance with
International Standards on Auditing as adopted for Luxembourg by the
“Commission de Survellance du Secteur Financier” Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance whathar the consolidated financial statements are
free from matenal misstaternent

188 RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2014




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An audit nvolves performing procedures to obtain audit ewdence abaut the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements The
procedures selected depend on the judgment of the “Réwiseur d'entreprises
agré€” iIncluding the assessment of the nsks of matenal misstatement of the
consalidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error In making
those nsk assessments, the “Réviseur d'entreprises agréé” considers internal
contrgl relevant to the entity's preparation and far presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropnate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s iInternal control An audit also includes
evaluating the approprateness of accounting policies used and the reascnable-
ness of accounting estimates made by the Board of Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appro-
pnate to provide a basis for cur audit opinion

Opinion

In our opinion, the consclidated financial statements set out on pages 106 to
187 give a true and farr view of the consclidated financial position of the Group
as of 31 December 2014, and of Hs consolidated financial performance and its
consoldated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with interna-
tional Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The consoldated Director's repont, including the corporate governance state-
ment, which is the responsibility of the Board of Directors, 1s consistent with
the consolidated financial statements and includes the information required by
the law with respect to the Corporate Governance Staterment

Luxembourg, 5 March 2014

PricewatarhouseCoopers, Societé coopérative
Reprasented by
Pascal Rakovsky Marc Minet
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FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY

Year to Year %1 Year o Year o Year o
December ra staled Decermber Decerroer December Oecember
2014 2013 2013 2092 2011 2010
(1] €m £m €m £m £m
Ravenue h o 5,808 5,824 5,889 5,998 5765 5 532
- of which net advertising sales 3,432 3362 3430 3397 3,459 3.362
Other operating incoms a3 51 50 45 40 53
Consumption of current programme nghts (1,803) {1 924) {1 940) (2015) {1 791) {1.711)
Depreciation amortsation and smparrment {203) (198) {203) {187) (178 {192)
Other operating expenses 2,681) {2,663) 2 687) (2 790) (2 746) (2,501)
imparrment of goocdwill and far value adustments and amortisation of
far value adustments on acquisitions of subsidianes and jont venturas {103) §10)] {10 {10) {13 {10
Gan/ (loss) from sale of subsidianes, other investments
and re measurement to fair value of pre existing nterest n acquiree 1 5 5 ) 17 (7)
Profit from operating actvries 1,002 1,085 1,104 1,032 1,184 1,072
Share of results of asscciates 47 117 102 {53) 38 40
Earnings beforo interest and taxes (“EBIT™) 1,049 1,202 1,206 979 1,222 1,112
Net mterest ncomea/{expense)} (23) {22) {22) (1) ] 12
Financial resufts other than interest 4) 70 69 {1) 27 4
Prafit before taxes 1,022 1,250 1,253 968 1,183 1,128
Incoma tax expense (288) {302) (305) @77 (302) {263)
Prafit for the year from continuing operations 734 948 948 691 LE]] 865
Loss from discontinued operations - - - {1) 96) {135)
Profit for the year 734 948 948 890 795 730
Attributable to
RTL Group shareholders 653 B70 870 597 696 611
Non centrolling interests 81 78 78 a3 ag 119
Profit for the year 734 248 948 690 785 730
EBITA _1 .1"45 1148 _I 152 i078 1134 1,132
mparment of goodwrll of subsidianes B - - - - -
Amertisation and imparment of far value adustments
on acguisitions of subsidianes (15} (1o (]_ 0) B [§[0)] 13 {100
Impairment of disposal group - (10) (10} - - -
Impairment of nvestments accounted for using the equity method a4 68 68 82) 6} 3
Re-measurement of earn-out arrangements 2 1 1 2 - -
Gain/{loss) from sale of subsidianes, other investments
and re-measurement te far value of pre existing interest In acquiree 1 5 5 {9) 107 1¥4]
Earnings before interest and taxes (“EBIT™} 1,049 1,202 1,206 979 1,222 1,112
Basic earnings per share {in €) 425 567 567 388 453 398
Ordinary drrdend per shara (in €) 250 250 250 510 510 500
Extraordinary dwvdend per share {n €) 300¢ 4 50° 450 540 - -
Dridends pad (€ milion) 851 1084 1084 1623 789 773
A;erage number of full tme aguivalent employees 9,804 9.62:‘) 9,807 9 590 9621 9,286
Net assets {Emiion} _ 3278 3,583 3,593 4858 5093 5507
rmaﬁdebt)/czish (€ million) (599) 6 36 1051 1238 1,45

() Re-presantad folicwig tha appicabon of IFRS 5 10 Alpha Maca Groug {cescontnuad oparatonal
(2) Inchucing an gxzaordnary FToam dmoend paad i September 2014
(¥ Incluing an axtracningry mtenm dvcend  peod i Septamber 2013
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